902-420-9287

I nanitax | acowe s

11 Water e
November 19, 2021

Becky Kent, B.A., Chair
Halifax Water
Halifax, NS

The regular meeting of the Halifax Water Board will be held virtually on Thursday, November 25, 2021
beginning at 9:00 a.m. Visit www.halifaxwater.ca to register to attend the public portion of the meeting.

AGENDA

In Camera reports ‘

1C Approval of minutes of the In-Camera meetings held on Thursday, September 23, 2021 and Thursday,
October 28, 2021 (5 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the In-Camera minutes of September 23, 2021 and October
28, 2021.

2C Business arising from minutes
a)

3C Contractual Matter (20 minutes)
‘ Motion: That the Halifax Water Board convene to In Camera (private) to discuss the matter.

4C-1  Operational Matter (10 minutes)
5C-I  Legal Matter — Verbal (10 minutes)
6C-I  Legal Matter — Verbal (15 minutes)

Regular reports

1. a) Ratification of In-Camera motions (2 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board ratify the In-Camera Motions.

b) Approval of the order of business and approval of additions and deletions (2 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the order of business and approve additions and deletions.

2. Approval of minutes of the Regular meetings held on Thursday, September 23, 2021 and Thursday,
October 28, 2021 (2 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the minutes of the September 23, 2021 and October 28, 2021
Regular meetings.

3. Business arising from minutes
a)

gm,,'-.:_:,:_:,:,:_:_:,:,:,:.:.:,:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:::.. [STRAIGHTfrom
\theSOURCE




Page |2

Financial

4.1 Operating Results for the Seven Months Ended October 31, 2021 (10 minutes)

4.2 Proposed 2022 Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Budget (10 minutes)

Motion: That the Board approve the proposed 2022 budget for the Plan covering the period January 1, 2022 to
December 31, 2022.

4.3 Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Proposed Actuarial Valuation
Assumptions — January 1, 2022 (20 minutes)

Motion: That the Board approve the attached proposed actuarial valuation assumptions in principle, to be used
in conducting the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation of the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’
Pension Plan (the “Plan”).

Capital approvals

5 Capital Expenditures for the Seven Months Ended October 31, 2021 (5 minutes)

Other Business

6. Water Quality Master Planning — Moving Toward a Water Safety Plan — Presentation

Information Reports

1-1 Operational Performance Information Report

2-l  Halifax Water Compliance Statement — Quarterly Certification

3- Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Financial Report, Third Quarter, 2021
4-|  Halifax Water Supplemental Pension Plan Report

Digitally signed by Heidi
Schedler
~—  Date: 2021.11.19
15:04:57 -04'00"
Heidi Schedler
Secretary

o + e e ettt .. [STRAIGHT from JII naiiax
@— eeeeee e e ete et et e e [ the SOURCE 11{:.{.-%11'(_[\_'}3}&

Top Emplng;::}s




‘(.I(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4.1

l l \Na [.e r Halifax Water Board

November 25, 2021
TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board
Digitally signed by Louis
de Montbrun
SUBMITTED BY: X To 117580400
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO
Digitally signed by Cathie
M‘&/ &bt@ Bater 2021.11.19
APPROVED: 10:29:25 -04'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager
DATE: November 19, 2021
SUBJECT: Operating Results for the 7 Months Ended October 31, 2021
ORIGIN

Financial Information Reporting.

DISCUSSION

Attached are the operating results for the seven (7) months ended October 31, 2021, with comparative
figures for October 31, 2020.

The following discussion of the operating results reflect direct operating costs by department and
allocations among water, wastewater and stormwater for common costs shared across all the services
provided by Halifax Water.

Statement of Financial Position (NSUARB)

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Financial Position are provided in the following tables.

Page 1 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Table 1: Assets

March 31 From Prior Year
October 31 (in thousands) Notes 2021 2020 2021 $ Change % Change
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents AS 82,330 $ 66,569 $ 48,228 $ 15,761 23.7%
Receivables
Customer charges and contractual B 17,114 16,731 17,155 383 2.3%
Unbilled senvice revenues (o] 21,647 19,627 18,246 2,020 10.3%
Halifax Regional Municipality D 123 1,420 2,711 (1,297) (91.3%)
Inventory 2,189 2,231 2,003 (42) (1.9%)
Prepaids E 2,498 985 1,570 1,513 153.6%
125,901 107,563 89,913 18,338 17.0%
Capital work in progress F 54,704 46,791 30,908 7,913 16.9%
Utility plant in senice G 1,305,954 1,302,804 1,334,519 3,150 0.2%
Total assets 1,486,559 1,457,158 1,455,340 29,401 2.0%
Regulatory deferral account 2,509 2,701 2,620 (192) (7.1%)
Total assets and regulatory deferral account $ 1,489,068 $ 1,459,859 $ 1,457,960 $ 29,209 2.0%

Notes related to Table 1:

A) Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances held within financial

B)

institutions reduced by outstanding cheques. They have increased $15.8 million from the
prior year due to new debt of $20 million in May 2021, reduced by repayments of $20.7
million, net receipts of regional development charges of $21.7 million, and lower spend
on capital. A significant portion of the cash balances held pertain to the reserves for
Water and Wastewater Regional Development Charges — funds that are collected for a
restricted purpose. The unencumbered balance of cash and cash equivalents is $20.0
million.

Customer charges and contractual receivables have increased $0.4 million from the
prior year. The change in receivables is driven by the timing of billing cycles, down $0.3
million from prior year, offset by the accrual for funding on the Caledonia Road
transmission project of $1.0, and the decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts
related to a year end adjustment. The age of accounts receivables in the 120+ category
have decreased $0.6 million mainly due to a year end adjustment for accounts written off
due to stormwater services reviews.

Customer charges and contractual
2021 2020
‘000 ‘000 $ Change % Change
Trade receivables $ 16,834 $ 17,302 § (468) (2.7%)
Other receivables 3,731 3,050 681 22.3%
Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,451) (3,621) 170 (4.7%)
$ 17,114 $ 16,731 § 383 2.3%

Page 2 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

®)

D)

E)

F)

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Aging of Accounts Receivable (in thousands)
Current 31 to 60 61 to 120 120+ Grand Total
2021 9,269 1,287 1,172 5,106 16,834
2020 7,462 1,506 1,381 6,953 17,302
$ Change 1,807 (219) (209) (1,847) (468)
% Change 24.2% (14.5%) (15.1%) (26.6%) (2.7%)
Number of customers with receivables in each category*
2021 28,076 5,861 6,816 10,825 51,578
2020 26,193 6,601 7,037 15,925 55,756
Change 1,883 (740) (221) (5,100) (4,178)

* Customers may have receivable balances in multiple aging categories.

Unbilled service revenues have increased $2.0 million due to the timing of billing cycles
and the increase in wastewater rates.

Halifax Regional Municipality (HRM) receivable has decreased from the prior year by
§$1.3 million. This relates to receipt of payment for holdbacks related to the Fall River
Water servicing project and Lucasville Road cost sharing offset by the transfer of
stormwater receivables to HRM for lien collection. The increase in the Regional
Development Charge (RDC) is related to an increase of $0.6 million in deferrals for
charges greater than $0.1 million offset by receipts of $0.3 million.

HRM Receivables and Payables
2021 2020
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Receivables $ 2,320 $ 4,276 $ (1,956) (45.7%)
RDC 1,805 1,496 309 20.7%
Payables (4,002) (4,352) 350 (8.0%)
$ 123 $ 1,420 $ (1,297) (91.3%)

The increase in prepaids of $1.5 million is a result of the annual insurance premiums
invoice, which in previous years was invoiced monthly, and new software licenses
including the new payroll system. Also contributing to the increase were annual invoices
for Microsoft and SAP licenses.

The $7.9 million increase in capital work in progress relates to expenditures during the
year of $25.1 million. The top five projects remaining in capital work in progress at
October 31, 2021 are detailed below:

Page 3 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Capital Work in Progress
Cumulative
'000
Bedford South Reservoir $ 5,088
ERP Replacement Project 3,100
Romans and Federal Avenues Sewer
Separation 2,708
Wastewater System Trenchless Rehabilitation 2,313
Pump Station Control Panel/Electrical Replacement 1,661
14,870
All other projects:
Water 19,147
Wastewater 16,473
Stormwater 4,214
39,834
Capital work in progress $ 54,704

G) Utility plant in service assets total $1.31 billion, an increase of $3.2 million from the
prior year. The increase is a result of additions at year-end of $52.5 million offset by net
disposals and adjustments of $2.0 million, less depreciation expense of $47.3 million.

Table 2: Liabilities and Equity

March 31 From Prior Year
October 31 (in thousands) Notes 2021 2020 2021 $ Change % Change
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Trade A 10,901 10,809 12,644 92 0.9%
Non-trade B 4,924 4,606 6,192 318 6.9%
Interest on long term debt 2,705 2,749 2,065 (44) (1.6%)
Contractor and customer deposits 2,243 2,387 2,115 (144) (6.0%)
Current portion of long term debt (o] 21,559 21,184 20,559 375 1.8%
Unearned revenue D 5,644 5,203 561 441 8.5%
47,976 46,938 44,136 1,038 2.2%
Long term debt E 212,045 213,084 204,106 (1,039) (0.5%)
Deferred contributions F 66,122 49,808 55,699 16,314 32.8%
Total liabilities 326,143 309,830 303,941 16,313 5.3%
Equity
Accumulated capital surplus 1,110,727 1,096,393 1,103,616 14,334 1.3%
Accumulated operating surplus 37,994 42,620 47,906 (4,626) (10.9%)
Operating surplus used to fund capital 12,380 12,380 12,380 0 0.0%
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 1,824 (1,364) (9,883) 3,188 (233.7%)
Total equity 1,162,925 1,150,029 1,154,019 12,896 1.1%
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,489,068 $ 1,459,859 $ 1,457,960 $ 29,209 2.0%

Notes related to Table 2:

A) Trade payables and accruals have remained consistent with prior year. Trade payables
have increased $1.9 million as a result of invoicing for accrued payables resulting in a
decrease of $1.3 million in accruals. The accrued wastewater rebate has decreased $0.6

Page 4 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

million as those claiming rebates have been discharging more into the system, therefore

claiming lower rebates in the current year.

Payables and Accruals

2021 2020

'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Trade payable $ 6,338 $ 4411 $ 1,927 43.7%
Trade accrued payables 3,799 5,065 (1,266) (25.0%)
Accrued wastewater rebate 764 1,333 (569) (42.7%)
$ 10,901 $ 10,809 $ 92 0.9%

Aging of Accounts Payable (in thousands)

Current 31 to 60 61 to 120 120+ Grand Total

2021 5,003 595 448 292 6,338

2020 4,066 185 98 62 4,411

$ Change 937 410 350 230 1,927

% Change 23.0% 221.6% 357.1% 371.0% 43.7%

Please see Attachment 2, Vendor Spend Report to October 31, 2021, for spend by vendor year to date,
the top five are listed below:

Top Vendor Payments
Cumulative YTD
'000

Halifax Regional Municipality $ 13,144
NS Power Inc. 5,105
The Northern Trust Company 4,078
N-Viro Systems Canada LP 2,401
Landmark Structures Co. 2,210
26,938

All other vendors: 47,450
Total vendor payments $ 74,388

B)
to timing of payroll remittances.

)
acquiring new debt.

D)

Non-trade payables and accruals have increased from the prior year by $0.3 million due

Current portion of long-term debt has increased $0.4 million primarily as a result of

Unearned revenue has increased $0.4 million due to an increase in deferrals of the

Regional Development Charge (RDC) for charges greater than $0.1 million.

E)

2021. Long term debt repayments have been $20.7 million.

Long term debt has decreased $1.0 million. New debt of $20.0 million was issued in May

Debt servicing ratio is a function of total interest and principal payments (including accrued amounts) plus
the amortization of debt issue costs divided by total operating revenue per service. Debt servicing ratio by

service as at October 31, 2021 is as follows:

Page 5 of 15




ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Debt Servicing Ratio by Service

Water
Wastewater
Stormwater
Combined

2021/22 2020/21
13.44% 12.83%
21.30% 24.66%
26.60% 24.39%
18.63% 19.78%

The debt servicing ratio for each service, except wastewater, has increased from the prior year as a result
of the issuance of new debt. The wastewater debt servicing ratio has decreased from the prior year due to
higher revenues than the prior year as a result of an increase to the wastewater discharge rate.

The combined debt servicing ratio of 18.63% is below the maximum 35.0% ratio allowed under the blanket

guarantee agreement with HRM.

Statement of Earnings (NSUARB)

Table 3: Summarized Statement of Earnings (NSUARB)

Summarized Stat t of E
Budget Forecast YTD Actual PYTD Actual
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020721 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
Notes 000 000 '000 '000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Operating revenues $ 150,467 $ 151,612 § 90,417 § 81,877 § 8,540 10.43% $ 1,145 0.76%
Operating expenditures 125,379 124,728 68,173 64,207 3,966 6.18% (651) (0.52%)
Earnings from operations before financial 25,088 26,884 22,244 17,670 4,574 25.89% 1,796 7.16%
and other revenues and expenditures
Financial and other revenues 722 714 383 472 (89) (18.86%) 8) (1.11%)
Financial and other expenditures 37,460 35,272 20,803 19,506 1,297 6.65% (2,188) (5.84%)
Earnings (loss) for the year A S (11,650) $ (7,674) $ 1,824 § (1,364) § 3,188 (233.72%) $ 3,976 (34.13%)

Notes related to Table 3:

A) The earnings for the year to date are $1.8 million, an increase of $3.2 million over the prior
year loss. The following is a discussion of factors influencing the change.

Page 6 of 15



ITEM #

4.1

Halifax Water Board

November 25,

2021

Table 4: Operating Revenues:

Operating Revenues

Budget
2021/22

Notes ‘000

Forecast
2021/22
‘000

YTD
2021/22
‘000

PYTD
2020/21
‘000

From Prior Year
$ Change

% Change $ Change

Budget to Forecast
% Change

B $ 96,518 §
34,003

(1,480)

Consumption revenue
Base charge revenue
Wastewater rebate C

96,595 $
34,017
(1,055)

58,409 $
19,699
(575)

51,258
19,652
(639)

$ 7,151

64 (10.02%)

13.95%

77 0.08%
14 0.04%
425 (28.72%)

Metered sales total

129,041

Stormwater site generated charge
Stormwater right of way

Public fire protection

Private fire protection

Other operating revenue

o

> mm

6,051
3,835
7,628
1,312
2,600

129,557

6,523
3,835
7,628
1,344
2,725

77,533

3,813
2,237
4,449

827
1,558

70,271

10.33% 516

5.71%
0.00%
7.80% -
58.43% 32
39.98% 125

3,607
2,237
4,127

522
1,113

472

0.40%

7.80%
0.00%
0.00%
2.44%
4.81%

$

150,467 _$

151,612 §

90,417 _$

81,877 _§

10.43% $ 1,145

0.76%

Operating revenue total

Notes related to Table 4:

Operating revenues are presented below, broken down by type:

A)
B)

S

D)

E)

F)

Operating revenues have increased $8.5 million as compared to the previous year.

Consumption has increased 0.5% on a volumetric basis compared to the prior year. New
customer connections are on track to exceed budget. The other factor influencing the
increase in consumption revenue of $7.2 million over the prior year is the rate increase for
wastewater discharge effective April 1, 2021 from $1.753 per cubic meter to $2.073 per cubic
meter; and the fact that last year’s consumption was more impacted by COVID-19 with shut-
downs and restrictions for a significant portion of the year.

Consumption by Customer Class (m3)

2021/22 2020/21 m3 Change % Change
Commercial 3,494,390 3,401,342 93,047 2.7%
Industrial 1,216,786 1,115,323 101,464 9.1%
Institutional 2,246,386 2,064,221 182,165 8.8%
Multi-residential 4,491,965 4,297,397 194,569 4.5%
Residential 7,705,657 8,177,198 (471,541) (5.8%)

19,155,185 19,055,481 99,704 0.5%

Wastewater rebate forecast has decrcased $0.4 million compared to budget as annual
requests have been processed for lesser volumes of wastewater discharged into our system
due to the customers operational requirements.

Stormwater site generated charge revenue has been forecast to be $0.5 million more than
budget due to the impervious area satellite imagery update.

Public and private fire protection revenues have increased by a combined $0.6 million from
the prior year due to an approved rate increase effective October 1, 2020.

Other operating revenue has increased $0.4 million over the prior year due to late payment
and interest charges being waived in the prior year as a COVID-19 relief measure ($0.2M),
the introduction of a new meter reading charge to recoup the cost of manual meter reads for
non-AMI meters effective October 1, 2020 ($0.2M), and an increase in drawing review fees
which are dependent upon the level of development activity.

Page 7

of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Table 5: Operating expenditures:

Operating Expenditures

Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecas
Notes ‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Ch
Water supply and treatment B 10,778 § 11,053 $ 6,015 $ 5828 $ 187 3.21% $ 275
Water transmission and distribution C 11,876 11,794 6,790 6,840 (50) (0.73%) (82)
Wastewater collection D 12,604 12,563 8,427 8,043 384 4.77% (41)
Stormwater collection E 5,885 5,323 2,516 2,843 (327) (11.50%) (562)
Wastewater treatment F 22,071 21,510 12,095 11,410 685 6.00% (561)
Engineering and technology senices G 12,931 13,463 6,541 5,377 1,164 21.65% 532
Regulatory senvices H 4,472 4,529 2,554 2,340 214 9.15% 57
Customer senvices | 5,837 5,260 2,746 2,854 (108) (3.78%) (577)
Corporate senices J 3,124 3,336 1,725 98 1,627 1660.20% 212
Administration senvices J 4,928 4,777 2,198 3,232 (1,034) (31.99%) (151)
Depreciation and amortization K 30,873 31,120 16,566 15,342 1,224 7.98% 247
Total operating expenditures A 125,379 $ 124,728 $ 68,173 $ 64,207 $ 3,966 6.18% $ (651)

Notes related to Table 5:

A)
B)

S

D)

E)

Operating expenditures of $68.2 million are $4.0 million higher than the prior year.

Water supply and treatment has increased $0.2 million from prior year due to increases in
salaries and benefits ($86k) relating to new positions, wage rate increases, and an increase in
treatment chemicals ($164k) mostly alum and phosphates relating to the increased dosage
for the Lake Major clarifier project. Lead service line replacement costs also increased
($189Kk) due to new program to pay for the private portion of service line replacements in the
current year offset by a decrease in costs relating to lagoon cleaning in the prior year ($97k)
and equipment repairs ($146k) relating to a pump failure in prior year. Water supply and
treatment has forecasted an increase of $0.3 million due to an increased demand for
phosphate as the dose is planned to double to facilitate the Lake Major clarifier project in
addition to the reallocation of one position from small systems.

Water transmission and distribution is comparable to prior year. Salaries and benefits have
decreased ($120k) offset by increases in vehicle cost allocation ($37k) which is dependent
upon vehicle usage, and an increase in traffic control costs ($114k) due to an increase in
activity over the prior year resulting from COVID-19 delays. Other categories with offsetting
costs include an increase in hired equipment costs ($100k) and an increase in lead service
line costs ($65k) due to the cost of modelling where lead service lines exist offset by a
decrease in vehicle and equipment costs.

Wastewater collection has increased $0.4 million from prior year due to increases in salaries
and benefits (§137k) based on the allocation of time between wastewater and stormwater
services, increase in vehicle cost allocation ($67k) which is dependent upon usage, and an
increase in traffic control costs ($128k) due to an increase in activity as compared to the prior
year. Prior year was lower as a result of COVID-19 delays.

Stormwater collection has decreased $0.3 million from prior year due to decreases in salaries
and benefits ($218k) based on the allocation of time between wastewater and stormwater
services, decrease in contract services ($150k) relating mainly to emergency repairs for the
Pier A combined sewer overflow (CSO) in the prior year, offset by an increase in traffic
control costs ($36k) due to an increased focus on activities that reduce staff contact during
COVID-19, and an increase in vehicle cost allocation ($113k) which is dependent upon
usage. Stormwater collection is forecasted to decrease $0.6 million based on reduced costs
being experienced in expenditure categories such as contract services and traffic control, and
associated reduction in wages and overtime.

Page 8 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

F) Wastewater treatment has increased $0.7 million from prior year due to increases in salaries
and benefits ($217k) relating to new positions and wage rate increases, increases in chemicals
($228k) mostly polymer due to price increases and sodium hypochlorite due to a dry summer
requiring more use of the chemical to reduce odors, increase in consulting costs ($128k) for
Dalhousie research project due to reduced activity in prior year due to COVID-19, and an
increase in biosolids treatment costs ($294k) due in part to higher volumes being processed.
The cost increases are offset by a decrease in tools and equipment purchases ($170k) mainly
relating to UV light purchases in the prior year. Wastewater treatment is forecasted to
decrease $0.6 million partially due to lower flows being experienced at the treatment plants,
resulting in lower treatment costs and usage costs for chemicals such as alum.

G) Engineering and technology services have increased $1.2 million from prior year due to
increases in salaries and benefits ($324k) relating to new positions and wage rate increases,
and an increase in consulting costs ($376k) mainly relating to information technology (IT)
initiatives as well as disaster recovery planning consulting. Increases are also attributed to
new Microsoft Azure licenses ($242k) which have been included in the revised forecast, and
other software licenses for the new VIP payroll system. A new storage area network ($72k)
was also purchased in the current year. Engineering and technology services are forecasted
to increase $0.5 million due to the need for Microsoft Azure licenses, a higher subscription
rate by customers for the customer portal than budgeted, and a net new hire in the information
services department.

H) Regulatory Services have increased $0.2 million mainly due to increases in salaries and
benefits ($132k) relating to wage rate increases along with an increase in water quality testing
($58k) due to additional required tests for algae and PFOS/PFOA (perfluorooctane
sulfonate/perfluorooctanoic acid).

I) Corporate services, customer services and administration services have increased $0.5
million from the prior year mainly due to increases in salaries and benefits ($464k) relating
to new positions and wage rate increases. Other increases include, training and assessment
costs ($50k) due to more availability of courses compared to prior year when there were
many COVID-19 cancellations, the fitness incentive program ($34k) as more facilities have
opened post COVID-19 closures, insurance policy premiums ($112k), subscription costs for
the Ttron Analytics software ($62k), and an increase in legal services ($88k). These increases
are offset by decreases in bad debt expense ($41k), vehicle allocations ($80k), and regulatory
costs ($275k) mainly due to the RDC and water and wastewater rate applications in the prior
year. Corporate services are forecasted to increase $0.2 million due to an updated estimate
for insurance policy premiums. Customer services are forecasted to decrease by $0.6 million,
which is attributed to deferring implementation of the monthly customer billing project to
the 2022/23, resulting in savings of approximately $0.7 million. This decrease has been offset
by increases in other expenditure categories, most notably subscription costs, which are
forecasted to increase $0.1 million and not previously budgeted.

J) Depreciation and amortization have increased $1.2 million as a result of additions to utility
plant in service and intangibles. Depreciation and amortization are forecasted to increase $0.2
million due to an updated estimate for total assets to be capitalized during the year.

Page 9 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Table 6: Operating Expenditures by Nature:
Operating Expenditures by Nature
2021/22 2020/21
Notes '000 '000 $ Change % Change
Salaries and benefits A $ 25,348 $ 24,425 $ 923 3.64%
Training 227 197 30 13.07%
Contract senices B 7,374 6,673 702 9.51%
Electricity 3,959 3,902 58 1.46%
Operating supplies C 6,796 6,312 484 7.13%
Professional senices D 3,387 2,995 392 11.57%
Chemicals E 3,777 3,407 369 9.78%
Depreciation on assets allocated
to departments F 738 954 (216) (29.27%)
Depreciation and amortization F 16,566 15,342 1,224 7.39%
$ 68,173 $ 64,207 $ 3,966 5.82%

Notes related to Table 6:
Operating expenditures of $68.2 million are $4.0 million higher than the prior year.

Compared to the prior year, expenditure types with the largest changes in costs are:
A) Salaries and benefits increase of $0.9 million is due to wage rate increases and new positions,
offset by several retirements.

B) Contract services increase of $0.7 million is due to an increase in traffic control services and
hired equipment relating to an increase in activity post COVID-19 along with an increase in
biosolids treatment due to higher volume being sent for processing at third-party facility.

C) Operating supplies increase of $0.5 million is due mainly to Engineering and technology
services cost increases relating to software licenses, network costs, and equipment purchases.

D) Professional services increase of $0.4 million is due to higher consulting costs as discussed
under the Notes related to Table 5.

E) Chemicals increase of $0.4 million is due mainly to price increases and greater usage of
certain chemicals.

F) Depreciation increase of $1.0 million is due to additions to utility plant in service.

Table 7: Operating Results by Service:

Operating Results by Service
Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Water $ (5,221) $ (3,925) $ 449 $ 1,589 $ (1,140) (71.74%) $ 1,296 (24.82%)
Wastewater (1,517) (276) 2,038 (2,181) 4,219 (193.44%) 1,241 (81.81%)
Stormwater (4,912) (3,473) (663) (772) 109 (14.12%) 1,439 (29.30%)
Earnings (loss) $ (11,650) $ (7,674) $ 1,824 § (1,364) $ 3,188 (233.72%) $ 3,976 (34.13%)

The results in Table 7 are explained in more detail in Tables 8 to 10.

Page 10 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Table 8: Operating Results by Service — Water:

Operating Results by Service - Water

Budget Forecast YTD PYTD

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast

Notes '000 '000 '000 '000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Operating revenues AS 58,213 § 58,502 $ 34,815 § 33,617 $ 1,198 3.56% § 289 0.50%
Operating expenditures B 48,638 49,156 26,569 24,821 1,748 7.04% 518 1.07%
Earnings (loss) from operations 9,575 9,346 8,246 8,796 (550) (6.25%) (229) (2.39%)
Financial and other revenues 495 512 296 329 (33) (10.03%) 17 3.43%
Financial and other expenditures c 15,291 13,783 8,093 7,536 557 7.39% (1,508) (9.86%)
(Loss) earnings for the year $ (5,221) $ (3,925) $ 449§ 1,589 (1,140) (71.74%) 1,296 (24.82%)

Water services earnings has decreased from the prior year by $1.1 million due to the following factors:

A) Operating revenues increase of $1.2 million is attributable to the following:

i. Increase in base charges and consumption as a result of new customers.
ii. Increase in fire protection revenues of $0.6 million as a result of a rate
increase effective October 1, 2020.
iii. Increase in late payment fees of $0.1 million as prior year fees were

waived for part of the year as a result of COVID-19 relief measures.

B) Increase in operating expenditures of $1.7 million as discussed previously
including increases in salaries from wage rate increases and depreciation.

C) Increase in financial and other expenditures of $0.6 million due to higher debt
servicing costs and the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes.

Table 9: Operating Results by Service — Wastewater:

Operating Results by Service - Wastewater
Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
Notes '000 '000 '000 ‘000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Operating revenues AS 82,167 $ 82,565 $ 49,422 $ 42,356 $ 7,066 16.68% $ 398 0.48%
Operating expenditures B 64,837 64,286 36,475 34,138 2,337 6.85% (551) (0.85%)
Earnings (loss) from operations 17,330 18,279 12,947 8,218 4,729 57.54% 949 5.48%
Financial and other revenues 196 187 7 120 (43) (35.83%) 9) (4.59%)
Financial and other expenditures c 19,043 18,742 10,986 10,519 467 4.44% (301) (1.58%)
Earnings (loss) for the year $ (1,517) § (276) $ 2,038 _$ (2,181) 4,219 (193.44%) 1,241 (81.81%)

Wastewater services earnings of $2.0 million have increased from the prior year by $4.2 million due to

the following factors:

A) Operating revenues increase of $7.1 million is attributable to the following:

i.  Increase in the wastewater discharge rate from $1.753 to $2.073 effective

April 1, 2021.

ii.  Increase in late payment fees of $90k as prior year fees were waived for

part of the year as a result of COVID-19 relief measures.
Increase in miscellaneous revenues of $0.1 million mainly due to new
meter reading fee allocated between water and wastewater services.

1.

B) Increase in operating expenditures of $2.3 million as discussed previously
including increases in salaries from wage rate increases and depreciation.

C) Increase in financial and other expenditures of $0.5 million due to higher debt

servicing costs and the new dividend/grant in licu of taxes on wastewater assets.

Page 11 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Table 10: Operating Results by Service — Stormwater:
Operating Results by Service - Stormwater
Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
Notes '000 '000 '000 ‘000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Operating revenues AS 10,087 $ 10,545 $ 6,180 §$ 5904 §$ 276 4.67% $ 458 4.54%
Operating expenditures B 11,904 11,286 5,129 5,248 (119) (2.27%) (618) (5.19%)
Earnings (loss) from operations (1,817) (741) 1,051 656 395 60.21% 1,076 (59.22%)
Financial and other revenues 31 15 10 23 (13) (56.52%) (16) (51.61%)
Financial and other expenditures [+ 3,126 2,747 1,724 1,451 273 18.81% (379) (12.12%)
Loss for the year $ (4,912) $ (3,473) $ (663) $ (772) 109 (14.12%) 1,439 (29.30%)

Stormwater services loss of $0.7 million has decreased from the prior year by $0.1 million due to the
following factors:

A) Increase of $0.2 million in site generated revenue due to satellite imagery update
and an increase in late payment fees of $51k as prior year fees were waived for part
of the year as a result of COVID-19 relief measures.

B) Decrease in operating expenditures of $0.1 million mainly due to decreases in
salaries and benefits as resources are allocated between wastewater and stormwater
collection offset by an increase in depreciation.

C) Increase in financial and other expenditures of $0.3 million due to higher debt
servicing costs and the new dividend/grant in lieu of taxes on stormwater assets.

Table 11: Financial and other revenues:

Financial and other revenues
Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
Notes '000 '000 '000 '000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Interest A$ 173§ 135 § 95 § 149 $ (54) (36.24%) $ (38) (28.15%)
Other B 549 579 288 323 (35) (10.84%) 30 5.46%
Total financial and other revenue $ 722 $ 714§ 383 § 472§ (89) (18.86%) $ 8) (1.11%)

Notes related to Table 11:
A) Interest is lower than the prior year due to a decrease in interest rates.

B) Other revenues include various un-regulated activities such as tower lease revenues,
energy generation revenues, consulting activities and contracted service revenues.

Table 12: Financial and other expenditures:

Financial and other expenditures
Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
Notes '000 '000 '000 '000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Interest on long term debt B $ 7,603 $ 6,824 $ 4,158 $ 4229 $ (71) (1.68%) $ (779) (11.42%)
Repayment on long term debt B 22,716 21,559 12,558 11,845 713 6.02% (1,157) (5.09%)
Amortization of debt discount B 258 229 133 122 1" 9.02% (29) (11.24%)
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes [ 6,837 6,626 3,866 3,282 584 17.79% (211) (3.09%)
Other 46 34 88 28 60 214.29% (12) (26.09%)
Total financial and other expenditures AS 37,460 $ 35272 $ 20,803 $ 19,506 $ 1,297 6.65% $ (2,188) (5.84%)

Notes related to Table 12:

A) Financial and other expenditures have increased $1.3 million over the prior year
mainly due to an increase in long term debt payments due to the acquisition of new
debt and an increase in the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes due to additions to utility
plant in service and a dividend of 0.25% on wastewater and stormwater rate based
assets, effective October 1, 2020.

Page 12 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

B) Long term debt appropriation expenditures (interest, repayment, and amortization)
are forecast to decrease $2.0 million due to the budgeted debt issuance for this fiscal
year being higher than actual debt acquired.

C) Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes has been forecast to decrease $0.2 million due to
lower capital additions as at March 31, 2021 which drives the basis for the dividend.

Table 13: Debt Servicing by Service:

Debt Servicing by Service
2021/22 2020/21
Notes '000 '000 $ Change % Change

Water Senvices

Interest on long term debt $ 1,243 $ 1,182 $ 61 5.2%

Repayment on long term debt 3,388 3,089 299 9.7%

Amortization of debt discount 47 42 5 11.9%
Total debt servicing cost - water services AS$ 4,678 $ 4,313 § 365 8.5%
Wastewater Senvices

Interest on long term debt $ 2,485 $ 2,647 $ (162) (6.1%)

Repayment on long term debt 7,969 7,726 243 3.1%

Amortization of debt discount 73 70 3 4.3%
Total debt servicing cost - wastewater services B $ 10,527 $ 10,443 $ 84 0.8%
Stormwater Senices

Interest on long term debt $ 430 $ 400 $ 30 7.5%

Repayment on long term debt 1,201 1,030 171 16.6%

Amortization of debt discount 13 10 3 30.0%
Total debt servicing cost - stormwater services cC$ 1,644 $ 1,440 $ 204 14.2%

Notes related to Table 13:

A) Water debt servicing costs of $4.7 million have increased $0.4 million from the prior
year as a result of $22.0 million in new debt.

B) Wastewater debt servicing costs of $10.5 million have increased $0.1 million from
the prior year as a result of $13.4 million in new debt.

C) Stormwater debt servicing costs of $1.6 million have increased $0.2 million from the
prior year as a result of $9.6 million in new debt.

Table 14: Operating Results by Activity:

Operating Results by Activity
Budget Forecast YTD PYTD
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
Notes '000 '000 '000 '000 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Regulated activities AS (12,175) $ (8,286) $ 1,685 $ (1,863) $ 3,448 (185.08%) $ 3,889 (31.94%)
Unregulated activities B 525 612 239 499 (260) (52.10%) 87 16.57%
Earnings (loss) $ (11,650) $ (7,674) $ 1,824 § (1,364) $ 3,188 (233.72%) $ 3,976 (34.13%)

Notes related to Table 14:

A) Regulated activities earnings have increased from the prior year loss by $3.4
million due to the factors as previously explained.

B) Unregulated activities earnings of $0.2 million have decreased $0.3 million from
the prior year due to an increase in operating costs for the leachate and dewatering
facilities.

Page 13 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Results under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as compared to NSUARB
Handbook

As a rate regulated utility, the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) requires Halifax Water, to report
financial results using IFRS. The NSUARB requires Halifax Water to report in accordance with the
NSUARB Handbook. Table 15 below reconciles the results between IFRS and the NSUARB Handbook:

Table 15: Reconciliation IFRS to NSUARB:

Reconcile IFRS to NSUARB
2021/22 2020/21
Notes '000 '000
IFRS comprehensive earnings $ 6,066 $ 3,081
Add non-cash pension expense A 8,034 5,953
Subtract debt principal payments B (12,558) (11,845)
Add depreciation expense on contributed assets C 10,808 10,962
Subtract amortization of contributed capital Cc (10,808) (10,962)
Add various depreciation adjustments D 282 1,447
NSUARB earnings (loss) $ 1,824 $ (1,364)

Notes related to Table 15:
Operating revenues are the same under both IFRS and the NSUARB Handbook.

The main differences relate to reporting requirements surrounding the recognition of various expenditures
as follows:

A) Non-cash pension expense represents the accrual of unpaid contributions to the
pension plan and is not considered an expense for NSUARB Handbook reporting
purposes.

B) The principal payments on long term debt are recognized as an expense for
NSUARB Handbook reporting purposes but are not an expense under IFRS.

C) Depreciation expense on contributed assets is not an expense for NSUARB
Handbook purposes, however, it is offset by the removal of the amortization of
contributed capital. IFRS requires contributed capital to be treated as a long term
liability and amortized, resulting in higher long term liabilities and lower equity on
the statement of financial position.

D) The various depreciation adjustments include the add back of gains on the disposal
of utility plant in service and IFRS requires componentization of assets and shorter
useful lives resulting in higher depreciation than under NSUARB Handbook
reporting.

Page 14 of 15



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Table 16: Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings (IFRS):
Summarized Comprehensive Earnings
2021/22 2020/21
Notes '000 '000 $ Change % Change
Operating revenues AS 90,417 $ 81,877 §$ 8,540 10.4%
Operating expenditures B 88,004 82,380 5,624 6.8%
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 2,413 (503) 2,916 (579.7%)
Financial and other revenues 11,191 11,435 (244) (2.1%)
Financial and other expenditures C 7,346 7,659 (313) (4.1%)
Total comprehensive earnings for the year $ 6,066 $ 3,081 $ 2,985 96.9%

Notes related to Table 16:

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings are as follows:

A) Operating revenues of $90.4 million are $8.5 million higher than the prior year.

B)

O

Attachments
Attachment 1:

Details have been discussed in preceding pages.

Operating expenditures of $88.0 million are $5.6 million higher than the prior year.
This is primarily the result of the following factors:

a. Increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $0.8 million as a result
of additions to utility plant in service.

b. Increase in accrued pension expense of $2.1 million as a result of the actuarial
extrapolation at year end, resulting in a higher estimate for this current fiscal
year.

Financial and other expenditures have decreased $0.3 million from the prior year.
This is a result of gains on sale of both land and vehicle assets.

Operating Results for October 31, 2021

Attachment 2:  Vendor Spend Report to October 31, 2021
Al |C|a g::galltﬁcl)lr): signed by Alicia
Report prepared by: Scallion 5255540

Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA
Manager, Accounting (902) 497-9785

Page 15 of 15




%8} 08e‘9Z $ _zie'vev't $ ei9'lev'L  $ ezsO'vsvL  $

%60 9r6'lL 8.1'€02 08.°202 921602
%Z'T 9/L'G 09¥°'c€e zeT'vee 80¥'6£2 sn|dins paje|nWNody
%ZCh (ogz'e) (z89'62) (zsv'9e) (z89'62) SSO| 8AISUBYIdWOD JBYJO Pajenunody
Aynbg
%02 YEV' v ¥£6'022°L Z68'612'L 9zE' vl saulliqel] [ejo L
%081 80G'ZL 96.'¢. 90£'69 718'18 uonebijqo yeuaq eahojdw3
(%5°0) (6£0°1L) 901'¥0Z ¥80°€LZ S¥0'ZLe 198p wus) buoT
%t L Geg'LL 916'c88 9/0'9/8 L16'288 [eydeo psjnguuod paueseq
%8 L 0kl 91.'8S 9Z¥'1L9 965'29
%G8 Ly 19G €0Z'S ¥¥9'G anuaAel pauiesun
%8’ | G/E 65502 v8LLe 68512 19ep wue} Buo jo uoipod Jusiny
%9°0 z6 08S'vL 88y vl 08S'vL [endes pajnquuod pawisyep jo uoiod Jusund
(%0°9) (P¥1) GLl'Z 18€°C eve'e sysodap JaWwo}snd pue I0joBHUOD
(%9°1) () G90' 6Y.LC 60T 19ep wue} Buoj uo 1seisiu|
%69 8lLe z61'9 909'f vZ6'y 8peuj-UoN
%60 z6 v9'CL 608°0L L06'0L epell
S|enidooe pue w®_5m>mn_
usuungd
%8'L 08£'9Z $ zie'ver'L $ zi9°lTHL  $ ZSOvSY'L  $ junoooe |eudyep Aloje|nBai pue sjesse |ejo)
(%1°2) (z61) 029'C L0L'C 60G°C junoooe [ewsyep Aiojeinboy
%6 L 2.56'92 z69'L2¥'L LL6'YEY'L VS LSYL sjesse [ej0 ]
(%10 (80L°1) €82'08¢2" | 1692GZ'L €8G'162'L soinies uljueld Ayinn
%6°9) €16, 806'0¢ 1BL'9Y ¥0.'vS ssa1604d u sqom [eyded
%08 62yl 88G°'0¢ 9z6'L1L GGE'BL sjesse s|qiBue|
%0° L) 8ce'8l £16'68 £9G'201 L06'G2L
%9°€G ) €161 045} G86 86Y'C spiedaid
(%6°1) (zy) €002 ez 68L'C Aiopueauj
(%€°16) (262°1) L'z ozl €zl Anjedioiunpy jeuoibey xeylieH
%E" 0 020°C avz'sl 129'61 1¥9'Le SanuaAal 80IAI8S pa|liqun
%ET €8¢ GGL'LL LEL'9L vLL'LL [enoeuod pue sebieyo siswolsny
S9|gqeAladay
%L €T 192'GL $ gzz'sy $ 69599 $ o0ge'es $ sjusjeainbs yseo pue yseo
usung
sjassy
abueyd % abueyd ¢ 1202 020z 1202 (spuesnoyy uy) Lg 180300
Jead) IoLid wod4 L€ yotepn

(spuesnoy} u1) 1Z0z ‘L€ ¥390100
Syl - NOILISOd TVIONVNI4 40 INJWILVLS a3LIdnvNN
HALYM XVHITVH

6 0 | abed
I INJIWNHOVLLVY

1202 ‘GZ JaquidnoN
pleog Jajepn XeyljeH

L'y # INTLI



%8896 G86'C $ (%60°219) (€86) $ 180°c $ 9909 $ 1eak ay) 1oy (ssoj) sBuluses anisuayaidwod |ejoy

(%60°v) (€1€) %28 6V L'yl 659°L 9¥e‘L
(%E£T'6128) (2£8) (%¥0°€921) oy 9z (118) Yo
%BL L) 85 %SGS°9G 1£8°9 z82'c 998'¢c sexe} Jo na|| ul jueib/puspiAig
%206 Ll %GG LS 8GZ zzl £el JUNOOSIP 1G8P JO UOHBZILOWY
(%89'1) (12) %69 ¥ £09°L 622t 8GL'y 1gep wus} Buoj uo jsaleiu]|
ww..::v:wnxw J9Y}0 pue jeioueuly
(%g1°2) (yve) %02 9. 989'v1 A L6L L1
[CATET) (9¢) %9%'2S 6YG vze 882 J8yi0
(%01°1) (¥S1) %0V LL ¥96°¢cl 296'01 808°0) [ended penguuod JO UoleZIHowY
(%¥Z9¢) (¥9) %L6¥S €Ll 6¥) G6 1salau|
S9NUdAaI J19YJ0 pue |eidueulq
(%L5°61¥) 916°C (%L1 0¥2) (sze) (569) 1zze sainypuadxa pue SaNUdAaJ JdY}o pue
|eloueuly alojaq suoljesado wouy (ssoj) sbuluieg
%189 ¥29'S %9285 Z6E°LS1 z.528 96188
%68°C 108 %69°€9 LE8' VY vG1'1Z GGS'8Z uonezijowe pue uoneiosideq
%96 7€ 180'C %89'99 670°C) £G6°G ¥€0'8 S9OIAIBS UOIsUad
(%66°1€) (P€0‘1L) %09 ¥ 826t zeT'e 861°C $80IAIS UolRISIUIWLPY
%02 099} 129°) %ZZ'GS vZL'e 86 Gzl seoInIes 81el0dio)
(%82°¢) (s01) %0 LY 1£8'G ¥68'C LT S9IAISS JBWOo}SND
%516 712 %L1°LS LYY ove'e ¥55°C seoinles Aloje|nbay
%S9’ L2 oL %8S 0G LE6'Z) LLE'G L¥G 9 seoines ABojouyos) pue Bunssuibuzg
%009 G89 %08 S 1202 oLv'LL S60°CL Juswieal] Jejemalsep)
(%05°L 1) (22¢) %SL'ZY G88'S £v8'z 9152 Uo1308||00 J8JeMULIO}S
%LL'Y 8¢ %98°99 709°C ) ev0'8 12¥'8 uono8||09 JSJeMBISE AN
(%€£2°0) (09) %LL'LG 9/8'11 0¥8'9 0619 UoNQISIP pue UOISSIWSUE} JSJEAN
A /8 %18'GS 8..°01L 8Z8'S G109 juswiesy} pue Ajddns Jeyepn
sainyipuadxs Bunesado
%Ey 01 0¥S‘s %6009 L9v°0S1 11818 L1Y°06
%86°6E Shy %26 65 009°C el 8GG'| anuaae Bunesedo Jayi0
%EY 85 S0¢ %€0°€9 zLe'l 2zs 128 uonosjoud 8l 8jeAlld
%08 zze %ZE 8G 829°, 2Ly S ad uonosjoud auyy o1jand
%2S°¢ 902 %0219 9886 7¥8's 0G0°9 Jelemuwio)s
%.G°91 8069 %.2°09 81908 Z89'LY 065'8Y lelemalsen
%¥Z ) ¥G€ $ %LL'6S £Zr'ey $ 68582 $ ¢ev6'8C $ le1ep
sanuaaai Bupesado
abueyd % abuey) § 13oang 000. 000. 000.
Jea) Jold woi4 jo o, se 13oang UV3A 1SV UVIA SIHL
J1VA OL ¥VIA 1Z/1LE dVIN 31va Ol ¥vaA
IVNLOV 0Z/1 ¥dv IVNLOV

%€€'8G :313TdINOD I1VA OL ¥VIA TVNLOV
(SHLNOIN ) 1202 ‘1€ 439010 - 1202 ‘I 1ddV
S¥4I - SIDIAYIS TV - SONINYVI JAISNIHIVANOD ANV SONINYVYI 40 LNIFWILVLS a3LIaNvYNN
YILVM XVHITVH
6 40 g abed



%02 602°62 $ 096°2SY‘L $ 6S8°6SP'L $ 890°68Y‘L $ Aynbs pue saniiger) jeyoL
%L1 968'ZL 6L0'7GL') 620'0GL') GZ6'29L') Ajnba |ejo |
(%2'€€2) 88l°¢c (c88'6) (#9€'1) 28l sainjipuadxe J8A0 senusAal Jo AousioleQ
%00 0 08e‘zL 08e'zL 08e‘zL [ended puny o} pesn snidins Bupesedo
(%6°01) (9z9'1) 906°LY 0z9'zY ¥66°LE snjdins Buiesado pajeinwinooy
%E’L vee'yl 919'c0L't £6£'960'} LZL0LL'L snjdins |eydeo pejenwnooy
fAinbg
%E'G cLeol L¥6°€0E 0£8°60€ £¥1°92¢ senlliqel| [ejo 1
%8'2E vLE'9L 669°GS 80861 2z1'99 suolNqLIuod pausseq
(%G°0) (6€0°1) 901L'¥0Z ¥80°cLZ sy0Cle 19op wis} buoT
%Z 2T 8€0°L 9eL vy 8£6'9Y 9/6'Ly
%SG'8 Loy 19G €0Z'S ¥¥9'G anusAel pautesun
%8’L GlE 65502 v8LLe 65S°LC 19ep wue) Buoy o uoipod usuny
(%09) (¥1) GLL'Z 18€'C vz sysodap JBWo}sno pue J0JoeU0D
(%9°1) (1) 590 6Y.LC 50.°C 1g8p wusy Buoj uo jsaleiu]
%69 8Le z61'9 909't vZ6'y 8peJI-uoN
%60 z6 vzl 60801 L0601 epelL
s|eniode pue mw_Q_w>mn_
wusuund
%0°Z 602'62 $ 09625¥L $ 6S8°6SFL $ 890°68F°L $ junodoe |esssyep Aioje|nbai pue sjesse |ejo |
(%1°2) (z61) 029'C 102 60G'C Junoooe |eussep Alojeinbey
%02 LOY'62 0ve'SSY'L 8GL'/GY'L 6GG'98Y'L sjesse [ejo |
%20 0SL'e 6LG'PEe’L #08'20€"} ¥G6'G0E' L 8oinues uljueld Apn
%691 eL6'L 806'0¢ 1691 ¥0.L'¥S ssaiboid ur yiom [eyded
%0°LL 8ce'sl £16'68 £9G'/01L L06'GZL
%9°€G1 cLg'L 045"t G86 86%'C spiedaid
(%6°1) (zy) £00°C Le2'C 68LC WOUENT]]
(%€°16) (262°1) L'z ozv'L ezl Ayjedioluny jeuoibey xeyeH
%E 0L 020 ozl 12961 Lv9'Le sanusAal 80IAIBS Pa|liqun
%E'T €8¢ GGL'ZL LeL'9lL vLL'LL [enjoe3U0D pue sebieyo Jewoisny
S9|JEAISORY
%L'ET 19L'GL $ 8zz'8y $ 69599 $ o0gez8 $ sjue|eAInbe yseo pue ysen
wusuund
s}ossy
abuey) v abueyd § 1202 0202 1202 (spuesnoy} ui) Lg 1890300
Jea) Jolid wodd L€ yote

6 J0 ¢ abed

(spuesnoy} u1) LZ0Z ‘L€ ¥390100
gyVNSN - NOILISOd TVIONVNIH 40 LNJWILV.LS a3LianvNn

A LVM XVHITVH



(%EL'vE) 9.6t $ (%LL°€21) 86v°6 $  (%ezLeee) 88L'E $ (%LL°€2) (%99°G1) (r29°2) $ (059°1L) $ (v9e'L) $ vze'L $ 1eak ayj 1oy (sso)) sBuiutes
(%18'S) (881°2) (%20°L¥) (69r°vL) %59°9 162°) %86°'8S %EG'SS zL2'se 09v'LE 905'6L £08'02
(%60°92) (z1) %2885 L v %62 71T 09 %Z8'852 %0€ 161 vE 9 4 88 Jayio
(%60°€) (11e) (%59' 1Y) (092'2) %6L LL 785 %GE'8S %595 9z9'9 1£8'9 z82'e 998'c SXe} JO Nal| Ul JuelB/puspIng
(%¥T1L) (62) (%26°LY) (96) %206 [ %80°'85 %GS'LS 622 85C 44" €el 1UNoDSIP 1Gap JO UoHEZILOWY
(%60°G) (281°1) (%SL'Ly) (L00'6) %209 €LL %585 %8C'GS 655°1C alL'ze Sv8'LL 855°C) 198p wis) Buoj uo Juswhedey
(%5z0L) (622) (%L0°6€) (999'2) (%89'1) (12) %€6'09 %6975 ¥28'9 €09'L 622"y 85L'y 198p wia} Buoj uo Jsaseu|
wch:—_—u:m-n_xc A3Yj0 pue |eldueul4
(%L1 (8) (%9€9v) (1€€) (%98°81) (68) %V9'€S %S0°'€S Vil [473 zly €8¢
%9%'G 0€ (%92°08) (162) (%v8°0L) (g€) %vL 6y %9%'2S 6.5 675 €z€ 88T Jayl0
(%L6'12) (8¢€) (%£9'62) (ov) (%¥Z9€) (8) %L€ 0L %1675 Gel €Ll 671 g6 Jsaseu|
SanuaAal Jay}o pue |eloueulq
%9L"L 96L°L (%9Z°21) (ov9'p) %68'SZ viSY %bL'28 %99°'88 ¥88'92 880'52 029°LL vve'ze saunjipuadxa pue saNuUaAal Jayjo pue
|eloueuly a1oyaq suoljesado wouy sbujuies
(%25°0) (159) (%¥esY) (555°98) %81L°9 996'¢ %99'VS %LE VS 8zZL¥ZL 6LE'GZL 2029 €189
%080 v (%L22°9%) (G5'v1) %86°L vzl %ET €S %99'€S 0zlle €/8°0€ Zre'st 995°91 uonezipowe pue uoneoaidaq
(%90°€) (151) (%66°€S) (625'2) (%66'1€) (v€0°'L) %10'9% %09 vy 1LY 826'y zez'e 86T S9IAIBS UONENSIUIPY
%6L'9 [4%4 (%62°8%) (119'1) %02 0991 129°L P%lLl'LG %2C GG 9ee'e yZL'e 86 szL'L so0IMBs Bjes0dio)
(%68'6) (229) (%6LLY) (r15'2) (%8L°€) (801) %1TTS %¥0'Ly 092's 1£8'S ¥58'C LT S9OIAIBS JaWOISND
%lT L 1S (%19°€¥) (526'1) %516 4% %6€ 95 Polbl'LS 625"y L'y ove's ¥55°C saolnes AlojeinBoy
Poll'y [43] (%1¥19) (z26'9) %59'LT y9L°L %65 8% %850S €9v'EL LEB'TL LL€'S L¥S'9 saoies ABojouyos) pue Bunesuibuy
(%¥5°2) (199) (%LL€Y) (SLv'6) %009 589 %ET 9G %08 7S 0L5'ie L.0'ce oL¥'LL G60°Zh jusLIjEaI} JOJEMBISEA
(%55°6) (z99) (%€L29) (£08'2) (%05"11) (Lzg) WlT Ly %SL'TY €2€'s §88's £V8'T 95 UO03]|00 JSJEMULIOIS
(%€€°0) (1) (%26°2€) (9gL'y) WLl ¥8€ %80°L9 %98'99 €95°C1 ¥09'ZL £10'8 lTv'8 U01}09)|00 JSJEMaISEA
(%690) (z8) (%EVTY) (700'S) (%€2°0) (09) %LG'LS PLL'LS YBL L 9/8'LL 0v8'9 06L'9 uoNNQUISIP PUE UOISSILUSUEL) JBJEAN
%55C Sz (%85°G¥) (8€0'G) %lT€ /81 %Zh vS %18'GS €50°}1 8LL'0L 8z8's GL0'9 jusLuieal) pue Addns Jeje
saJn}jipuadxa BunesadQ
%920 SpL°L (%9€°0v) (561°19) %EV 0L ors'8 %V9'6S %60°09 ZL9°LSL L9v°0SL 11818 LLY'06
%92 T L 9/ (%G€9€) (es2) %90°€8 L0z %G9'€9 %Sy 1L 969 0z9 e 324 Snoaue|jeosIy
(%6€°9) (9€) (%eLTY) (zze) %EE 80V S %.8'LS P%LL'VS 125 €95 09 S0€ $99) UOIJ08UUI0D JBYI0 pue juswied ajen
%009 g8 (%20°9%) (z69) (%z1°0) ) %E6'ES %9L°LG 205°L L'l L8 0L8 S99 pUe SRDIAIBS JBYIO
%9€'0 ze (%61°1¥) (969'¢) %6¥'€L 129 %1885 %2069 z.6'8 0v6'8 69"y 9/2's (2181 pUE ogNnd) uonoajold a4
%000 0 (%29'L¥) (865°1) %000 0 %EE '8G %EE '8G Geg'e Geg'e 1£2°T 1£2°T 801M18s ABM JO 1yBU JajeMuLIolS
%08'L (434 (%8S 1¥) (0LL'2) %ll'G 90z %S85 %10°€9 €25'9 150’9 £09't €18'¢ 90IAISS PajeIoUsD B)iS JOJEMULIO)S
%570 L9e (%00°0%) (68€'ZE) %LG'9L 806'9 %0009 %.C'09 6.6'08 81908 289°LY 065'8Y JojEMBISEN
%2E0 eie] $  (%eyop) (5e9'61) $ %vT L ¥5€ $ %8565 %LL'6S 8.5'8y $ ezv'sy $ 685'8C $ €v6'8C $ 1ol
sanuaAai BunesadQ
abueyd % abuey § luteway % luteway § abueyd % abuey § 1SVD3¥04 139ang 000. 000. 000. 000.
Jsedauo4 o} 1obpng Jsedau04 0} [enjoy Jea Jold woug 40 % se 40 % se 1SV23¥04 139ang ¥V3IA LSV ¥VIA SIHHL
31VA OL ¥VIA FLVA OL¥VIA LZ/LE UVIN LZ/LE ¥VIN 31va OL ¥V3IA
IVNLOV IVNLOV 0zZ/L ¥dV 0zZ/L ¥dV IVNLOVY
%€€8G :313TdNOD JLVA OL ¥VIA TVNLOV
(SHLNOW 2) L20Z ‘L€ ¥380LDO0 - LZOZ ‘L THdV
GYVNSN - SIOIAYIS 11V - SONINYVI 40 LNIWILVLS a3LIANVYNN

6 J0 ¥ abedq

YIALVM XV4ITVH



(%e8've) 9621 (%Pp 1L vLE'Y (%¥L12) (o1 $ (%bv' 1) (%09°8) (526°€) $ (1zz's) $ 685’} $ 6vy $ 1eak ay} 1o} (ssoj) sbujuies
(%98°6) (805°1) (%8Z°1¥) (069°5) %6€ L 155 %ZL 85 %€6°2S €8L°EL 162°GL 9€G°L £60°8
%00 05 8 %L9 LT 85 %05 2Ly 99 %L9°LVE %05°Z1S ve 9l 9l 28 IEe)
(%95°2) (051) (%991 v) (08€°2) %E6'E 9zl %VE8G %G8°9G €LL'S €98°G L0z'e €ge’e SOXE} JO N8|l Ul JueIB/puspiaig
(%00°61) (61) (%86°Lv) (v€) %06} S %2085 %00°Ly 18 004 zy Ly JUNOJSIP 198P JO UOHEZILOWY
(%9r°Th) (r€8) (%0z°er) (rL¥'2) %896 662 %08°LS %0905 298G 969°9 680°¢ 88€'c 198p wus} buoj uo Juswhedey
(%19°61) (1) (%68°0v) (098) %91L°G 19 %1165 %2S LY €0LT 919 z8L°L 37 199p wiey Buoj uo jseseu|
mO.:._«_vconxo 1340 pue jepueuly
%EV'E L} (%6127 (912) (%€E0°04) (eg) %18°LS %08°65 ZLS S6v 62¢ 962
%L0'S 0C (%11°6p) (681) (%95°%) (1) %68 7S %V9LS %4 66€ L7z 0€Z IEe)
(%€1°€) (e) (%€0°62) (L2) (%00°52) (z2) %L6°0L %GL'89 €6 96 88 99 jsaseu
SanuaAal 19Yjo pue |ejdueuly
(%6€72) (622) (%LL11) (0011 (%S5z°9) (058) %€2°88 %2198 9vE6 G156 96.'8 oyz'8 sainypuadxa pue SaNUBAaJ 13yjo pue
|e1oueuy 2103q suonjesado wouy sbujuieg
%L0°L 815 (%S6°67) (285°Zz2) %0°L 8vLL %S0 vS %E9°¥S 96167 8€9°8Y 1287Z 695°9Z
%LET 6.2 (%¥0°Lp) (008°G) %GE L L %96°2S %61 7S LEETH 250Ch 7809 1€5°9 uoezIoWe pue uojesldeq
(%L0°€) (22) (%LL715) (092°1) (%85°1.2) (ez€) %ET 8 %GL 9y vEV'T L15T L6VL vLLL S90IAIBS UOREASIUIWPY
%8L9 801 [CAYA:] (828) %08'68. vLL %6¢ LS %LL VS 00L°L 2651 86 zL8 S80I8S 9)e10dI0D
(%68°6) (v62) (%€6°Sp) (1eT's) (%v€°0) (s) %L07S %2 L8 089°C v.6°C vSYL 6rpL SBOIISS JOWIOISND
%80°C sz (%98°0v) (108) %8Gl 66 %v16S %L€°09 9zZ'L L0z 929 SzL s90|M8S AlojeInbey
%20°S v82 (%9z°6v) (526°2) %98'GC 619 %vL0S %6¢ €S 8£6°G 759°G 76€°C €1L0°€ s90|AIes ABOjoULD8) puE Bulesuibug
(%69°0) (28) (%ErTy) (#00°G) (%€L°0) (09) %LG LS %Ll LS veL L) 9/8°LL 0r8‘9 06L°9 UOINGLASIP PUE UOISSIWSUE} JOJEAN
%5S°C [7x4 (%85°Sv) (8€0°G) %LTE 181 %2y vS %1865 €50°L 1 8LL04 828G GL0'9 juswiees pue Alddns Jejen
saanyipuadxa bBunesadQ
%05°0 682 (%6v°0%) (289°¢2) %95°€ 861°L %1565 %1865 205'8S €12'8S L19°EE S187E
%2L ST VL (%c6°0v) (1) %E8'TTL €l %8065 %8¢ 7L LvE 9.2 26 502 SNOBUE||8ISIN
(%90°5) (z1) (%00°9€) (18) %00°092 vOL %0079 %9209 o144 L€2 oy vyl $99} UORYBUUIOD JBYJO PUE JuswAed 8jeT
%9LZL £y (%00°6€) (e€l) %000 0 %00°G9 %6¢ €L 08¢ L€€ LvT LvT SUORE)S JBJEM HINg
%y z€ (%L1'8€) (£19) %EY8S S0€ %ESL9 %E0°€9 Pre’L ZLE'L zes 128 uoyoejoud 81y 8jeAld
%000 0 (%89'Lv) (621°€) %08'L zee %2E 8G %2E 8G 829°L 829°L 2V 6rv'y uoyoejoid 81y oland
%2€ 0 ele] (%ev op) (5€9'61) %y | vS€ $ %8565 %LL'BS 8.5'8y $ ezv'sy $ 689'8 $ €v6'8 $ 1ol
sanuaaai bujesadQ
abueyd % abueyd § ureway % ureway § abueyd % abueyd § 1SVO3d04 139ang 000, 000, 000, 000,
Jsedai04 0} Jabpng 1se22104 0} |ENjoY B9\ Joud wouy j0 % se j0 % se 1SVO3H04 139ang UVIA LSV ¥VIA SIHL
31VAOL¥VIA ILvAOLAUVIA LZ/LE AVIN 1Z/LE ¥YIN 31va OL ¥VIA
IVNLOV IVNLOV 02/} ¥dv 02/} ¥dv IVNLOV

640 G abedq

%€€'8S :FLITdINOD 31LVA OL AVIA TVNLIV

(SHLNOW £) 120Z ‘L€ ¥380L00 - 1202 ‘I THdV

SUVNSN - ¥ILVM - SONINAV3I 40 LNIJWILVLS a3 LIanvNn

HIALVM XVAITVH



(%18°18) W' (% p8€8) (%¥ve61) 6127 (%l¥'8eL) (%VevEL) (922) (L16°}) (181°2) 8€0°C 1eak ay} 1oy (ssoj) sbujuies
(%85°1) (10€) (%8€1¥) %y L9v %2985 %69°LS TrL'8L £V0'6L 61501 986°0L
(%£9°99) (02) (%00°07) (%00°05) (9) %0009 %0002 0L 0€ zL 9
(%bZ°S) (ep) (%0L°Lp) %18°L09 68¢€ %0€°85 %¥T GG LLL 0z8 9 (3¢
(%92°5) (2) (%90°Cy) %62 ¥ € %v6°'LS %68 7S 9zk eel 0L €L JUNOJSIP 198 JO UOHEZILOWY
(%01°1) (eG1) (%88°Lv) %G1°€ 374 %Z)8G %8 LS LLL'EL 798°€l 9zL'L 696°L 199p wus} buoj uo Juswhedey
(%98°}) (82) (%99°6€) (%21°9) (z91) %vE 09 %2C 6S 8LLY 9617 L¥9°T el:lard 199p wisy Buoj uo jseseu|
mO.:._«_vconxo 13Y}0 pue jepueuly
(%65°7) (6) (%28 '85) (%E8'GE) (ep) %81 LY %62 6€ 181 961 0zl LL
%L9°9 0L (%S2°€9) (%L2°62) (v2) %S¢ 9€ %L9°8E 09} 05} 28 85 IEe)
(%0€°Lp) (61) (%€9°62) (%00°08) (61) %LE 0L %0€" Ly yig oy 8¢ 6l jsaseu
SanuaAal 19Yyjo pue |ejdueuly
o8V’ 7 oL} 62) PG L zLY €8°0L AVE7) L2831 Ll X3 LY6Th uadxa pu UBA3J J3Y]0 pu
%87'S 676 (%L1°62) %VS LS 6ZL° %€8°0, % 6.Z°8 0€e’ 8128 6" 2dx3 puE SANUAA3I J3YJ0 pue
|e1oueuny 2103q suonjesado wouy sbujuieg
(%S58°0) (155) (%9z°€v) %589 LEET %vL 95 %9295 98279 LE879 8ELVE SLy'9€
%82 0 Ly (%c6°Sp) %G8'L 299 %80 7S %vT vS 2289k GLL9L 9EV'8 8606 uopezjJowe pue uojesldeq
(%80°€) (¥9) (%82°95) (%S56°0v) (119) %L EY %8ETh SL0T 60T z6v'L 188 S90IAIBS UOREASIUIWPY
%GL9 68 (%€8°Lp) %000 vEL %LLTS %6965 L0V'L 8LE"L 0 vEL $90IMI8S 91eI0dI0D
600} 4°14 6S9 6V, blT' 3 bSE 682 S 4 2TsT ve'L Tyl IAISS JOLIO)
(%L0°04) (rGe) (%S59°6v) (%L2°8) (e01) %GE0S %8C°G 892" g 74 ‘ SDIISS JOWIOISND
%LG'} ve (%8L°Lp) %ES Pl 611 %2C 8S %1165 LI 185 618 8€6 s80IMIeS AlojeInbey
6SS z ATx:i% Ve LL 197 668 L bEL 2 z 3 In18S ABojouyos) pue Buuesulbus
%GS5 60 (%11°8p) %vE 9 %68°LS %ELES 0609 88'G €69° 094°¢ $90IAI8S ABOjOULD8) puE Bulesull
(%572 (195) (%LL7€Y) %009 G589 %ET 9G %08'7S 01512 12022 OLr'LL S60°CH JusLUIE.} JOJEMBISEAN
bEE 87 6T6T bLL'Y p! 680" L 698" zL r09°Ch P L2y UOI08]|00 IBJEMBISE AN
(%€€°0) (%2] (%26°2e) % 8¢ %80°L9 %98°99 €95" 09° €70'8 ‘8 01}09]|00 1O}EMB)SE
saanyjpuadxa BunesadQ
o8V’ o710V ©89°91 L 98 AT z 91T 22 [42432
%870 86€ (%P1 °0%) %899 990° %98°65 %5109 69528 9128 9G€" 6
%29} 2 (%59°9€) %L99L 69 %GE €9 %LE 79 152 LvZ 06 651 SNOBUE||9SIN
6S0Y b9€ 8V %00'05¥ o¥9 L bSS 6 1z zee z L } UOIJOBUIOD JOYJO PUE JudU 1e
(%50°%) (6) (%9¢€°8v) %00°0S 06 %v9'LS %556 € 0 0 $99} UORYBUUOD JBUIO PUE JusWAEd BjE
%000 0 (%S50°96) (%S5€728) (1) %G6°€ %G6°€ 9L 9L LL € anjye sueldiy
(%€€ee) () (%00°001) %000 0 %000 %000 oL Sl 0 0 8b.eyoIns yybussSIOAO
%L8TL 59 (%8z°Tr) %BLE 4 %L LS %G1°G9 045 505 L1€ (4% s99) buiddy abejdes
(%2L°€) (81) (%€r°08) %EY 0 L %LG 6 %EL LY 99y 8y 0€Z 1€2 BNUBABI JOBJIUOD JOYJO PUE SJELOES ]
%570 19¢ (%00°0v) %LG 9L 8069 %0009 %L¢ 09 6.6'08 $ 81L9'08 $ 289ty 0658 JejemeIse
sanuaaai buneiadQ
abueyd % abueyd § [oT] [oT] abueyd % abueyd § 1SVO3d04 139ang 000, 000, 000, 000,
Jsedai04 0} Jabpng 1sed2104 0} |enjoy B9\ Joud wouy j0 % se j0 % se 1SVO3H04 139ang UVIA LSV ¥VIA SIHL
31VAOL¥VIA JLvAOLAUVIA LZ/LE AVIN 1Z/LE ¥YIN 31va OL ¥VIA
IVNLOV IVNLOV 02/} ¥dv 02/} ¥dv IVNLOV

640 9 abedq

%€€8G 31T 1dINOD ILVA OL ¥VIA TVNLOV
(SHLNOW £) 120Z ‘L€ ¥380L00 - 1202 ‘I THdV

GUVNSN - ¥ILVYMILSYM - SONINYVI JO LNIWILVLS A3 LIaNVNN

HILVM XVAITVH



(%0¢€°62) 6EVL (%1 6°08) 018z (%2 vL) 601 %606} %0S'EL (eLv'e) $ (z16'%) (e2) $ (e99) $ 1eak sy} 1oy ssOT
(%eLzl) (6L€) %z L€) (ezo'L) %1881 [313 %9229 %S 1SS Lyl ozl'e LSY°L velL'L
(%69°11) (81) (%81°L¥) (99) %LT 129 69 %2885 %S6'LG 9€L ¥S1 L 08 SXe} JO Na|| ul JueIB/puspINg
(%00°Z1) (e) (%16°0%) (8) %00°0€ € %6065 %0025 44 14 ol €L JUN0DSIP 1G@p JO UOKEZRIOWY
(%88°2) (01) (%€5°6€) (82) %09°9L LLL %Ly"09 %LL'GS 986'L 9512 0€0'} 102} 199p wis} Buo| uo JuswAeday
(%LL°€2) (881) (%69'82) (e21) %08'L o1 %lLELL %9E"¥S €09 16L 00% [ol4 1gep w.e) Buoj uo jseseu
sainyp 1930 pue ey [E]
(%19°15) (91) (%eeee) (s) (%25'95) () %L9°99 %92 2€ [ [ [34 0L
(%19°19) (1) (%EE€E) [() (%25°99) (e1) %L9'99 %92'Z€ Gl 3 €C oL jseuel|
1930 pue ey [E]
(%zz'65) 9.0'L (%v8'1ve) T6L°)L %1209 S6€ (%¥8 1YL} (%v825) (iw2) (z18°1) 969 150°} S2INJIPURUXd PUE SONUBABI JBY}0 pue
|e1dueuly a10jaq suonesado wouy sbuiuieg
(%61°6) (819) (%85°vS) (2519) (%L272) (6L1) %SY°Sy %60°EY 98Z°11 v06°LL 8vz's 62L'S
(%98°€) (62) (%9€23) (0€0°1) %66 €L SLL %9’ Ly %08°S¥ 196°L 970°C 728 1€6 uoleziuowe pue uojeoaldeq
(%96°2) (o1) (%0v°95) (s81) (%S1°Lp) (001) %09°€Y %LETY 8ze 8€ee 374 evl S8DIAIBS UOHESIUILIPY
%L0'L Sl (%€0'8%) (o11) %000 6LL %L6'LS %L9'SS (44 4% 0 6LL $90IAI8S Bjesodio)
(%05°8) (62) (%ce 08) (251) %000 0 %89'6% %Sy Sy zLe A% g1 S5 S8DINISS JOWOISND
%870 8 (%¥€'Lp) (L08) (%57°0) (¥) %9925 %1625 269'L 789°L g68 168 sao1Mes AlojenBay
%BLT 6 (%9€'v2) (£90°1) %06'92 8L %95 %9€°9C gev'L 96€°} 062 89¢ $901A19s ABojouyos) pue Buussuibuzy
(%55°6) (z99) (%€ELTS) (£08°2) (%05°41) (Lz€) %LT Ly %SLZY €2€'S G88'G [34:¥4 915z U01}08]00 JEIEMWLIOIS
sasnjpuadxa BuigeiadQ
%VSY (2 (%6¢€°LY) (soe) %9y 9.2 %1985 %219 SYS0L 180°0L ¥06'S 0819
%E0'L L (%6€°61) (61) %LILE 61 %1908 %y 18 86 16 09 6L snosue||osIN
(%2r'vL) (1) (%0L'2y) (8¢€) %000 1S %0€ LS %v0'6Y 68 0L 0 1S S99 UOJOBULDD JBLO pue JusLuAed oje
%000 0 (%L9'LY) (865°1) %00°0 0 %EE'8S %EE8S geg'e GE8'E L€2T 1£2°C 921A18S ABm JO 1yBU JejemuLIo)s
%08'L [734 (%SS'LY) (01LL72) %bL'G 90z %G 85 %L0°€9 €25'9 $ 1509 £09'€ § €18 $ 90IAI9S pojesaust o)is JojemMwIolS
sanuaaal BuigesadQ
abueyd % abueyd § ueway % uewsy § abueyd % abueyd § 1SvO3d04 139ang 000. 000, 000. 000,
jsedaio4 o} jebpng jsedalo4 o} [enjoy Jeaj Joud woiy jo 9 se J0 % se 1SvO3d04 139ang ¥VIA LSV ¥VIA SIHL
J1VAOLY¥VIA 3ILVAOLUVIA IZ/LE UVIN LZ/LE ¥VIN 31va OL ¥v3A
IVNLOV IVNLOV 02Z/1L ¥dv 0zZ/1 ¥dv IVNLOV

640 £ abed

%€€°8S :3L3TdINOD ILVA OL ¥VIA TVNLOV

(SHLNOW ) 120Z ‘1€ ¥380LD0 - 120Z ‘I TI¥dV

GdVNSN - Y3 LVMINYOLS - SONINYV3I 40 LNINTLVLS a3lianvNn

HILVM XVAITVH



(%¥6°1LE) 688°€ $ (%€16L1) 1286 $ (%80°681) 8vy'e (%EL°6L) (%20°€L) (982°8) $ (szi'zy) $ (€98'1) $ G8G°L $ pajenbay - Jeak ayj 1oy (sso)) sBuiuses
©28'S) (9212) (%91 1¥) (88¥'7 1) %S€9 LET) %v8'8S %2V SS €025 6LELE 8Ly'6l 512702
(%60°€) [(1%2] (%59 17) (09272) %6LLL 85 %€ 85 %SG 95 9299 €89 [Z43 998°¢ SOXE} JO Nal| Ul Juelb/pusplAIg
(%¥ZT'LL) (62) (%26 L) (96) %206 L %8085 %S5'LS (44 85T 24} el 1UN0JSIP 199p JO UOREZILOWY
(%04°5) (251°1) (%69'L¥) (£26°8) %Z0°9 €LL %L€'85 %bE'SS GeS'LT 269'22 SY8'LL 855} 19ep wia} buoj uo juswAeday
(%9z°04) (622) (%L6°8€) (§59'2) (%89°}) (+2) %E0'L9 %LLYS €189 265'L 62C't 85t 19ep wis} buoj uo Jsaselu|
saJnjlpuadxa Jayjo pue jeloueuly
(%8691 (9¢) (%£6°9€) (S9) (%58°82) (S¥) %L0°€9 %9€°2S oLl [4%4 951 7
%E LS z (%86°09) (52) %L58Ch 6 %20 6€ %€E0 LY X2 6€ L ol Byo
(%16°12) (8¢€) (%€9'62) (oy) (%¥2°9€) (¥S) %LE 0L %1675 gelL €Ll 328 56 1saseu|
SanuaAaJ Jayjo pue [eldueuld
%00°L 6vL'L (%z0°L1) (z55%) %60°LZ 0ELY %86°Z8 %8L°88 E7K]4 T66'7C 657'LL 68LCC sanjipuadxe pue sanuaAal JaYjo pue
[eloueuly aJojaq suonesado woJj sbujuieg
(%250 (159) (%EE S¥) (6£0°95) %96'S €08°€ %L VS %6€ 7S eLezh TLEVTL 6£8°€9 TY9°'29
%08°0 1¥T (%LL°97) [CIE) %86 L veek %ET €5 %99°€S 20L1E GG80E ZEESH 95591 UojEZIOWE pue uojernaidaq
(%€ 1€ (151 (%c'vS) (L5°2) (%08°€€) (680°1) %85G %S vy 089't 1€8'y zeee €eL'T S80IAISS UONEASIUIWPY
%18'9 [4%4 (%6€°8Y) (809°1) %00°059} 119} %L9'LS %E LGS €ze'e Le 86 SLLL se0|M8S B]el0dIo)
(%68°6) (228) (%58 LY) (£16°2) (%99°2) (52) %SG1°TS %669 092'S 1€8'S 818z evLT S80IAIBS JAWOISND
%LT L 15 (%19°€P) (526°1) %8516 144 %6€°95 %hl'LS 625t L'y ore'z ¥85'C saoinies Aloje|nbay
%bby z€5 (%1¥°18) (z26°9) %59°LT yoL'L %658 %850S €9v'EL 1E6'Z) LL€'S 1759 $80A18S ABOJOULD8) puE Bulieaulbus
o b o o !
(%€9°2) (199) (%L9°€p) (z90°6) %967 2585 %EE'9G %5875 152'02 zie'le LELLL 689'}1 jusLIjEal} JBJEMBISE
(%S5°6) (299) (%€L'28) (£08°2) (%08° 1) (228) %LT LY %SL'Th €2€'S G88'S £Y8'C 915z U01}08)(02 JBJEMULIO}S
(%€€°0) (+) (%55°2€) (090°%) %667 00% %SY'L9 %ET L9 SLY'TL 915'Zh GL0'8 SLy'8 U0}J08]|00 JejEMaISE
(%69°0) (z8) (%er'zY) (¥00°5) (%€2°0) (03) %LGLS %LL'LS v6L'LL 9.8'}L or8'9 0629 UOINQUISIP PUE UOISS|USUEI} JSJBAN
%95°2 sz (%59'S¥) (1€0°8) %L6'T €Ll %SE VS %bL'SS 1201 9rL'0L 118'S 066'S juaweal) pue Alddns Jajem
sainjipuadxa BunjesadQ
%L 0 860'} (%0€°0%) (1€9°09) %05 0k €€5°8 %0L 65 %v1 09 297051 79E°67 L 862°18 1£8'68
%2 S 8L (%62 8¢) (€09) %20°¢8 8EY %219 %E6 79 GISL 16V} vES 2.6 SNOBUE||@ISIN
%tv'T 45 (%Lv'8¢€) (218) %EY'8S s0€e %ES'L9 %E0'EY PreL zLeL zes 128 uooaloid a1y BleAld
6000 0 (%89'L¥) (621°€) %08°L zee %Z€'8S %Z€'8S 829'L 829'L yrdN4 [2a4 uoyoalold a1y algnd
WLL'Y 434 (%68 L) (80€°%) %Z5°€ 90T %185 %0Z'19 85€0} 988'6 vr8's 0509 JeleMulolS
%S0 L9e (%00°0%) (68€°2€) %LG 9L 806'9 %0009 %LZ°09 62608 819'08 289'Ly 065'8Y 1ajemalse
%ZE0 SS1 $ (%Zv'0p) (5€9'61) $ %vT | vS€ %85°65 %LLBS 8.5'8y $ ecr'sy $ 685'8C $ €v6'8T $ Jee M
senuaAad BunesedQ
S3ILAILOY a3LvIN93y
abueyd % abueyd § Bujuewsy %  Bulutewsy § abueyd % abueyd § LSVO3H04 139ang 000. 000. 000, 000.
jseodalog o} jebpng 1se22104 0} [ENJOY Jea) Jold woig 10 % se 10 % se LSVO3HO4 13sang UV3IA 1SV UV3IA SIHL
3lvaOLy¥vIA 3ILVAOLAUVIA IZ/LEUVIN LZ/LE ¥VIN 31va OL ¥vaA
vNLOV vNLOV 02/1 Ydv 02/1 Ydv VNLOV

640 g obed

%€€'85 ‘A13TdINOD 31va OL ¥VIA TvNLOV
(SHLNOW ) 1202 ‘L€ ¥380LD0 - 1Z0Z ‘I ¥dY
GYVNSN - SAILIALLOY A3LVINOIANN ANV 3LVINO3Y - SONINYVI 40 LNJWILVLS a3LanvNn

YALVM XVAITVH



640 6 obed

(%EL7E) 9.6'€ (%L2€T1) 8676 $ (%eL7e€T) 881 $ (%LL°€2) (%99°G1) (r29°2) $ (059°11) $ (v9e'L) $ vee'L $ >€2m_=mﬁj um« pajenboy)
JeaA ayj 1o} (sso|) sbuluies |ejo|
%L5°91 18 (%56°09) (€2€) $ (%01°2S) (092) $ %50°6€ %25 SV [4%) $ 6z§ $ 66¥ $ 6€C $ pajeinBaiun - seak ay) Joy sBuluses
(%1871 (4] %¥S LT [ %6Z 71T 09 %vS LTk %v9°80k 69 18 8z 88
(%1871 [0 %vS LT 6L %62 V1T 09 %vS LTl %7980 69 18 8z 88 Byo
sainjipuadxa Jayjo pue jeloueuld
%6Y'S 8z %V 6¥) (992) (%26€1) (rv) %95 05 %EEES 8€S 015 91E [773
%00°0 0 (%05°S¥) (98) (%€5°61) (52) %05 7S %05 7S 681 681 8zl €0L sjoeloud Abiaus - Jayl0
%ZL'8 8z (%85°15) (081) (%11°01) (64) %ZY'8Y %59°CS 6 Lze 88l 691 S|EjUB PUE SBSER| - JaYI0
SanuaAal Jayjo pue |eloueuly
%96°8Y Ly (%¥5°19) (88) (%€6°€2) (951 %9¥°8€ %6T LS €vl 96 1z S5 saJnjipuadxe pue SenuaAal JaYjo pue
Jeloueuly aiojeq suonelado woJj sbujuieg
%0070 0 (%LT LY) (9Zv) %62 ¥¥ €91 %ELTS %ELTS 200°} 200°} 89¢ 1€S
%00°0 0 (%t vy) (8) %000 0 %95 G5 %95 G5 8l 8l ol ol UOjEZIUOWE puE uojernaidaq
%00°0 0 (%66'2€) (ze) %00°0 59 %40°29 %40°L9 16 16 0 59 S80IAISS UONEASIUILPY
%00°0 0 (%80°€2) (€) %00°0 ol %Z6°9L %Z6'9L €l €l 0 ol se0II8S B)elodIo)
%00°0 0 %000 € (%87°€6) (ev) %00°0 %00°0 0 0 o € suojjeuop pue sdjysiosuods
%00°0 0 (%9¢€°98) (92) (%¥1°L8) (91) %b9EL %b9EL 88 88 8z 4! U0J09)|00 JeJEMBISE
%00°0 0 (%15°97) (e5€) %ZL'8Y €el %6Y'€S %6Y'€S 65 65 €LT 90% JuBUEal] JOJEMRISE
%00°0 0 (%88'12) ) %LT LTh vl %€ 1L'8L %E1L'8L ze ze L sz Juswea) pue Alddns Jaje
sainjlpuadxa BuljesadQ
%92 ¥ iy (%¥0°6¥) (¥95) %lT L L %96 05 %ELES 051} €01} [ 985
%000 0 (%Z7'6€) [CP] %EE €S 8 %€ES 09 %€E5 09 8¢ 8¢ Gl 4 snoaue||8osiy
%00°0 0 (%50'96) (€2) (%5€°Z8) (71) %S56°€ %S56°€ 9L 9L Ll € Jusn|ye aue|diy
(%2L°€) (84 (%€EY'05) (5€2) %EY0 L %56 %EL LY 99% v8Y 0€T [£4 @NUBABI JOBNUOD JBLJO PUE BJEYIES]
%L8°Th 59 (%8z'2Y) (¥2) $ %6L°€ zL $ %TL LS %S 1°69 0.5 $ 505 $ lle $ 6ce $ 99} buiddy abejdes
sanuaAaJ bunesadQ
S3ILIAILOV @3LVIN93IUNN
abueyd % abueyd § Bujuewsy %  Bulutewsy § abueyd % abueyd § LSVO3H04 139ang 000. 000. 000, 000.
jseodalog o} jebpng 1se22104 0} [ENJOY Jea) Jold wolg 10 % se 10 % se LSVO3HO4 13sang UV3IA 1SV UV3IA SIHL
3lvaOLy¥vIA 3ILVAOLAUVIA IZ/LEUVIN LZ/LE ¥VIN 31va OL ¥vaA
vNLOV vNLOV 02/1 Ydv 02/1 Ydv VNLOV

%€€'85 ‘A13TdINOD 31va OL ¥VIA TvNLOV
(SHLNOW ) 1202 ‘L€ ¥380LD0 - 1Z0Z ‘I ¥dY
GYVNSN - SAILIALLOY A3LVINOIANN ANV 3LVINO3Y - SONINYVI 40 LNJWILVLS a3LanvNn

YALVM XVAITVH



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

HALIFAX REGIONAL WATER COMMISSION ATTACHMENT 2
Reporting Periods - April to Oct 31, 2021
Recon
CoCd acct Vendor |Name 1 Country PostalCode [City Street Rg Crecy Purchasing
HRWC 2110 54 HALIFAX REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY CA B3J 3A5 HALIFAX NS CAD 13,143,636.92
HRWC 2020 146 NS POWER INC. CA B3J 2W5 HALIFAX P.0. BOX 910 NS CAD 5,104,536.51
HRWC 2020 1215 |THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY CA MS5H 1J8 TORONTO 145 KING STREET WEST, SUITE 1910 ON CAD 4,077,548.97
HRWC 2020 1151 |N-VIRO SYSTEMS CANADA LP CA B2T 1K3 GOFFS 350 AEROTECH PARK DR NS CAD 2,401,394.87
HRWC 2020 1689 |LANDMARK STRUCTURES CO. CA L7R 3X4 BURLINGTON 3091 HARRISON COURT ON CAD 2,209,600.23
HRWC 2020 447 HARBOUR CONSTRUCTION COMPANY L CA B3B 1L3 DARTMOUTH 40 ISLEY AVE NS CAD 1,727,253.24
HRWC 2020 133 CHEMTRADE CA M5W 1P8 |TORONTO ON CAD 1,671,689.38
HRWC 2020 2732 |N HARRIS COMPUTER CORPORATION CA K2E 8C4 OTTAWA 1 ANLARES DRIVE, SUITE 400 ON CAD 1,543,332.49
HRWC 2020 109 DEXTER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LI CA B4A 372 BEDFORD NS CAD 1,467,709.06
HRWC 2020 277 SACKVILLE TRENCHING LTD CA B4C 3G4 LOWER SACKVILLE NS CAD 1,326,329.73
HRWC 2020 559 BRYCON CONSTRUCTION LTD. CA B2Y 4P4 DARTMOUTH 67 ATLANTIC ST NS CAD 1,291,835.17
HRWC 2020 2180 |EASTERN TRAFFIC SERVICES LIMIT CA B4A 372 BEDFORD 927 ROCKY LAKE DRIVE NS CAD 1,240,484.59
HRWC 2020 2797 |AMG ENVIRONMENTAL INC CA L4N 9J5 BARRIE 494 VETERANS DR, UNIT 12 ON CAD 1,134,969.50
HRWC 2020 111 G & R KELLY ENTERPRISES LTD. CA B4B 1B1 BEDFORD 738 HAMMONDS PLAINS ROAD NS CAD 1,109,533.14
HRWC 2020 2 BLACK & MCDONALD LTD. CA B3B 126 DARTMOUTH 10 PAYZANT AVENUE NS CAD 1,020,290.99
HRWC 2020 403 CBCL LIMITED CA B3J 2R7 HALIFAX NS CAD 1,000,302.96
HRWC 2020 340 MEDAVIE BLUE CROSS CA EIC8L3 MONCTON NB CAD 769,787.37
HRWC 2020 2251 |ATLANTIC ROAD CONSTRUCTION & P CA B3G 1M7 EASTERN PASSAGE NS CAD 735,085.48
HRWC 2020 147 BRENNTAG CANADA INC. CA MB8Z 2G6 TORONTO 43 JUTLAND ROAD ON CAD 723,699.62
HRWC 2020 3342 |EASTERN TRENCHLESS LTD. CA E3B 5N8 FREDERICTON 711 WOODSTOCK RD NB CAD 706,268.08
HRWC 2020 696 MINISTER OF FINANCE FOR NS CA B3J2v2 HALIFAX HALIFAX CENTRAL NS CAD 676,895.19
HRWC 2020 2476 |CGIINFORMATION SYSTEMS AND MG CA E3C2R2 FREDERICTON 30 KNOWLEDGE PARK DRIVE - SUITE #30 NB CAD 642,581.50
HRWC 2020 1216 [THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY CA MS5H 1J8 TORONTO 145 KING STREET WEST, SUITE 1910 ON CAD 628,730.36
HRWC 2020 262 OCEAN CONTRACTORS LIMITED CA B2Y 3Y9 DARTMOUTH NS CAD 554,642.30
HRWC 2020 1249 |SNF CANADA LIMITED CA L4L 3Z5 VAUGHAN 4 DIRECTOR COURT, SUITE 101 ON CAD 539,631.06
HRWC 2020 1 ONE TIME VENDOR CA CAD 534,832.13
HRWC 2020 99 IMP GROUP LIMITED CA B3L4T1 HALIFAX 2651 JOSEPH HOWE DRIVE, STE 400 NS CAD 533,158.50
HRWC 2020 1940 [MICROSOFT LICENSING, GP us 89511 RENO 6100 NEIL RD STE 210 NV CAD 526,154.72
HRWC 2020 3069 |FOAM & COATING PROS LIMITED CA BON 2T0 WINDSOR 6536 HWY #14, RR #1 NS CAD 472,763.74
HRWC 2020 3101 |MEDAVIE INC. (LTD & LIFE) CA EIC8L3 MONCTON 644 MAIN STREET NB CAD 471,154.77
HRWC 2020 1824 |[BULLETPROOF SOLUTIONS INC. CA E3C 2N5 FREDERICTON 25 ALISON BLVD NB CAD 470,601.52
HRWC 2020 3124 |PIVOT CONSULTING INC. CA B3J 1P3 HALIFAX 5251 DUKE ST, SUITE 1210, DUKE TOWE NS CAD 444,185.14
HRWC 2020 620 BARRINGTON CONSULTING GROUP IN CA B3J 3R7 HALIFAX 1696 UPPER WATER STREET, TWR 2, STE NS CAD 433,999.27
HRWC 2020 2421 |TELUS CORPORATION CA L7R 4S8 BURLINGTON ON CAD 426,705.42
HRWC 2020 18 ATLANTIC PURIFICATION SYSTEM CA B2Y 3Z5 DARTMOUTH NS CAD 419,993.48
HRWC 2020 2454 |BOURQUE SECURITY SERVICES CA B3S 1B5 HALIFAX 55 CRANE LAKE DR NS CAD 408,822.66
HRWC 2020 283 W. ERIC WHEBBY LTD. CA B3B 1W2 DARTMOUTH 201 BROWNLOW AVE., UNIT 57 NS CAD 387,818.27
HRWC 2020 2299 |VEOLIA WATER SOLUTIONS & TECHN CA H4S 2B3 SAINT-LAURENT 4105 RUE SARTELON Qc CAD 380,596.24
HRWC 2020 349 NS UTILITY & REVIEW BOARD CA B3J 353 HALIFAX PO BOX 1692 UNIT M NS CAD 369,638.12
HRWC 2020 246 ALPHA CHEMICAL LTD CA B3B 1K2 DARTMOUTH 40 PETTIPAS DRIVE NS CAD 353,654.30
HRWC 2020 370 MCLENNAN SALES (EMCO) CA N5W 3A7 LONDON 1108 DUNDAS STREET ON CAD 346,123.91
HRWC 2020 754 ELMSDALE LANDSCAPING LTD. CA B2S 1K7 ELMSDALE 113 ELMSDALE ROAD NS CAD 334,758.89
HRWC 2020 1976 |WSP CANADA INC. CA H3C 528 MONTREAL SUCCURSALE CENTRE-VILLE Qc CAD 330,657.52
HRWC 2020 2215 |CORNELL VIDEO INSPECTIONS CA B3B 1H5 DARTMOUTH 9 RALSTON AVENUE NS CAD 319,309.85
HRWC 2020 41 BUREAU VERITAS CANADA (2019) | CA MS5W 5V2  [TORONTO P O BOX 4269, POSTAL STN A ON CAD 292,002.02
HRWC 2020 394 DALHOUSIE UNIVERSITY CA B3H 4H6 HALIFAX FINANCIAL SERVICES NS CAD 283,033.50
HRWC 2020 77 ESRI CANADA LIMITED CA M3C 3R8 TORONTO 12 CONCORDE PLACE ON CAD 279,243.09
HRWC 2020 2095 |EASTPOINT ENGINEERING LIMITED CA B3J 3N4 HALIFAX 1801 HOLLIS ST - SUITE #1500 NS CAD 270,896.12
HRWC 2020 1245 [AIR LIQUIDE CANADA INC CA B2Y 377 DARTMOUTH 180 AKERLEY BLVD NS CAD 268,668.53
HRWC 2020 2690 |DESIGNPOINT ENGINEERING & SURV CA B4A 4)4 BEDFORD 200 WATERFRONT DR NS CAD 267,360.56
HRWC 2020 1565 [LAURENTIDE CONTROLS CA H9J 4A1 KIRKLAND 18000 RTE TRANSCANADIENNE Qc CAD 262,174.56
HRWC 2020 1287 [STANTEC CONSULTING LTD. CA T2P 2)2 CALGARY C/O LOCKBOX 310260, BOX 578 STN M AB CAD 260,886.29
HRWC 2020 649 ENVIROSYSTEMS (TERRAPURE) CA B3B 177 DARTMOUTH 11 BROWN AVENUE NS CAD 247,307.13
HRWC 2020 1447 |OLSEN'S MECHANICAL LIMITED CA BON 2T0 WINDSOR 88 SANFORD DRIVE NS CAD 246,268.17
HRWC 2020 1551 [MACPHEE FORD SALES CA B2W 3M3  |DARTMOUTH 580 PORTLAND ST NS CAD 243,731.44
HRWC 2020 505 WOLSELEY CANADA - MECHANICAL G CA L7N 3V6 BURLINGTON 880 LAURENTIAN DR ON CAD 241,040.22
HRWC 2020 645 CANADA POST CORPORATION CA K1A 1L7 OTTAWA 2701 RIVERSIDE DRIVE ON CAD 236,199.24
HRWC 2020 98 GRAYMONT (NB) INC. CA MS5W 5V2  [TORONTO ON CAD 235,228.74
HRWC 2020 2886 |SNT SOLUTIONS INC CA B4B 1P7 HAMMONDS PLAINS {1411 LUCASVILLE RD NS CAD 233,485.25
HRWC 2020 3521 |R.V. ANDERSON ASSOCIATES LTD CA M2] 4Z8 TORONTO 2001 SHEPPARD AVENUE EAST SUITE 300 ON CAD 232,951.57
HRWC 2020 1000 [WESTERN PLUMBING & HEATING LTD CA B2Y 373 DARTMOUTH NS CAD 229,861.91
HRWC 2020 1421 |[ATLANTICA MECHANICAL CONTRACTO CA B3B 1H5 DARTMOUTH 9 RALSTON AVENUE NS CAD 226,827.03
HRWC 2020 2828 |ONX ENTERPRISE SOLUTIONS LTD CA L3T 7v8 THORNHILL 165 COMMERCE VALLEY DR W. #300 ON CAD 223,641.84
HRWC 2020 953 MCCARTHY'S ROOFING LTD. CA B2W 3V1 DARTMOUTH 850 MAIN STREET NS CAD 219,454.89
HRWC 2020 1392  |L & R CONSTRUCTION LIMITED CA BON 2J0 STEWIACKE 75 RIVER PARK RD., RR#2 NS CAD 216,976.36
HRWC 2020 2892 Suez Treatment Solutions Inc us 23255 Richmond VA CAD 202,921.98
HRWC 2020 47 CN NON FREIGHT CA MS5W 555 |TORONTO ON CAD 202,450.32
HRWC 2020 3558 |PSD CITYWIDE INC CA N6A 5P3 LONDON 148 FULLARTON ST, 9TH FLOOR ON CAD 189,980.00
HRWC 2020 1989 |RASMUSSEN'S WELDING LTD. CA B2X 3G8 DARTMOUTH 16 CAPRI COURT NS CAD 179,138.00
HRWC 2020 2371 |BELL CANADA CA L4W 5R1 MISSISSAUGA 5115 CREEKBANK RD, E3-M2 ON CAD 172,479.41
HRWC 2020 959 WATCHDOG SECURITY SYSTEMS CA B3M 4H4 HALIFAX NS CAD 170,375.34
HRWC 2020 2367 |GIL-SON CONSTRUCTION LTD. CA B3T 1P3 GOODWOOD 1 MILLS DRIVE NS CAD 169,769.86
HRWC 2020 549 ROBINSON CONSULTANTS CA K2V 1A8 KANATA 350 PALLADIUM DRIVE ON CAD 165,491.14
HRWC 2020 3184 |MUSIAL'S COMPUTER CONSULTING | CA B1T IN9 BEAVER COVE 5192 GRAND NARROWS HWY NS CAD 164,620.45
HRWC 2020 127 SANSOM EQUIPMENT LTD CA B2N 6W8  |TRURO 100 UPHAM DRIVE NS CAD 160,171.83
HRWC 2020 829 JOE JOHNSON EQUIPMENT INC. CA L9S 3V6 INNISFIL 2521 BOWMAN STREET ON CAD 157,807.07
HRWC 2020 95 MUNICIPAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED CA B4A 372 BEDFORD NS CAD 157,253.53
HRWC 2020 352 CARUS CORPORATION us 60693 CHICAGO 1555 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR IL CAD 154,846.53
HRWC 2020 68 SOURCE ATLANTIC CA E2L 4E4 SAINT JOHN NB CAD 154,244.77
HRWC 2020 2298 |FILTRUM CONSTRUCTION CA G1M1B3 QUEBEC 430 RUE DES ENTREPRENEURS Qac CAD 154,241.23
HRWC 2020 297 C.R. FALKENHAM CA B4A 1N4 BEDFORD 8 LINDSAY HILL NS CAD 150,741.43
HRWC 2020 2926 |ITRON CANADA INC us 99019 LIBERTY LAKE 2111 N MOLTER RD WA CAD 147,900.93
HRWC 2020 3577 |MINDWIRE SYSTEMS LTD CA K1Z 8P9 OTTAWA 1545 CARLING AVENUE - SUITE 308 ON CAD 146,469.75
HRWC 2020 51 LINDE CA H3B 3L2 MONTREAL Qc CAD 143,121.03
HRWC 2020 2463 | MARINER PARTNERS INC CA E2L 5G5 SAINT JOHN 12 SMYTHE STREET, 3RD FLOOR NB CAD 141,816.85
HRWC 2020 1126 |[EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC uUs 30022 ALPHARETTA 4800 NORTHPOINT PARKWAY - SUITE #25 GA CAD 140,349.18




HALIFAX REGIONAL WATER COMMISSION
Reporting Periods - April to Oct 31, 2021

Recon
CoCd acct Vendor |Name 1 Country PostalCode [City Street Rg Crecy Purchasing
HRWC 2020 3136 |GARTNER CANADA CO. CA M2N 7E9 TORONTO 5000 YONGE ST, 14TH FLOOR, SUITE 14 ON CAD 137,195.00
HRWC 2020 264 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS CA H9R 4V5 POINT-CLAIRE 300 LABROSSE AVE Qc CAD 132,937.53
HRWC 2020 320 IRVING ENERGY DISTRIBUTION & M CA E2L4C3 SAINT JOHN NB CAD 131,381.16
HRWC 2020 1347 |NATIONAL PROCESS EQUIPMENT INC CA B3B 1L5 DARTMOUTH 95 ISLEY AVENUE UNIT C NS CAD 131,377.70
HRWC 2020 934 L & B ELECTRICLTD. CA B4V 3v4 BRIDGEWATER 94 WENTZELL DRIVE NS CAD 131,329.10
HRWC 2020 2883 |VALMET LTD CA H4R 2B2 ST LAURENT 4900 BOUL.THIMENS Qc CAD 131,206.26
HRWC 2020 263 MCINNES COOPER CA B3J 3R7 HALIFAX 1969 UPPER WATER ST NS CAD 129,575.42
HRWC 2020 3458 |CHERWELL SOFTWARE LLC us 80908 COLORADO SPRINGS  |10125 FEDERAL DRIVE SUITE 100 co CAD 127,717.12
HRWC 2020 332 SUEZ WATER TECHNOLOGIES & SOLU CA H3C5H1 MONTREAL Qac CAD 124,483.34
HRWC 2020 92 BATTLEFIELD EQUIPMENT RENTALS CA B3B 2B1 DARTMOUTH 185 AKERLEY BLVD NS CAD 124,100.73
HRWC 2020 2289 | DALE FABRICATION INC. CA B4E 3C1 UPPER SACKVILLE 43 CARIBOU ROAD NS CAD 118,734.05
HRWC 2020 3517 |CUPE NATIONAL (LOCAL 227) CA K1G 0Z7 OTTAWA 1375 ST.LAURENT BLVD ON CAD 117,149.31
HRWC 2020 1272 |ROYAL ENVIRONMENTAL INC CA B3M 212 HALIFAX 209 KEARNEY LAKE DRIVE NS CAD 116,985.78
HRWC 2020 3202 |NOVA SPATIAL CA B4A 3R4 BEDFORD 130 BEDFORD HILLS ROAD NS CAD 114,734.25
HRWC 2020 305 TOROMONT CAT CA B2Y 376 DARTMOUTH P.0. BOX 953 NS CAD 114,597.11
HRWC 2020 128 BELL ALIANT MOBILITY INC CA L7R 4R7 BURLINGTON ON CAD 111,354.65
HRWC 2020 2839 |ROGERS ELECTRIC & MACHINE CA E2A 4W7 BATHURST 1990 CONNOLLY AVE NB CAD 104,803.50
HRWC 2020 1468 |MEGA-LAB MANUFACTURING CO.LTD CA L4K 5R2 CONCORD 361 CONNIE CRESCENT, UNIT B ON CAD 100,667.56
HRWC 2020 3480 |ENVIROGEM INC CA L5M 5L5 MISSISSUAGA 2529 RAGLAN COURT ON CAD 100,295.00
HRWC 2020 364 ACKLANDS GRAINGER INC. CA R3C4B5 WINNIPEG MB CAD 99,673.29
HRWC 2020 3564 |BLUECONDUIT us 48103 ANN ARBOR 3152nd ST APT 205 Ml CAD 99,574.50
HRWC 2020 666 CAPS PLUS CA B4C 2K3 LWR. SACKVILLE 732 OLD SACKVILLE ROAD NS CAD 96,450.43
HRWC 2020 153 NORTHEAST EQUIPMENT LIMITED CA B3B 1W1 DARTMOUTH 135 JOSEPH ZATZMAN DRIVE NS CAD 93,930.95
HRWC 2020 548 IMPERIAL CLEANERS LTD. CA B2W 6B2 DARTMOUTH PO BOX 21057 NS CAD 90,453.25
HRWC 2020 2326 |HR ATLANTIC CA ClA 4)6 CHARLOTTETOWN 20 GREAT GEORGE ST UNIT 201 PE CAD 89,394.15
HRWC 2020 2488 |BLUEROCK CONSTRUCTION CA B3E 1C6 LAKE ECHO 3416 HIGHWAY #7 NS CAD 89,008.10
HRWC 2020 420 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP CA MS5W 2N7  |TORONTO ON CAD 86,768.65
HRWC 2020 2455 |NOXON NORTH AMERICA INC. CA M2) 428 TORONTO 810-2001 SHEPPARD AVENUE, EAST ON CAD 86,685.00
HRWC 2020 121 MACFARLANDS RENTIT CA B3B 0J6 DARTMOUTH 34 CUTLER AVENUE NS CAD 84,053.80
HRWC 2020 367 CONRAD BROTHERS LTD CA B2W 3Y2 DARTMOUTH PO BOX 2129 DARTMOUTH EAST NS CAD 83,230.37
HRWC 2020 3565 |AVERTRA CORP us 20170 HERNDON 580 HERNDON PARKWAY VA CAD 80,418.09
HRWC 2020 159 P.S.C. EMPLOYEES' CREDIT UNION CA B3K 5M1 HALIFAX NS CAD 79,451.16
HRWC 2020 965 ADVANCED ENERGY MANAGEMENT LTD CA B3B 0B1 DARTMOUTH 60 DOREY AVE, SUITE 103 NS CAD 79,194.40
HRWC 2020 3260 |ENGLOBE CORP. CA B3R 2A7 DARTMOUTH 97 TROOP AVE NS CAD 76,770.48
HRWC 2020 905 EASTLINK CA B3K 5M2 HALIFAX NS CAD 75,951.75
HRWC 2020 2802 |SFCENERGY LTD CA T2C 5C2 CALGARY 10509 46 STREET SE AB CAD 75,119.17
HRWC 2020 1267 |WAJAX INDUSTRIAL COMPONENTS CA H8T 2Y3 LACHINA 2200 52nd AVENUE Qac CAD 74,559.90
HRWC 2020 2649 |C& CSAFETY & COMPLIANCE SERV CA B3M 4X2 HALIFAX 64 BEDROS LANE, APT 603 NS CAD 73,713.30
HRWC 2020 239 OMNITECH INCORPORATED CA B3B 1J4 DARTMOUTH 10 AKERLEY BLVD., STE 1 NS CAD 72,429.89
HRWC 2020 2701 |FRONTLINE TRAFFIC CA B3G 1M7 EASTERN PASSAGE NS CAD 70,631.12
HRWC 2020 1610 [RECEIVER GENERAL FOR CANADA CA K1A 0K2 OTTAWA 101 COLONEL BY DR ON CAD 70,548.78
HRWC 2020 1624 [NORTHERN BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE CA B3B 0K4 DARTMOUTH 201-26 AKERLEY BLVD NS CAD 70,475.69
HRWC 2020 3052 |BLUEJACK CONSULTING INC. CA B3J 0G7 UPPER TANTALLON 152 FALCOURT RUN NS CAD 69,874.00
HRWC 2020 537 CANSEL WADE CA B3B 1L3 DARTMOUTH 100 ISLEY AVE - UNIT CAND D NS CAD 69,432.90
HRWC 2020 223 REXEL CANADA ELECTRICAL INC.-A CA B3B 1X2 BURNSIDE NS CAD 68,713.20
HRWC 2020 902 TOTAL FALL PROTECTION CA B2W 3C8 DARTMOUTH NS CAD 67,407.59
HRWC 2020 160 CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLO CA K1G 0Z7 Ottawa 1375 St. Laurent Blvd ON CAD 66,622.28
HRWC 2020 94 BELL ALIANT CA E2L 4K2 SAINT JOHN NB CAD 64,832.83
HRWC 2020 818 ST. JOSEPH PRINT GROUP INC CA K1G 6S1 OTTAWA 1165 KENASTON RD ON CAD 64,636.14
HRWC 2020 183 K & D PRATT LIMITED CA A1LN 459 MOUNT PEARL 126 GLENCOE DRIVE NL CAD 62,964.42
HRWC 2020 385 SNC LAVALIN OPERATIONS AND MAI CA B3J 3R4 HALIFAX 5657 SPRING GARDEN ROAD, STE 200 NS CAD 60,539.93
HRWC 2020 1929 [BEDFORD READY MIX LTD CA E2K 5L6 SAINT JOHN 400 CHESLEY DRIVE NB CAD 60,487.08
HRWC 2020 860 UNIVAR CANADA LTD. CA MS5W 0B8  [TORONTO PO BOX 4910, STATION A ON CAD 60,327.10
HRWC 2020 3439 |STRONGCO CORPORATION CA L4W 4Z4 MISSISSAUGA 1640 ENTERPRISE RD ON CAD 60,201.04
HRWC 2020 424 FRED M. DUNPHY EXCAVATING CA B2Z 1B3 WESTPHAL 237 LAKE MAJOR ROAD NS CAD 59,731.01
HRWC 2020 1344 [BROOKFIELD CONCRETE PRODUCTS L CA BON 1C0 BROOKFIELD NS CAD 58,497.89
HRWC 2020 3017 |KULVINDER DHILLON CA B3S 1K4 HALIFAX 22 PARKMOUNT CLOSE NS CAD 57,197.19
HRWC 2020 1303 |EASTERN ALTERNATIVE POWER SYST CA B3B 154 DARTMOUTH N-21 ILSLEY AVE NS CAD 57,069.99
HRWC 2020 3571 |ARCADIS us CAD 55,495.28
HRWC 2020 414 BEVLO PRODUCTS INC. CA B3E 1H4 PORTERS LAKE 2 THIS STREET NS CAD 54,347.02
HRWC 2020 1348 |TRIHEDRAL ENGINEERING LTD CA B4A 1C1 BEDFORD 1160 BEDFORD HWY., SUITE 400 NS CAD 54,180.60
HRWC 2020 497 MERCER HUMAN RESOURCE CA B3J 3N4 HALIFAX 1801 HOLLIS ST., STE 1300 NS CAD 51,203.08
HRWC 2020 3216 |ADESSO PROJECT MANAGEMENT CA B3J 2A4 HALIFAX 1725 BARRINGTON ST, SUITE 300 NS CAD 50,955.72
HRWC 2020 1258 |TEAK TREE ENTERPRISES CA B4C 4C9 LAKEVIEW 229 THIRD AVENUE NS CAD 50,784.00
HRWC 2020 144 MINISTER OF FINANCE CA B3J 2T9 HALIFAX PO BOX 698 NS CAD 50,595.01
HRWC 2020 371 XEROX CANADA LTD. CA M4W 3H1 [TORONTO 33 BLOOR STREET EAST ON CAD 50,421.10
HRWC 2020 1268 [FOURNIER INDUSTRIES INC CA G6H 2B5 THETFORD MINES 3787 BOULEVARD FRONTENAC QUEST Qc CAD 49,768.84
HRWC 2020 522 GRANT THORNTON CA B3J OE9 HALIFAX 1675 GRAFTON ST, SUITE 1001 NS CAD 49,195.51
HRWC 2020 867 MITCHELMORE ENGINEERING CA B3S 1s8 DARTMOUTH 109 ILSLEY AVE, UNIT 14 NS CAD 48,041.27
HRWC 2020 2045 |KEMTAG ENTERPRISES LTD CA E1B 419 RIVERVIEW NB CAD 47,593.90
HRWC 2020 569 COASTAL CONTROLS & INSTRUMENT CA B4A 275 BEDFORD 20 DUKE STREET, UNIT 107 NS CAD 47,345.68
HRWC 2020 399 ECKLER PARTNERS LTD. CA B3J 3R7 HALIFAX 1969 UPPER WATER STREET, STE 1306 NS CAD 46,847.09
HRWC 2020 1273 |[POOLCORP / SCP DISTRIBUTORS IN CA B4B 1J3 BEDFORD 380 BLUEWATER ROAD NS CAD 45,300.87
HRWC 2020 2033 |WESTECH ENGINEERING INC us 84165-0068 |SALT LAKE CITY uT CAD 44,194.97
HRWC 2020 348 EASTERN FENCE ERECTORS LTD. CA B3B 0J5 DARTMOUTH 145 CUTLER AVENUE NS CAD 43,963.35
HRWC 2020 2485 |PRIORITY WATER LTD CA B4E 3G1 MIDDLE SACKVILLE 1272 SACKVILLE DR NS CAD 43,660.00
HRWC 2020 2272 |WALLACE CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTI CA S7K 1T6 SASKATOON 825 MACKAY ST SK CAD 41,961.19
HRWC 2020 3553 |DIRECT EQUIPMENT LTD CA L6J 7T5 OAKVILLE 1363 CORNWALL RD ON CAD 41,866.50
HRWC 2020 184 WORK AUTHORITY CA M5W 1P8 |TORONTO ON CAD 41,617.56
HRWC 2020 1762 |STONHARD DIVISION, RPM CANANDA CA L1IN 9C9 WHITBY 95 SUNRAY STREET ON CAD 39,810.70
HRWC 2020 2292 |SEEPEX.COM uUs 44193 CLEVELAND PO BOX 951454 OH CAD 38,245.75
HRWC 2020 97 GRAYBAR CANADA LTD CA B3K 5M7 HALIFAX NS CAD 37,328.17
HRWC 2020 2876 |Nintex us 98004 Bellevue 10800 NE 8th Street Suite 400 WA CAD 36,939.00
HRWC 2020 3148 |CITY CENTRE PROPERTY MANAGEMEN CA B3M 0J9 HALIFAX 300-50 BEDFORD HIGHWAY NS CAD 35,997.78
HRWC 2020 2608 |CDW CANADA INC CA M5W 5M5 |TORONTO POSTAL STATION A ON CAD 35,618.26
HRWC 2020 245 SACKVILLE CONCRETE LTD. CA B4C 372 LR. SACKVILLE 17 ESTATE DRIVE NS CAD 34,923.85




HALIFAX REGIONAL WATER COMMISSION
Reporting Periods - April to Oct 31, 2021

Recon
CoCd acct Vendor |Name 1 Country PostalCode [City Street Rg Crecy Purchasing
HRWC 2020 1367 |FLOWSTAR INDUSTRIAL INC CA B2N 5Z5 TRURO NS CAD 34,514.50
HRWC 2020 162 STRUM ENGINEERING ASSOC LTD CA B3B 1Y6 DARTMOUTH 80 EILEEN STUBBS AVE. NS CAD 34,478.94
HRWC 2020 1351 |GCRTIRE CENTRES CA L5R 3G5 MISSISSAUGA 5770 HURONTARIO STREET, SUITE 400 ON CAD 34,459.43
HRWC 2020 3435 |EXCALIBUR DATA SYSTEMS CORP CA E2M 558 LANCASTER PO BOX 27068 NB CAD 34,284.71
HRWC 2020 2933 |C& D CLEANING & SECURITY SERV CA B3S 1A8 HALIFAX 106 CHAIN LAKE DR, UNIT 2A NS CAD 34,271.15
HRWC 2020 2598 |GM BLUEPLAN ENGINEERING LIMITE CA N1K 1B8 GUELPH 650 WOODLAWN ROAD WEST, BLOCK C, UN ON CAD 34,169.37
HRWC 2020 3570 |RAFTELIS us 28202 Charlotte 227 W Trade St NC CAD 34,000.00
HRWC 2020 335 RECEIVER GENERAL FOR CANADA CA K1P 6K1 OTTAWA ON CAD 33,943.26
HRWC 2020 3413 |C3 WATERINC CA NOB 1M0 BRESLAU 350 WOOLWICH STREET SOUTH ON CAD 33,746.00
HRWC 2020 3042 |CLEANEARTH INDUSTRIAL CA B3B 1C5 DARTMOUTH 20 MACDONALD AVENUE NS CAD 33,497.42
HRWC 2020 1169 |IMAGINIT CANADA CA L5W 1Y5 MISSISSAUGA 151 COURTNEYPARK DR. WEST STE. 201 ON CAD 33,445.68
HRWC 2020 443 LIVINGSTON INTERNATIONAL CA H4T 2B5 St. Laurent,Bureau 300 |6700 chemin de |a Coste-de-Liesse Qc CAD 33,400.50
HRWC 2020 284 NOVA COMMUNICATIONS CA B3B 0J5 DARTMOUTH 89 CUTLER AVE, UNIT 104 NS CAD 32,694.78
HRWC 2020 2302 |A-PLUS ROOFING & MASONRY LTD CA B4C 1R9 LOWER SACKVILLE 186 SKYRIDGE AVE NS CAD 32,315.00
HRWC 2020 1666 |KROWN RUST CONTROL SYSTEMS CA B3K 4P3 HALIFAX 2823 ROBIE STREET NS CAD 32,216.50
HRWC 2020 3401 |HOMEWOOD HEALTH INC CA V6E 357 VANCOUVER 1050 WEST PENDER ST, SUITE 500 BC CAD 31,579.01
HRWC 2020 102 MARSH ADJUSTMENT BUREAU LTD. CA B4A 1E6 BEDFORD 1550 BEDFORD HWY., STE 711 NS CAD 31,456.57
HRWC 2020 3551 |ICINFRASTRUCTURE CORPORATION CA VAT 2E9 WEST KELOWNA 2475 DOBBIN ROAD UNIT 22-517 BC CAD 31,452.75
HRWC 2020 1281 [HERCULES SLR INC CA B3B 1B3 DARTMOUTH 520 WINDMILL ROAD NS CAD 31,048.60
HRWC 2020 455 AECOM CANADA LIMITED CA L3T 7W3 MARKHAM 105 COMMERCE VALLEY DRIVE WEST ON CAD 30,688.81
HRWC 2020 1135 [FADER AGENCIES CA B3B 1L6 DARTMOUTH 30 TOPPLE DR NS CAD 30,484.64
HRWC 2020 1172 [BDIA DIVISION OF BELL MOBILIT CA M9C DA8 ETOBICOKE POA ON CAD 30,168.07
HRWC 2020 586 BIRD STAIRS CA B3B 0C9 DARTMOUTH 102 JOHN SAVAGE AVENUE NS CAD 30,101.48
HRWC 2020 3560 |PROGRESS uUs 1730 BEDFORD 14 OAK PARK DR MA CAD 30,086.79
HRWC 2020 292 VWR INTERNATIONAL, CO CA L5N 527 MISSISSAUGA 2360 ARGENTIA RD ON CAD 29,275.39
HRWC 2020 654 LONGSTAFF-PARKER-WAMBOLDT SURV CA B2W 3Y6 DARTMOUTH 73 TACOMA DRIVE - SUITE 807 NS CAD 28,750.00
HRWC 2110 451 HALIFAX REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY CA B3J 3Y8 HALIFAX 1841 ARGYLE ST.,CITY HALL, 4TH FLO NS CAD 27,879.33
HRWC 2020 173 QUALITY CONCRETE CA B3B 1C5 DARTMOUTH 20 MACDONALD AVENUE NS CAD 27,876.12
HRWC 2020 3612 |GARLAND CANADA INC CA M9W 5Y8  |ETOBICOKE 209 CARRIER DRIVE ON CAD 27,536.75
HRWC 2020 3252 |INFO-EXCAVATION CA H3M 3E2 MONTREAL 1600 BOUL-HENRI-BOURASSA O Qc CAD 27,528.69
HRWC 2020 1261 [WAJAX POWER SYSTEMS CA G1X3w1l QUEBEC 2997 RUE WATT Qac CAD 26,799.56
HRWC 2020 3614 |GW ASPHALT PAVING LIMITED CA B2Z 2T6 COLE HARBOUR 1729 COLE HARBOUR RD NS CAD 26,243.00
HRWC 2020 93 THE HALIFAX HERALD LTD. CA B3J 212 HALIFAX NS CAD 26,223.72
HRWC 2020 500 SGS CANADA INC. CA M5W 4W2 |TORONTO PO BOX 4580, DEPT 5, STN A ON CAD 25,853.15
HRWC 2020 1263 |ROMA WELDING & MAINTENANCE LTD CA B3E 1K5 PORTERS LAKE 442 WEST PORTERS LAKE ROAD NS CAD 25,723.45
HRWC 2020 181 PARTS FOR TRUCKS INC. CA B3B 1C6 DARTMOUTH 15 MACDONALD AVE. NS CAD 25,040.51
HRWC 2020 2912 | MAPDEV TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS IN CA B4C 4A2 LOWER SACKVILLE 100 STONE MOUNT DR NS CAD 24,985.96
HRWC 2020 1185 |EATON INDUSTRIES (CANADA) COMP CA K1B 5N2 OTTAWA 2615 LANCASTER ROAD, UNIT 6 ON CAD 24,610.00
HRWC 2020 2939 |KSB PUMPS INC. CA L4W 8G2 MISSISSAUGA 5205 TOMKEN ROAD ON CAD 24,494.60
HRWC 2020 2848 |JOHN BROOKS CA L5N 7K5 MISSISSAUGA 2625 MEADOWPINE BLVD ON CAD 24,231.67
HRWC 2020 1767 |CTS CONTAINER & TRAILER SERVIC CA B3B 1C6 DARTMOUTH 33 MACDONALD AVENUE NS CAD 24,152.30
HRWC 2020 2361 |PREDICTIVE SUCCESS CORPORATION CA LIN 1X3 WHITBY 316 COLBORNE ST WEST ON CAD 24,029.25
HRWC 2020 1402 [WURTH CANADA LTD CA N1C 0Al GUELPH 345 HANLON CREEK BOULEVARD ON CAD 24,006.99
HRWC 2020 1196 [PORT OF HALIFAX CA B3J 2P6 HALIFAX NS CAD 23,916.18
HRWC 2020 1683 [STRUM ENVIRONMENTAL CA B4A 1C5 BEDFORD 1355 BEDFORD HIGHWAY NS CAD 23,853.88
HRWC 2020 1908 |KGP CO. (FORMERLY HUTTON COMM CA L4W 2R4 MISSISSAUGA 5228 EVEREST DR ON CAD 23,730.24
HRWC 2020 2597 |ATLANTEK COMPUTER POWER SOLUTI CA B3B 1R3 DARTMOUTH 14-24 SIMMONDS DR NS CAD 23,248.98
HRWC 2020 3120 |OPIN SOFTWARE INC. CA K1R 5T5 OTTAWA 320 CATHERINE ST, SUITE 2 ON CAD 23,000.00
HRWC 2020 1505 |DUERDEN&KEANE ENVIRONMENTAL IN CA B3A 2M3 DARTMOUTH 26 FOREST ROAD NS CAD 22,770.00
HRWC 2020 1450 |COX & PALMER CA B3J 3ES HALIFAX 1959 UPPER WATER STREET NS CAD 22,543.22
HRWC 2020 1469 [MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA(CANADA) CA H3C 6P4 MONTREAL P O BOX 11725, SUCCURSALE CENTRE-VI Qc CAD 22,071.21
HRWC 2020 2662 |ENVIROSPHERE CONSULTANTS LTD. CA NEWPORT NS CAD 21,851.45
HRWC 2020 3606 |NEXOM INC CA NAVIN 5 BURKS WAY MB CAD 21,620.00
HRWC 2020 659 XL ELECTRIC LIMITED CA B3B 1K3 DARTMOUTH 4 WADDELL AVENUE NS CAD 21,577.24
HRWC 2020 281 J & M MURPHY LTD. CA B3L 4H7 HALIFAX 3514 JOSEPH HOWE DRIVE NS CAD 21,562.78
HRWC 2020 3409 |SHORELINE LUBE DISTRIBUTION IN CA E4P7M7 GRAND BARACHOIS 55 RAYMEL ROAD NB CAD 21,393.95
HRWC 2020 886 WAJAX EQUIPMENT CA T7X 5A3 ACHESON #30 26313 TWP 531A AB CAD 21,339.92
HRWC 2020 1238 [PITNEY WORKS CA LOW 277 ORANGEVILLE ON CAD 21,277.19
HRWC 2020 341 ANIXTER CANADA INC CA H2Y 3E9 MONTREAL PO BOX 144 SUCCERSALE PLACE Qc CAD 21,047.29
HRWC 2020 630 ATLANTIC CRANE & MAT. HANDLING CA B3B 1V6 DARTMOUTH 49 TRIDER CRES NS CAD 20,814.21
HRWC 2020 3203 |NOVATE SYSTEMS INC. CA B3B 1P7 DARTMOUTH 900 WINDMILL RD, UNIT 107B NS CAD 20,562.00
HRWC 2020 1629 [HAYWARD GORDON LTD. CA L7G 0A3 HALTON HILLS 5 BRIGDEN GATE ON CAD 20,353.68
HRWC 2020 2202 |PMCINC us 21204 TOWSON 110 WEST RD, SUITE 213 MD CAD 20,189.23
HRWC 2020 3130 |HATCH CORPORATION CA B3J 3K8 HALIFAX 1809 BARRINGTON ST, SUITE 1009 NS CAD 20,041.07
HRWC 2020 1754 [JAVELIN CONSTRUCTION LTD CA B3A 1H3 DARTMOUTH 311 WINDMILL ROAD NS CAD 19,785.75
HRWC 2020 2733 |EC ARMITAGE HARDWARE CA B3K 2E9 HALIFAX 5655 STANLY ST NS CAD 19,769.67
HRWC 2020 3559 |SURVIVAL SYSTEMS TRAINING LTD CA B2Y 4R9 DARTMOUTH 40 MOUNT HOPE AVE NS CAD 19,607.50
HRWC 2020 3602 |HIGHLAND GEOMATICS & ENGINEERI CA B4C 2R3 LOWER SACKVILLE 153 SACKVILLE DR, SUITE 1 NS CAD 19,550.00
HRWC 2020 3119 |ILLER DOOR SYSTEMS LTD. CA B6L 1X2 TRURO 159 TRURO HEIGHTS RD NS CAD 19,395.91
HRWC 2020 1306 [STRESCON LIMITED CA E2K 5L6 SAINT JOHN 400 CHESLEY DRIVE NB CAD 19,343.00
HRWC 2020 3498 |COOPER EQUIPMENT RENTALS LTD CA L5W 0G7 MISSISSAUGA 255 LONGSIDE DR UNIT 103 ON CAD 19,322.43
HRWC 2020 3527 |MITACS INC CA V6T 1Z3 VANCOUVER 6190 AGRONOMY RD, SUITE 301 BC CAD 19,166.67
HRWC 2020 2906 |CORRPRO CANADA INC. CA H9P 1G9 DORVAL 1985 55TH AVENUE Qc CAD 19,105.53
HRWC 2020 1630 [CANADIAN BEARINGS LTD CA L5S 1S5 MISSISSAUGA 1600 DREW RD ON CAD 18,703.15
HRWC 2020 2920 |LUMEN DIVISION OF SONEPAR CANA CA H2Y 1L6 MONTREAL 119 SAINT-JACQUES ST Qac CAD 18,645.20
HRWC 2020 1410 [HSE INTEGRATED LTD CA B3B 1L5 DARTMOUTH 95 ILSLEY AVENUE NS CAD 18,474.75
HRWC 2020 2098 |WILL-KARE PAVING & CONTRACTING CA B2N 5E5 TRURO 95 LOWER TRURO RD, BOX 651 NS CAD 18,170.23
HRWC 2020 1211 [CUMMINS CANADA ULC CA H9R 1C2 POINT CLAIRE 7200 TRANS CANADA HWY Qc CAD 18,161.25
HRWC 2020 3146 |NETWRIX uUs 43017 DUBLIN 565 METRO PLACE OH CAD 18,028.79
HRWC 2020 1827 |EAST COAST INTERNATIONAL TRUCK CA E1H 2R5 MONCTON 100 URQUHART AVE NB CAD 17,095.78
HRWC 2020 334 HETEK SOLUTIONS INC. CA T5) 3P4 EDMONTON 10250 101 STREET NW AB CAD 16,632.28
HRWC 2020 2493 |INDEPENDENT SECURITY SERVICES CA B3M 3Y7 HALIFAX 287 LACEWOOD DR, UNIT 103, SUITE 14 NS CAD 15,971.90
HRWC 2020 849 BRANDT TRACTOR LTD. CA S4P 3R8 REGINA HWY1 EAST BOX 3856 SK CAD 15,941.65
HRWC 2020 2182 |DAN-X RECYCLING LIMITED CA B3B 1R6 DARTMOUTH 64 TRIDER CRES NS CAD 15,891.72
HRWC 2020 728 MMP OFFICE INTERIORS INC. CA B3B 1B8 DARTMOUTH 656 WINDMILL ROAD NS CAD 15,806.68
HRWC 2020 3611 |SMITH + ANDERSEN CONSULTING EN CA B3J 3R7 HALIFAX 1969 UPPER WATER STREET - SUITE 190 NS CAD 15,752.70




HALIFAX REGIONAL WATER COMMISSION
Reporting Periods - April to Oct 31, 2021

Recon
CoCd acct Vendor |Name 1 Country PostalCode [City Street Rg Crecy Purchasing
HRWC 2020 2884 |KENT HOMES CA E2L 4M3 SAINT JOHN NB CAD 15,722.80
HRWC 2020 3054 |CORPORATE EXPRESS CANADA INC CA B3B 2E5 DARTMOUTH 2 ROYLES AVENUE NS CAD 15,588.57
HRWC 2020 977 UNDERGROUND CONSULTING SERVICE CA B3A 3H7 DARTMOUTH 12 GRAHAM STREET NS CAD 15,411.61
HRWC 2020 486 ATLANTIC BACKFLOW SPECIALISTS CA B2W 3K6 DARTMOUTH 65 MT. EDWARD ROAD NS CAD 15,105.15
HRWC 2020 1585 | WHITE CAP SUPPLY/BRAFASCO CA L4L 0B9 VAUGHAN 100 GALCAT DR ON CAD 15,089.53
HRWC 2020 541 HACH SALES & SERVICE CANADA LP CA N5V 417 LONDON 3020 GORE RD ON CAD 15,010.33
HRWC 2020 3192 |KORN FERRY HAY GROUP LTD. CA M5J 2T3 TORONTO 181 BAY ST, SUITE 3810 ON CAD 14,892.50
HRWC 2020 1934 |BRUNSWICK NEWS INC CA E1C8P3 MONCTON PO BOX 1001 NB CAD 14,705.34
HRWC 2020 1482 |HERITAGE GAS LIMITED CA B2Y 4W3 DARTMOUTH NS CAD 14,590.09
HRWC 2020 494 NGUYEN TECHNOLOGIES & ELECTRIC CA B3A 1H8 DARTMOUTH 339 WINDMILL ROAD NS CAD 14,133.86
HRWC 2020 2288 |VAN HOUTTE COFFEE SERVICES INC CA H1Z 4)9 MONTREAL 8215 17TH AVENUE Qac CAD 14,091.99
HRWC 2020 185 SERVANT, DUNBRACK, MCKENZIE & CA B3S 1C6 HALIFAX 36 OLAND CRESCENT NS CAD 13,959.85
HRWC 2020 3557 |THE PROCUREMENT LAW OFFICE CA M5V 3L5 TORONTO 781 KING ST WEST, SUITE 406 ON CAD 13,800.00
HRWC 2020 882 HEATHER BOUDREAU CA B4B 2B2 HAMMONDS PLAINS {28 HARNESS TRAIL NS CAD 13,774.98
HRWC 2020 2566 |JC AUTOWORKS INCORPORATED CA B3V 1A3 HARRIETSFIELD 801 OLD SAMBRO ROAD NS CAD 13,654.09
HRWC 2020 3575 |VOLCANO CONSTRUCTION SERVICES CA B3B 1E4 DARTMOUTH 36 FIELDING AVENUE NS CAD 13,455.00
HRWC 2020 3546 |XPLORNET COMMUNICATIONS CA E7M 6B5 WOODSTOCK 300 LOCKHART MILL RD, PO BOX 9060 NB CAD 13,363.00
HRWC 2020 1365 | MARITIME HOSE SPECIALTIES CA L5T 1V1 MISSISSAUGA 7245 PACIFIC CIRCLE ON CAD 13,290.99
HRWC 2020 816 J.W. LINDSAY ENTERPRISES LTD. CA B3B 1E2 DARTMOUTH 22 FIELDING AVENUE NS CAD 13,222.37
HRWC 2020 2846 |MAXWELL PROMOTIONAL PRODUCTS CA B3M 3Y7 HALIFAX 287 LACEWOOD DRIVE UNIT 103-273 NS CAD 12,844.35
HRWC 2020 9 AWWA RESEARCH FOUNDATION uUs 80235-3098 |DENVER 6666 WEST QUINCY AVENUE co CAD 12,688.71
HRWC 2020 3181 |ROCKWELL AUTOMATION CANADA LTD CA M5W 1P8 |TORONTO ON CAD 12,581.00
HRWC 2020 1596 |WESTECH INDUSTRIAL LTD CA T2H 126 CALGARY 5636 BURBANK CRESCENT SE AB CAD 12,563.75
HRWC 2020 199 TERRA NOVA LANDSCAPING LTD CA B4B 1G7 BEDFORD 130 BLUEWATER ROAD NS CAD 12,520.44
HRWC 2020 2205 |SOFTCHOICE LP CA L6M 2W1 OAKVILLE 105-1175 NORTH SERVICE RD WEST ON CAD 12,218.75
HRWC 2020 3097 |PINCHIN LTD. CA L5N 7W5 MISSISSAUGA 2470 MILLTOWER COURT ON CAD 12,061.31
HRWC 2020 2624 |EEP TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS INC. CA B3B 1N7 DARTMOUTH 97 SIMMONDS DR, BURNSIDE IND PRK NS CAD 11,792.04
HRWC 2020 2191 |WIRE ROPE INDUSTRIES (ATLANTIC CA B3B 1S3 DARTMOUTH 84 THORNHILL DRIVE NS CAD 11,746.75
HRWC 2020 1996 [WOOD WYANT CA B3B 1C9 DARTMOUTH 27 FIELDING AVENUE NS CAD 11,726.99
HRWC 2020 3513 |NATURAL FORCES SOLAR INC CA B3T 3N4 HALIFAX 1205-1801 HOLLIS ST NS CAD 11,720.23
HRWC 2020 2592 |SEASCAPE BUILDING MAINTENANCE CA MIDDLE SACKVILLE 515 LUCASVILLE ROAD UNIT 101 NS CAD 11,574.75
HRWC 2020 3463 |REFINED ROOFING CA B3K 3P8 HALIFAX 3675 ACADIA ST NS CAD 11,557.50
HRWC 2020 2397 |LINKEDIN IRELAND CA MS5E OE9 TORONTO ON CAD 11,520.00
HRWC 2020 3287 13325398 NOVA SCOTIA LTD. CA B3K 4X8 HALIFAX 3770 KEMPT RD, SUITE 110 NS CAD 11,500.00
HRWC 2020 3449  |HALIFAX PARTNERSHIP CA B3J OE9 HALIFAX 1675 GRAFTON ST - SUITE 701 NS CAD 11,500.00
HRWC 2020 588 OSISOFT, INC. CA H3B 3K9 MONTREAL Qc CAD 11,374.07
HRWC 2020 2142  |KILDOON INTELLECTION INC CA B3P 2H5 HALIFAX 9 MELVIN RD NS CAD 11,333.25
HRWC 2020 2983 |ERGOCENTRIC SEATING SYSTEMS IN CA L5T 2L6 MISSISSAUGA 275 SUPERIOR BLVD UNIT 2 ON CAD 11,127.11
HRWC 2020 732 COASTAL RESTORATION & MASONRY CA B3T 1P3 GOODWOOD 8 MILLS DRIVE NS CAD 10,991.70
HRWC 2020 1984 [MINISTER OF FINANCE CA B3B 1T3 DARTMOUTH 780 WINDMILL RD - 3RD FLOOR NS CAD 10,893.39
HRWC 2020 3167 |ATLAS COPCO COMPRESSORS CANADA CA H4R 2P1 SAINT LAURENT 5060 LEVY Qc CAD 10,739.66
HRWC 2020 2676 |BLUE WATER AGENCIES LIMITED CA B3B 1L6 DARTMOUTH 40 TOPPLE DR NS CAD 10,700.68
HRWC 2020 1301 [TRAILWALK HOLDINGS LTD CA BON 2T0 WINDSOR RR #1 391 WENTWORTH RD NS CAD 10,658.20
HRWC 2020 1288 |THE SHAW GROUP LIMITED CA B2S 1M9 LANTZ 1101 HIGHWAY #2 NS CAD 10,496.05
HRWC 2020 3568 |JAMES HANNAM INC CA B3M 3B1 HALIFAX 12 KINGFISHER CRESCENT NS CAD 10,334.38
HRWC 2020 3549 |VACUTRUX LTD CA N3B 2A1 ELMIRA 20 MARTINS LANE ON CAD 10,319.30
HRWC 2020 429 SSQ INSURANCE COMPANY INC CA H3A 2A5 MONTREAL 2020 UNIVERSITY AVE, SUITE 1800 Qc CAD 10,275.48
HRWC 2020 1352 [PARKWAY AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES LT CA B2W 3717 DARTMOUTH 676 MAIN STREET NS CAD 10,247.89
HRWC 2020 1862 [ULINE CA L6Y ON3 BRAMPTON 60 HEREFORD STREET ON CAD 10,233.53
HRWC 2020 446 ALL GLASS & UPHOLSTERY CA B3S 1C4 HALIFAX 55 MCQUADE LAKE CR NS CAD 10,197.05
HRWC 2020 1623 [DOUG CLARKE AUTO BODY LTD CA B2R 1R9 WAVERLEY 2578 ROCKY LAKE DR NS CAD 10,183.91
HRWC 2020 1380 [CANADAWIDE SCIENTIFIC LTD CA K1G 6B1 OTTAWA 2300 WALKLEY ROAD ON CAD 10,070.79
HRWC 2020 1863 |E.B.M. TRUCK & TRAILER LIMITED CA B4C 372 LOWER SACKVILLE 9 ESTATES ROAD NS CAD 10,046.50
HRWC 2020 3451 |PROAX TECHNOLOGIES LTD CA H7P 0C9 LAVAL 3505 JOHN PRATT STREET Qc CAD 10,010.50
HRWC 2020 1321 [BLUEWAVE ENERGY INC (ULTRAMAR) CA B3J 0AS DARTMOUTH P O BOX 728, STN CENTRAL NS CAD 10,001.36
HRWC 2020 876 DISCOVERY CENTRE CA B3J 358 HALIFAX 1215 LOWER WATER ST NS CAD 10,000.00
HRWC 2020 3291 |TTX CANADA INC CA N1T IN6 CAMBRIDGE 150 WERLICH DR UNIT 5 & 6 ON CAD 9,923.35
HRWC 2020 1669 |AINSWORTH INC CA M4A 1X4 TORONTO 131 BERMONDSEY ROAD ON CAD 9,763.22
HRWC 2020 1467 |ADVOCATE PRINTING & PUBL. CO.L CA BOK 1HO PICTOU 181 BROWNS POINT RD NS CAD 9,597.41
HRWC 2020 2280 |DIESEL AND AUTO ELECTRIC LIMIT CA B3B 1N7 DARTMOUTH 105 SIMMONDS DRIVE BURNSIDE PARK NS CAD 9,563.57
HRWC 2020 2661 |PROPERTY VALUATION SERVICE COR CA B3B 2B4 DARTMOUTH 238A BROWNLOW AVE, SUITE 200 NS CAD 9,417.12
HRWC 2020 2494 |CROMER INDUSTRIES (1988) CORP. CA P2S 2wW8 SEGUIN 160A HIGHWAY 141 ON CAD 9,312.33
HRWC 2020 772 CORROSION SERVICE CO. LTD. CA L6C 3A1 MARKHAM 280 HILLMOUNT ROAD, UNIT 9 ON CAD 9,307.64
HRWC 2020 35 DON BRENTON'S CA B3T 1L7 LAKESIDE 2 LAKESIDE PARK DRIVE, UNIT 12 NS CAD 9,267.56
HRWC 2020 2710 |PRINT 101 LTD CA B3K 5A8 HALIFAX 3667 STRAWBERRY HILL ST, UNIT 200 NS CAD 9,249.02
HRWC 2020 1330 [STELLAR INDUSTRIAL SALES LTD CA B3B 1B3 DARTMOUTH 520 WINDMILL RD NS CAD 9,217.24
HRWC 2020 2120 |JAMES LEGGATE FORESTRY CA BON 2L0 UPPER KENNETCOOK  |6079 HIGHWAY 236 - RR #1 NS CAD 9,131.00
HRWC 2020 1915 [HAZMASTERS INC. CA B3B 151 DARTMOUTH 60 THORNHILL DRIVE, UNIT 5 NS CAD 9,086.78
HRWC 2020 835 PACE PLUMBING & HEATING CA B3P 2C8 HALIFAX 34 WINCHESTER AVENUE NS CAD 9,026.99
HRWC 2020 149 KENT BUILDING SUPPLIES CA E2L 4G7 SAINT JOHN NB CAD 9,001.51
HRWC 2020 2844 |SHAREGATE CA H3K1G6 MONTREAL 1751 RICHARDSON ST, SUITE 5400 Qc CAD 8,883.24
HRWC 2020 2377 |DACINDUSTRIAL ENGINES CA B3B 126 DARTMOUTH 10 PAYZANT AVE NS CAD 8,861.79
HRWC 2020 1665 [MARITIME PRESSURE WORKS LTD CA B2Y 4K3 DARTMOUTH 41 ESTATES ROAD NS CAD 8,807.63
HRWC 2020 3534 |E SOURCE uUs 80301 Boulder 1745 38th Street co CAD 8,362.66
HRWC 2020 2313 |E.D. TECHNICAL SERVICES CA BOJ 1J0 CHESTER 85 GRANITE ST NS CAD 8,325.43
HRWC 2020 641 UNITED RENTALS OF CANADA LTD. CA N2B 3G1 KITCHENER 36 CENTENNIAL ROAD ON CAD 8,295.69
HRWC 2020 1928 |KNIGHTSBRIDGE ROBERTSON SURRET CA B3J 312 HALIFAX 5475 SPRING GARDEN ROAD, 6TH FLOOR NS CAD 8,050.00
HRWC 2020 1847 |VERONICS INSTRUMENTS INC CA L8E 0C5 STONEY CREEK 1100 SOUTH SERVICE RD, SUITE #114 ON CAD 7,990.20
HRWC 2020 3262 |GEMTEC CONSULTING ENGINEERS & CA E3C 2E6 FREDERICTION 191 DOAK RD NB CAD 7,987.90
HRWC 2020 398 SHIRLEY SAMPSON CA B2W 1H1 DARTMOUTH 63 EVERETTE STREET NS CAD 7,925.60
HRWC 2020 328 CTH INSTRUMENTS LTD. CA B3B 1J4 DARTMOUTH 10 AKERLEY BLVD., SUITE 36 NS CAD 7,900.50
HRWC 2020 3576 |COMPUGEN INC CA L4S 0B8 RICHMOND HILL 100 VIA RENZO DR ON CAD 7,834.95
HRWC 2020 3461 |CUES CANADA INC CA L4W 1P9 MISSISSAUGA 2-1675 SISMET RD ON CAD 7,789.61
HRWC 2020 2129 |THE SALVATION ARMY CA B3K 3A9 HALIFAX 2044 GOTTINGEN ST NS CAD 7,750.00
HRWC 2020 3582 |KOOLTRONIC uUs 8534 PENNINGTON 30 PENNINGTON-HOPEWELL ROAD NJ CAD 7,746.69
HRWC 2020 769 BENTLEY SYSTEMS INC. CA M5L 1K1 TORONTO PO BOX 3695 COMMERCE CRT POSTAL STA ON CAD 7,745.25




HALIFAX REGIONAL WATER COMMISSION
Reporting Periods - April to Oct 31, 2021

Recon

CoCd acct Vendor |Name 1 Country PostalCode [City Street Rg Crecy Purchasing
HRWC 2020 1746 |BDI CANADA INC CA L5T 1K2 MISSISSAUGA 6235 TOMKEN ROAD ON CAD 7,658.09
HRWC 2020 44 TRANS WORLD DISTRIBUTING LTD. CA B3B 1K4 DARTMOUTH 9 WADDELL AVENUE NS CAD 7,619.95
HRWC 2020 3601 |PRAXES EMERGENCY SPECIALISTS | CA B3K 1Z7 HALIFAX 5539B YOUNG STREET NS CAD 7,498.00
HRWC 2020 678 HURRICANE INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT CA B3B 1N4 DARTMOUTH 188 JOSEPH ZATZMAN DRIVE NS CAD 7,272.12
HRWC 2020 440 ANSWER 365 CA B3K 4E5 HALIFAX 2829 AGRICOLA STREET NS CAD 7,255.49
HRWC 2020 1103 |RORY MACNEIL CA B3K 5M1 HALIFAX NS CAD 7,143.90
HRWC 2020 3141 |LZG CONTRACTING CA BON 1PO KENNETCOOK 6060 HIGHWAY 354 NS CAD 7,015.00
HRWC 2020 3607 |MELTWATER NEWS CANADA, INC CA MS5H 1J9 TORONTO 150 KING ST. W, FLOOR 7 ON CAD 6,911.50
HRWC 2020 1266 |ALL-TECH ENVIROMENTAL SERVICE CA B4A 2Z5 BEDFORD 20 DUKE STREET, SUITE 109 NS CAD 6,888.50
HRWC 2020 3593 |PALADIN SECURITY GROUP LTD CA V5G 4W3 BURNABY 201-3001 WAYBURNE DRIVE BC CAD 6,842.50
HRWC 2020 3066 |SCHOONER EXCAVATION LTD. CA B3T 1P3 GOODWOOD 8 MILLS DR NS CAD 6,785.00
HRWC 2020 1773 |STEEL 'N MOTION INC CA B3V 1B9 HALIFAX 1922 OLD SAMBRO ROAD NS CAD 6,765.99
HRWC 2020 834 PETROMAX CA B3B 1E1 DARTMOUTH 16A FIELDING AVENUE NS CAD 6,722.80
HRWC 2020 833 CME-CANADIAN MARITIME ENGINEER CA B3B 1S3 DARTMOUTH 90 THORNHILL DRIVE NS CAD 6,613.14
HRWC 2020 1174 |KEMPTON APPRAISALS LIMITED CA B2Y 1K8 DARTMOUTH 376 PORTLAND STREET NS CAD 6,325.00
HRWC 2020 1699 |OFFICE-TEC ATLANTIC LTD CA B3L 417 HALIFAX PO BOX 22022, BAYERS RPO NS CAD 6,210.00
HRWC 2020 1164 |NATIONAL LIFE SUPPORT CA B3M 4H4 HALIFAX NS CAD 6,174.00
HRWC 2020 2717 |BOOMER TECHNICAL RESOURCES LTD CA B3B 1R6 DARTMOUTH 34 TRIDER CRES NS CAD 6,164.00
HRWC 2020 2600 |JOHNSON CONTROLS CA B4A 2T3 BEDFORD 275 ROCKY LAKE DRIVE, SUITE 20 NS CAD 6,077.92
HRWC 2020 1757 |HARRIS INDUSTRIAL TESTING SERV CA B2R 1P4 WAVERLEY 21 OLD COBEQUID ROAD NS CAD 6,037.50
HRWC 2020 2760 |BRAND SAFWAY ACCESS INC CA N6M 1A1 LONDON 318 NEPTUNE CRESCENT UNIT 5 ON CAD 5,970.50
HRWC 2020 3292 |EAST COAST MOBILE MEDICAL CA B3B 158 DARTMOUTH 101 ILSLEY AVE, SUITE 1 NS CAD 5,939.75
HRWC 2020 3580 |IBI GROUP PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CA M4V 2Y7 TORONTO 55 ST. CLAIR AVENUE WEST NS CAD 5,922.50
HRWC 2020 1542 |FOWLER BAULD & MITCHELL CA B3J1v7 HALIFAX HS1-1600 HOLLIS ST NS CAD 5,896.63
HRWC 2020 3596  |ST NICHOLAS ANGLICAN CHURCH CA B3Z 1H4 UPPER TANTALLON 29 WESTWOOD HILLS NS CAD 5,855.84
HRWC 2020 2090 |EXELE INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC uUs 14445-2201 |EAST ROCHESTER 445 W. COMMERCIAL ST NY CAD 5,706.06
HRWC 2020 2444 | TRANSPARA us 85087 PHOENIX 4715 WEST CULPEPPER DR AZ CAD 5,683.04
HRWC 2020 449 THOMPSON CONN LTD. CA B3L 4P8 HALIFAX 6169 QUINPOOL ROAD NS CAD 5,577.50
HRWC 2020 3337 |MALVERN PANALYTICAL CA M5W 1C1  |TORONTO ON CAD 5,531.50
HRWC 2020 3403 |KELLY PEREIRA CA B3K5M1 HALIFAX 450 COWIE HIL RD NS CAD 5,461.76
HRWC 2020 1704 |WEED MAN (PLANTATION HOLDINGS CA B3B 1R6 DARTMOUTH 60 TRIDER CRESCENT NS CAD 5,399.25
HRWC 2020 881 FRANK HORNE AUTO BODY CA B3G 1H9 EASTERN PASSAGE 2011 CALDWELL ROAD NS CAD 5,285.00
HRWC 2020 2863 |METRO LINE-X CA B3K 4P3 HALIFAX 2823 ROBIE ST NS CAD 5,203.75
HRWC 2020 1556 |SVM SERVICES/ACE PEST CONTROL CA B3B 0M4 DARTMOUTH 204 BROWNLOW AVE, UNIT 155 NS CAD 5,195.70
HRWC 2020 1705 [CUSTOM PROTECT EAR INC. CA V35S 9E9 SURREY #681-7789 134TH STREET BC CAD 5,189.79
HRWC 2020 3470 |QRA CONSULTING INC CA B3K 5L2 HALIFAX 101-6080 YOUNG ST NS CAD 5,175.00
HRWC 2020 3490 |SCOTIA TIRE - ANDY'S TIRE - A1 CA B3T 1A1 LAKESIDE 12 DOMINION CRES NS CAD 5,135.53
HRWC 2020 1343 [GROUPLINK CORPORATION uUs 84010-8172 |BOUNTIFUL 563 W 500 S, SUITE 400 Ut CAD 5,095.07
HRWC 2020 947 GRAFFITI GONE CA B3N 1B2 HALIFAX 60 WITHROD DRIVE NS CAD 5,060.00
HRWC 2020 2236 |CARVERY'S CONSTRUCTION LTD CA B3B 1H7 DARTMOUTH 6 RALSTON AVE NS CAD 5,035.74

Total Spend greater than $5,000 73,858,439.95

Total Spend less than $5,000 529,927.90

74,388,367.85




iJf(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4.2

l l Water Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board as Trustees of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Employees’ Pension Plan

Digitally signed by Louis

de Montbrun
SUBMITTED BY: < Zon To— b 20211115

12:57:42 -04'00"
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA,
Director, Corporate Services/ CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: W a—bta 8512??021 1119

12:44:20 -04'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D,
General Manager

DATE: November 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Proposed 2022 Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’
Pension Plan Budget

ORIGIN

The Halifax Regional Water Commission Board (the “Board”) are the Trustees of the Halifax
Water Employees’ Pension Plan (the “Plan”) and approve the annual budget of the Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Board approve the proposed 2022 budget for the Plan covering the period
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

BACKGROUND

The purpose of the 2022 budget, as reported in the attached statement of changes in net assets
available for benefits, outlines the various revenues, contributions and expenses of the defined
benefit pension plan established for the employees of the Halifax Regional Water Commission
(“Halifax Water”). Supplemental plans, namely the defined contribution plan and notional
retirement compensation agreements are not reported, since budget implications related to these
plans are included in the annual operating budget of Halifax Water.

Page 1 of 4



ITEM #4.2

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

DISCUSSION

The attached statement of changes in net assets available for benefits provides a comparison
between the proposed 2022 budget, the approved 2021 budget, and the year-end audited results for
2020.

As reported in the attachment, for 2022 the net assets available for benefits are projected to increase
by $16.2 million compared to the budget of $9.8 million in 2021, and the actual increase of $13.4
million in 2020. This increase is driven by favourable results anticipated related to revenues and
contributions, net of expenses.

Revenue:

Total revenue for 2022 is budgeted at $15.2 million, representing a $6.6 million or 77.2% increase
compared to the budget for 2021, and a $3.0 million or 24.6% increase compared to actual results
for 2020. Revenue is derived from two (2) primary sources:

e Investment income, and
e Increase in the fair value of investment assets.

The greatest impact in 2022 affecting revenue compared with 2021 relates to the projected increase
in the fair value of investment assets of $12.0 million. In 2021, the increase was budgeted at $5.1
million, and for 2020 the reported increase in the fair value of investment assets was $8.6 million.
Changes in the fair value of investment assets tend to be more volatile compared to investment
income. Increases over the past 5 years have varied dramatically, going from a high of $10.6
million in 2019 to a low $1.8 million in 2018. Results for 2021 show the fair value of investment
assets have increased $8.5 million for the nine (9) month period ending September 30, 2021
compared to a pro-rated budget of $3.8 million.

Investment income has been consistent historically, averaging $3.4 million during the 3-year
period 2018-2020. Results for 2021 show investment income tracking at $2.4 million for the nine
(9) month period ending September 30, 2021. Investment income budgeted in 2022 of $3.4 million
represents a $0.3 million decrease compared to the 2021 budget and a decrease of $0.4 million
compared to the actual results in 2020. Investment income budgeted for 2022 is based on the
continued favourable results of the Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust (the “Master
Trust”). For the twelve (12) month period ending June 30, 2021 the Master Trust earned a return
of 13.9%.

Key assumptions:
e Investment Income
+ Based on average of 2018 - 2021 (using extrapolated results for 2021)

e Increase in the fair market of investment assets
% Based on extrapolated results for 2021, plus an estimated 5% growth factor

Page 2 of 4



ITEM #4.2

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Contributions:

Contributions are budgeted at $7.0 million in 2022, representing an increase of $0.3 million or
4.3% compared to the budget for 2021, and an increase of $0.5 million or 7.7% compared to 2020.
The increase is attributed to projected new hires during the year, normal salary/wage increases,
and movement of personnel within salary bands.

Key assumptions:

e Projected 20 new hires driven by the need to increase capacity to deliver capital projects to
meet the Integrated Resource Plan level of spend, regulatory direction and expectations of
the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board with respect to some projects and programs in
2022/23, and increasing assets and customers caused by growth within the municipality.
(As the Halifax Water budget has not been approved, the number of new hires may vary.)

e Salary/ wage escalations
+ Non-union — based on projected 2.0% increase. (Conservative estimate of increase
resulting from periodic market survey as per Halifax Water’s Policy # NUI1 —
Compensation Policy — Non-Union Employees)

% Union — based on respective collective agreements
e Pensionable earnings capped at $140,945 (until 2023)

e No change to current contribution rate of 10.34%. (Contributions rates may need to be
adjusted based on the results of the Actuarial Valuation to be conducted early in 2022.)

Expenses:

Expenses of $6.0 million are budgeted for 2022, an increase of $0.5 million or 9.0% compared to
the budget for 2021, and an increase of $0.6 million or 12.0% compared to 2020.

Benefit and Termination payments are the main driver of total expenses, and consist of:
1. Benefits payments to pensioners and survivors,
2. Termination payments, and
3. Pre-retirement Death benefit payments.

Benefits paid to pensioners and survivors increase annually as employees retire from Halifax
Water, and as a result of indexation provided in the Plan. For 2022, budgeted payments to
pensioners increase from $4.9 million in 2021 to $5.1 million based on projected retirements and
indexation.

Termination payments are difficult to predict. In 2020, termination payments were $0.7 million.
Unaudited results for the nine (9) month period ending September 30, 2021 total $0.7 million
compared to an annual budget of $0.5 million. For 2022, the budget has been increased $0.2 million
to a level within the range of the average paid out over the past five (5) years. With the increase in
the number of employees and Halifax Water’s increased focus on performance management, it is
expected that termination benefits would continue to increase year over year.

Page 3 of 4



ITEM #4.2

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Administrative expenses account for approximately 4.0% of the overall budgeted expenses. For
2022, total administrative expenses are $0.2 million, which are higher than 2021 and 2020 due to
the costs associated with the Actuarial Valuation to take place in 2022. Actuarial and consulting
fees represent the largest expense within the administrative grouping.

Key Assumptions:

e Indexing —based on 2.0% and 1.0% estimates; pre-2016 benefits earned are indexed at CPI
to a maximum of 2% while post-2015 benefits are indexed at CPI to a maximum of 1%.

e Projected 9 new retirements — based on 6-year average and consideration of retirement
eligibility.
e Termination payments

¢ Based on 5-year historical average, and annualization of 2021 actuals

e Assume no pre-retirement death benefit payments for 2022

ATTACHMENT

Proposed 2022 Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Budget

Digitally si d b
Heather Hoather Briten
Report Prepared by:  Britten 0D

Heather Britten, B.Comm,
Quality Assurance Officer (902) 490-1895

Page 4 of 4



Item 4.2

Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan November 25, 2021

Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits Attachment
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
Actual Approved Proposed
(Audited) Budget Budget
2020 2021 2022
Revenue
Net investment income:
Total investment income $3,763,614 $3,700,000 $3,400,000
Investment manager fees ($194,968) ($220,000) ($200,000)
Increase in the fair value of investment assets $8,630,589 $5,100,000 $12,000,000
$12,199,235 $8,580,000 $15,200,000
Contributions
Participants:
Current service (includes additional voluntary contributions) $3,310,113 $3,417,000 $3,569,500
Sponsors:
Current service $3,230,131 $3,332,000 $3,472,000
$6,540,244 $6,749,000 $7,041,500
Expenses
Benefit payments:
Benefit payments $4,552,474 $4,866,000 $5,071,000
Termination payments $677,237 $500,000 $700,000
$5,229,710 $5,366,000 $5,771,000
Administrative:
Actuarial and consulting fees $42,143 $55,000 $130,000
Audit and accounting fees $8,648 $9,000 $9,000
Bank custodian fees $30,479 $30,000 $30,450
Insurance $9,636 $9,000 $9,700
Miscellaneous $16,724 $20,000 $22,050
Professional fees $23,151 $20,000 $33,000
Registration fees $2,645 $3,000 $2,940
Training (Trustees/ Administration/ Pension Committee) $0 $2,000 $1,000
$5,363,136 $5,514,000 $6,009,140

Increase in net assets available for benefits $13,376,343 $9,815,000 $16,232,360




‘LI(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4.3

l 1 Water

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair, and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board as Trustees of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
Digitally signed by Louis
de Montbrun
SUBMITTED BY: <275~ TG 0D
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/ CFO
&06 Digitally signed by Cathie
- O'Toole
APPROVED: Caxiw 0:56:52 0400
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager
DATE: November 17, 2021
SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
Proposed Actuarial Valuation Assumptions — January 1, 2022
ORIGIN

Nova Scotia Pension Benefits Act

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Halifax Regional Water Commission Board (the “Board”) approve the
attached proposed actuarial valuation assumptions in principle, to be used in conducting the
January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation of the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’
Pension Plan (the “Plan”).

BACKGROUND

Section 53(1) of the Nova Scotia Pension Benefits Regulations requires defined benefit pension
plans to file an actuarial valuation report every three years.

Page 1 of 4



ITEM #4.3

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

DISCUSSION

The Board, as Trustees of the Plan, are required to approve the assumptions to be used for an
actuarial valuation, the results of which are used to determine funding requirements for the Plan
and current service costs.

The Plan was re-designed January 1, 2016 with a view to improve its financial position as
measured through the actuarial valuations The actuarial valuation performed January 1, 2019
resulted in the Plan reporting a going concern excess or surplus of $2.1 million, compared to an
unfunded liability or deficit of $7.6 million reported in the January 1, 2016 actuarial valuation.

January 1, 2019 January 1, 2016 January 1, 2014
Going Concern $2,057,700 ($7,620,900) ($27,110,200)
Solvency ($3,502,200) ($2,504,400) $9,962,800
Minimum Total Special Payments $0 $825,200 $2,952,200
Employee Contribution Rate 10.34% 10.65% 12.95%
Total Employer Contribution 10.34% or | 13.29% of payroll | 27.40% of payroll
(including current service cost & $2,908,100 | or $3,188,600 or $5,873,600
special payments)

The Plan received a solvency funding exemption effective June 1, 2015 however the calculation
of the solvency ratio is still relevant. Under Nova Scotia pension legislation, should the solvency
ratio fall below the 85% threshold, the Plan would be required to file a valuation within one (1)
year, rather than the usual three (3) year period. The solvency ratio for the Plan as at January 1,
2019 was 97.3%, resulting in the next valuation at January 1, 2022.

In the interim period since January 1 2019, extrapolations were performed as at December 31,
2019 and December 31, 2020, resulting in excesses or surpluses of $8.7 million and $13.2 million
respectively. Investment performance of the Halifax Regional Municipality (HRM) Master Trust
has been strong, with a net fund rate of return in 2019 of 10.7%, and 7.6% in 2020. For the 9-
month period ended September 30, 2021, the net fund rate of return is tracking at 6.9%.

If the January 1, 2022 Actuarial Valuation results in the plan having a going concern funded ratio
of 108% and no solvency deficit; it may trigger additional conditional indexation (to a maximum
of an additional 1%) as long as it can be affected while maintaining a going concern funded ratio
of 108%.

The Maximum Earnings Base was frozen in 2016 for 8 years at the 2015 level, and will begin to
index at the rate of 1% in 2023.

Halifax Water’s actuary, Eckler, have identified the proposed actuarial valuation assumptions to
be used for January 1, 2022, a summary of which has been attached, along with a comparison to
the actuarial valuation assumptions used in January 1, 2019. Proposed changes in assumptions
from the prior actuarial valuation have been highlighted for ease of reference, and are discussed
below.

Page 2 of 4



ITEM #4.3

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Interest (discount rate):

This assumption will not be known until mid-December 2021, when capital market assumptions
are finalized for January 1, 2022 actuarial valuations. The January 1, 2019 assumption contained
some conservatism however, under the new Nova Scotia Funding Regulations, conservatism will
be removed from the interest rate assumption and replaced with an explicit Provision for Adverse
Deviation (PfAD). This will require the Plan to fund to a level greater than 100%, with the actual
level based on the most recent asset mix of the HRM Master Trust.

The actuary has performed initial tests on the sensitivity of valuation results respecting discount
rate changes and found that with a 0.1% increase in the discount rate, Plan liabilities would go
down by approximately 1.6%. Based on the most recent HRM Master Trust asset mix, a PfAD
requirement of 7% is expected under the new Regulations, which means the Plan would have to
fund to a level of 107%. As an example, increasing the discount rate from the 5.8% per annum
used in the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation to 6.25% per annum would result in an approximate
7% decrease in Plan liabilities, which effectively offsets the new 7% PfAD requirement.

The preliminary expectation is a discount rate of close to 6.25% per annum for the January 1, 2022
actuarial valuation can be supported however, as noted above, that will not be known with certainty
until mid-December 2021.

Percentage married:

This assumption has been changed to align with recent experience of the Plan, along with other
similar plans. Changing this assumption will result in a minimal improvement in the actuarial
valuation results.

Interest on contributions:

This assumption has been changed to reflect the expected crediting rate. The Plan requires that
interest with respect to required contributions shall not be less than the minimum rate prescribed
by the Pension Benefits Act of Nova Scotia which is the average yield of 5-year personal fixed
term chartered bank deposit rates (CANSIM B 14045) over the past year. The B 14045 rate, which
can be thought of as a 5-year GIC rate, has been averaging just over 1% during the past 5 years.
The proposed rate of 2.5% per annum is higher than what this rate has been in recent years, and
reflects an expectation that interest rates will rise in the future. The impact of changing this
assumption on the actuarial valuation results will be immaterial.

Post-retirement mortality:

This change represents a move to use the same mortality table used by the HRM Pension Plan, and
align better with the demographics of the Plan’s membership. Mortality gains revealed in the
January 1, 2016 and January 1, 2019 valuations support this change however, additional analysis
will be performed once the January 1, 2022 data has received, to further confirm and validate
support for the change. Changing this assumption could potentially result in a reduction in
liabilities and current service costs of between 1.1% and 1.4%.

The proposed changes in the actuarial valuation assumptions are not expected to have a significant
impact on the actuarial valuation results. Other factors that impact actuarial results include the

Page 3 of 4



ITEM #4.3

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Plan’s experience, where gains or losses could be realized when comparing actual to expected
results based on the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation assumptions. Experience measurements
will not be known, and cannot be determined until the January 1, 2022 data has been received and
analyzed.

ATTACHMENT

Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan - Proposed Actuarial Valuation
Assumptions, January 1, 2022

Digitally signed by Allan

Campbell
Report Prepared by: MV ﬁ&ﬁﬂ:ﬁ/é\, Date: 2021.11.19

11:12:16 -04'00"
Allan Campbell, CPA, CMA
Manager, Finance (902) 266-8655

Page 4 of 4



“Je)jeasay) sieak ul wnuue sad % | Aq Buiseasoul ‘€z0g ybnoiyl 910z sieak ul 68°818°2$ JO wnwixew e 0} }0algns ‘Joy xe] awoou| 8y} Aq paqroseid se Jwi| Jiyjeuaq paulap ayi o} [enba s GL0g ‘L€ Joqueda( Jole a0IAIeS
40 10adsau Ul uoIsuad WNWIXew By} pue oy Xe | 8woou| 8y} Aq paguosaid se jiwi Jyeusq paulap sy} o} [enbs si 910z ‘| Arenuer o} Joud 891A19s Jo 10adsal Ul uoisuad WNWIXeW S,Ueld 8} ‘0 L# JUSWIPUSWY U}IM SOUBPIOOO. U] |

1paIDd Hun pejosfoid upaiD Hun parosloid poylew Buipun4
sjuswanoldw| §-NdD [edS UM 8leAlld #102-INdD sjuswanoldw| g-INdD 8[edS YiM pauiquiod #102-INdD Ajlenow uswainel-isod
SUON SUON Aljenow Juswalnai-aid
J1ap|o siedh g soe J9p|0 sieakh g sae\ abe s,asnodg
wnuue Jad %052 wnuue J4ad %00t SUONNQIIUOD UO 1SaJalu|
%58 %00 palew abejusdled
Jayyeassyl wnuue Jad %00 | Jayealayl wnuue Jad %00 |
‘©202-61.02 Ul wnuue Jad %0070 G102 ‘1€ Jogquadaq Jalje a2IAI8s 104 | ‘€202-6102 Ul wnuue Jad %000 G102 ‘1§ Jaquiadeq Jalje 82IAI8S 104
2202 Jaye wnuue Jad %00°€ :9102 ¢} Arenuep 0} dn 801A18S 104 6102 Jaye wnuue Jad %00°€ 19102 ‘| Arenuep 0] dn 821AI8S 104 uolsuad wnuwixew Ul 9sealou|
, 6102 Ul 68'8182$ G102 ‘L€ Joquade( Jale adlAIes o4 , 6102 U1 68°818°2$ G102 ‘L€ Joquiada( Jalje 89IAIeS 104
, 2202 Ul 00°02%'€$ 19102 ‘I Arenuer o0} dn 8o1AI8s 104 , 6102 U 95°G20°€$ 19102 ‘| Arenuer o} dn 801AI8S 404 uolsuad wnwixey
wnuue Jad °,06°¢ wnuue Jad °,06°¢ a[eos Alejes
SUON aUON S[emelpylp
G8 40 8Ny 18 %09 ‘G9 abe e %0f G8 40 8Ny 18 %09 ‘G9 abe e %0Y abe Juswaliey
G102 ‘L€ 1equiada( Jale 99IAI8S 10} Juswainal-1sod %08
910z ‘| Aenuep o} dn 821AI8S 10} JuswaJnel-1sod %08°¢
(gg.L) paulwisiep 9 0] Juswainal-aid °%08°'G (8184 JUNOJSIP) 1S8481U|
ulaouo) buioy - gzoeg ‘I Aenuep pasodoud ulaouo) buioy - g1og ‘I Aenuep uondwnssy
suondwnssy uolenjep |euen}oy suondwnssy uolenjep |euen}oy
2202 ‘1 AMenuep ‘suondwnssy uonenje) |elien}oy pasodold - ue|d uoisudd ,saakojdwz uoissiwwos) 1aje)\ jeuoibay xejijeH

1202 ‘€2 JoquIsAoN
pJeog Jelep\ XejiieH
Sv# INTLI




| ITEM #5
J(J/ H a I 1 faX Halifax Water Board
l l Water November 25, 2021

TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair, and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board

Digitally signed by Reid
Campbell
SUBMITTED BY: @W Tr5041 0400
Reid Campbell, M.Eng., P.Eng.
Director, Engineering and Technology Services

Digitally signed by Louis

de Montbrun
M Date: 2021.11.19
11:12:28 -04'00'

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

- &b‘e O'Toole
M(MJ Date: 2021.11.19

APPROVED: 11:46:30 -04'00'
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: November 19, 2021
SUBJECT: Capital Expenditures for the Seven Months Ended October 31, 2021
ORIGIN

The Corporate Balanced Scorecard identifies the percentage of capital budget spent by the end of the fiscal
year as a critical success factor and sets a target of 70-80%.

BACKGROUND

The Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) Board is required to review periodic financial
information throughout the year. Halifax Water’s 2019 Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) identifies
a 30-year capital investment plan valued at $2.7 Billion (net present value). In relation to the
IRP, the capital budget program focuses on providing required infrastructure for asset renewal,
regulatory compliance, and growth. The IRP calls for delivery of an average of $135 million dollars
in capital projects per year. Halifax Water’s annual capital budget, and capability to deliver capital
projects, has not yet reached this level.

DISCUSSION

Below is the breakdown by asset class and project status of the expenditures for the seven (7) months ending
October 31, 2021. Last year Halifax Water delivered 30.78% of the budgeted capital spend for 2020/21 by
end of fiscal year. Based on the 7 months ending October 31, 2021 results shown below, Halifax Water is
projecting a similar result for this year. There are several significant projects in this year’s capital budget

Page 1 of 3



ITEM #5

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

for which construction has been delayed or extended into the next construction season for reasons including,
construction market conditions, land acquisition, planning consideration or issues that arose during the
planning phase which required a scope change.

Capital Expenditure Report

Total
Expenditures to
Total Remaining October 31, 2021
Expenditures Expenditures Budget as a Percentage
Total Budget Expendituresto April 1, 2021 to to October 31, Available asof of Total Budget
Budget Category Available March 31, 2021 October 31, 2021 2021 October 31, 2021 Available

Active
Water $ 92,179,298 § 15,284,383 § 12,962,421 $ 28,246,804 $ 63,932,494 30.6%
Wastewater 104,030,866 15,362,506 9,291,762 24,654,268 79,376,598 23.7%
Stormwater 16,330,015 1,272,709 2,852,440 4,125,149 12,204,866 25.3%
212,540,179 31,919,598 25,106,623 57,026,221 155,513,958 26.8%

Pending

Water 20,332,440 28,057 169 28,226 20,304,214 0.1%
Wastewater 29,158,000 - - - 29,158,000 0.0%
Stormwater 784,238 (227) - (227) 784,465 0.0%
50,274,678 27,830 169 27,999 50,246,679 0.1%

Closed
Water 936,196 - - - 936,196 0.0%
Wastewater 5,722,430 - - - 5,722,430 0.0%
Stormwater 1,899,800 - - - 1,899,800 0.0%
8,558,426 - - - 8,558,426 0.0%
$ 271,373,283 $ 31,947,428 $ 25,106,792 $ 57,054,220 $ 214,319,063 21.0%

The Total Budget Available of $271.4 million represents total approved budgets for pending, active, and
closed projects as at the end of October 31, 2021.

Total Expenditures to October 31, 2021 of $57.1 million include expenditures of $31.9 million incurred
prior to April 1, 2021 and expenditures of $25.1 million in the current fiscal year. This results in a
Remaining Budget Available as of October 31, 2021 of $214.3 million.

Project Managers are currently working on updating forecasted total expenditures to the end of the 2021/22
fiscal year and to the end of each project.

In the Pending project category, there is $28.4 million that has been deferred or cancelled. In addition, there
is $18.2 million that has been made available from surpluses on closed projects, of which $7.5 million has
been allocated to projects in the current fiscal year. This funding is available to be reallocated to existing
projects, if required, or used to fund future capital budgets.

As projects are completed, they will be moved to the closed category. No projects have yet been closed in
this fiscal year, most are closed in the last quarter of the fiscal year.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM #5

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

ATTACHMENT

Capital Expenditure Report October 31, 2021

Report prepared by:

Alicia
Scallion

Digitally signed by Alicia
Scallion

Date: 2021.11.19
11:33:47 -04'00'

Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, (902)-497-9785

Page 3 of 3




ITEM#5

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Capital Expenditure Report ATTACHMENT
For the Period Ending October 31/21
Total Remaining
Expenditures Expenditures Budget Available
Total Budget Expenditures to  April 1, 2021 to to October 31, as of October 31,
Status Service Asset Category Available March 31,2021 October 31, 2021 2021 2021
Active w Water - Land 315,000 44,449 - 44,449 270,551
Water - Transmission 6,087,468 847,269 1,290,199 2,137,467 3,950,001
Water - Distribution 10,267,651 1,283,723 2,020,681 3,304,403 6,963,248
Water - Energy 200,000 - - - 200,000
Water - Structures 15,935,000 4,581,180 3,186,878 7,768,058 8,166,942
Water - Treatment Facilities 9,439,000 167,819 453,159 620,977 8,818,023
Water - Security 50,000 14,010 49,402 63,412 (13,412)
Water - Equipment 13,053,000 1,676,444 1,091,662 2,768,106 10,284,894
Water - Corporate Projects 36,832,178 6,669,490 4,870,441 11,539,931 25,292,248
W Total 92,179,298 15,284,383 12,962,421 28,246,304 63,932,494
wWw Wastewater - Trunk Sewers 17,725,000 19,020 14,784 33,804 17,691,196
Wastewater - Collection System 42,000,337 9,706,057 2,214,333 11,920,390 30,079,947
Wastewater - Forcemains 3,110,000 94,869 1,059,316 1,154,185 1,955,815
Wastewater - Structures 15,129,527 3,017,141 2,129,478 5,146,619 9,982,908
Wastewater - Treatment Facility 16,632,774 2,178,094 2,639,932 4,818,026 11,814,748
Wastewater - Energy 739,000 56,265 3,324 59,589 679,411
Wastewater - Security 200,000 902 95,663 96,565 103,435
Wastewater - Equipment 460,000 49,397 21,233 70,630 389,370
Wastewater - Corporate Projects 7,989,228 202,972 1,113,699 1,316,671 6,672,557
Wastewater - Unregulated 45,000 37,788 - 37,788 7,212
WW Total 104,030,866 15,362,506 9,291,762 24,654,268 79,376,598
SW Stormwater - Pipes 4,989,000 204,807 225,634 430,441 4,558,559
Stormwater - Culverts/Ditches 4,687,000 644,470 1,169,564 1,814,034 2,872,966
Stormwater - Structures 6,593,000 73,821 1,387,391 1,461,212 5,131,788
Stormwater - Corporate Projects 61,015 349,611 69,851 419,462 (358,447)
SW Total 16,330,015 1,272,709 2,852,440 4,125,149 12,204,866
Active Total 212,540,179 31,919,598 25,106,623 57,026,221 155,513,958
Pending W Water - Land 580,000 - - - 580,000
Water - Transmission 3,912,400 - - - 3,912,400
Water - Distribution 275,000 169 169 338 274,662
Water - Energy 455,000 - - - 455,000
Water - Structures 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
Water - Treatment Facilities 8,244,000 - - - 8,244,000
Water - Corporate Projects 4,566,040 27,888 - 27,888 4,538,152
W Total 20,332,440 28,057 169 28,226 20,304,214
ww Wastewater - Collection System 7,531,000 - - - 7,531,000
Wastewater - Forcemains 60,000 - - - 60,000
Wastewater - Structures 10,674,000 - - - 10,674,000
Wastewater - Treatment Facility 8,975,500 - - - 8,975,500
Wastewater - Energy 1,662,500 - - - 1,662,500
Wastewater - Security 100,000 - - - 100,000
Wastewater - Equipment 150,000 - - - 150,000
Wastewater - Corporate Projects 5,000 - - - 5,000
WW Total 29,158,000 - - - 29,158,000
SW Stormwater - Pipes 381,238 (227) - (227) 381,465
Stormwater - Culverts/Ditches 280,000 - - - 280,000
Stormwater - Structures 93,000 - - - 93,000
Stormwater - Corporate Projects 30,000 - - - 30,000
SW Total 784,238 (227) - (227) 784,465
Pending Total 50,274,678 27,830 169 27,999 50,246,679
Grand Total 262,814,857 31,947,428 25,106,792 57,054,221 | 205,760,637 |




324NOS aY3 |
woa LHOIVYLS| 1202 ‘/Z JoqWaAON

Jlabeue|\ Alljenp Jalep) ‘Yoasoqdy Apuspn

ue|d A)ajeg 19)ep) V Spiemo) BUIAO
— Buluue|d 19)seN Ajijenpd Jajep

J3J7 1>>

1202 ‘ST 19qWdAON
pieog 19}e M XeH[eH XeJlleH %

SRR



uonebiiw pue uononpal }su 0} buipuads |elded a1y pue sysi 8jelodiod Jo diysisumo ubisse pue ssaippe ‘Ajjuspl

0] Sl Y3 Jo |eos) -aadde ysu suoneziuebio 8y} JO 8pISINO YSu 1o} suoljoe uonebiiw Buiziuoud ul spie waisAg “sysiu

Ja1 doy Joj sjuswalinbal Buiuodal pieog pue ysi pue aylaedde ysil Jo JuswdojeAsp sapn|oul ‘sysu ajelodloo azijuoud
pue Ajiuapi 03 Jaisibal ysil e 8)eald 0} 0Z0Z Ul Jajep) xelljeH Ag paidope weisAg — juswabeuey ysiy asudiajuy .

Sy sul pue aoueldwo? Jo Juswssasse dej 0} 82IN0S
swe)sAg Jajep) Bupnuuq jediolunyy Jo) spiepuels juswieal] Blj00S BAON 8y} Ul In0 18s sjuswadinbal wnwiuiw a8y e
‘uonosjold yyeay olgnd oy padsueyus pue pajepdn Ajjuanbal) ale ydolym ‘spiepue)s |BjJusWUOIIAUS Judliny) .

;198w swa)sAs Jajem BupjuLp jedidiunw jey) AjluaA 03 S Joday Juswssassy WalsAs ay) Jo asodind €202
‘I |Udy anp 18S 1Xau ay} Yim ‘sieah ua) Ausas Jodal e jwgns 0] Juswalinbal Alojenbay Joday Juswssassy WalsAg .

(uoneziuebip
yjieaH plHopn) Aiddns usyem-6unjulip e jo Ajjigejdaosoe pue Ajajes ay) bulinsua Ajjusisisuod JO wWie sy} YIM ‘Jawnsuod
0} Juswydjed wouy yoeoisdde Juswabeuew YsiJ pue JUSWSSASSE YSIJ dAISuayaldwo e ale SSAA ueld Ajajes 1ajepy -«

(0'LA dNOM DOMHH
¥AaH) -saJinypuadxa |eydeo pasinbas ay) Joj uejd 03 pue suole|nbal ainin) 0] 8suodsal 8A1308Y8-1S0D JSOW By} 109|8S

0] aw AJnn ay) smojje os bulog "sjeob Ayenb Jajem wua) Buoj 18s 03 AN 8y} SMojje pue aq ||Im suolje|nbal ainny
JBUM JO SUOIJBWIISS 9|qeuoseal SayeWw pue spual} pue suonenbal Ajjenb Jajem sauiwexs - ueld 19)sey Ayjend Jajepy

suoniuyaq

JO1BA
,,:._.__:__\“nv“u'



uoneziwndo wudul YAr ‘|04U09 UOISOLI0) ‘AIBA0DSY 8¥ET :Sewodino Jolep .
wuoay Jleyn Jeak-g paiyy ybnouyy jeq Aq uoinoaxs Yyoieoasay .
uonNQU}SIp pue juawieal ‘904nos papnjoul ‘olloads jueld JoN — Jabeuey Alljent) Jajep) AQ UBSHUAA
910Z — € UOISIBA -
uones|yoIq :s4dgq ul uononpal ‘soljnedpAy Uone|nd0}; |0J3U0D UOISOLI0Y) :SBWO02IN0 Joley .
wua) Jieyn Jeah-g puodas ybnouy) [eq Ag uonnosxs Yyoieasay e
oloads MAr — Jebeuepy Ajljenp Jaiepn Ag USHIIAN -
LL0OC — C UOISIBA
|0JIUOD UOIS0JI0D ‘UoiienjeAs uonenbeo) :sewodino Joley -

Mar ie weidjojd
9} JO U0I1}0NJISUOD pue Jiey) yoleasay |elysnpuj Jalep) XelieH/DOY3ISN 2yl JO uoljeald 0} pa .

ueld juswieady MAr Joj uejd uoneziwndo apinoid 03 Aq pajojdwo) .
900C — | UOISIBA -

dINOM jo AiojsiH

JO1BA

XeJI[B] \“Jmu



‘(L:] SNsJaA |:Z) siejjop palsaAul Jo Buibeltans| Jaybiy se1ealo yoiym juels) asuel|y O43ISN
ue 0] welboud JieyD yodessay |euisnpul DYISN ue woll payiys sey adeospue| Buipun) yoleasay

Sy Sl
a)e10di00 ssalppe pue aziiold 0} welboid Juswabeuel YSiy aslidiaiug ay] JO Yyoune| Jusday .

$S920NS 10} yoeoudde Aseundiosip-ijinw e aiinbal syoaloud alopy
Sjuawedap ssoloe saainosal Bulleys pue abpajmouy buliajsuely ‘sojis umop Buiyealg e
yoeoudde iajep)\ BUQ BY) — JBIBAN XeleH
sjonpoudAq uonosjuisip ‘suixo} [ebje ‘wnuiwnje ‘esauebuew ‘pea .
Ajjenb Jajem de} ay} 1B UO SND0) aI0W YIM suolejnbal 18)ol)s pue aIof

"‘BuiAjoAd Ajjenuijuod sI JuswiuoldiAug Alojeinbal ay| .

jJuswuoJiAug buibueyn

JO1BA

,_W_____w__\“.umu €



.HCUEQO_U.)_D__U ° [} [} [} ° ° ° ° ° [ [} ° ° ° ° [} ° ° ° ° ° °

.:o_uqm.ﬁ,u:cm ‘Iomuuea]
ysnoayl seako|dwa
23e3UD AJ|NJ [IIM SAN

JuswILoLIAUG BY]

Jo disF =1SQUE

‘@ouel|dwod
Alojejn3dal

QUIRER
‘Kundas YyeaH e
pue A}a4es ade|dyom el sHomwes|
‘Aujgisuodsal [eosuy
'2oTIS Jo IO TS

‘Yyfeay 2ngnd uo anjea
1say3iy ayy ade|d |im
am ‘saooeud 3s2q Jo
uondope ysnouy |

Slawolsnyd

"SDIAISS 121EMLLIOIS
pUB ‘I91PMDISEM
“193em Ajjenb ysiy
UM S19Wwolisnd

1o apinoid [jim I Ajlunjiodd uy — ' UOISIBA

UOISIA ANQ



BuliojluoN
Ajjenp
Buiuue|d Juswdojana(g Jarepn
Aouepunpay aunnoy

weiboid AL U (2eblv ‘gNM)

pesT 9jewl|o Buliojuo
asuodsay

yoleasay
Juswabeue|y

Sy aoueldwo)
aslidiajug Hwiiad

ueld
aoueldwo)

DM ajelodiooul Jeyy saaneniu] AN uaung

JO1BA

/:____N__\“Jmu g



6 iy

What If?



Buriojiuow

Buiuueld SN

aAoB0Id

ddSM

/

aoueldwon
Hwusd

Juswabeue
3SIy osldiajug

N

Juswabeue|\
ASIH

ue|d

Buiuue|d
Aouepunpay 90UdI|ISBY

Ajgesauinp
ajew|o

uolsuedx3 R
swdojanag

welboid pea

/

Buriojuo
osuodsey EMISEYY

Bunealg

aoueldwon




Hpp e

soAljeniul Juepodwi pue mau Jayjo Auew Jo doj uo aAlelRIuUl MBU Y
yoeoudde ||e s}l 8ZIS 8UO OU puUB WOJ} 8SO0YD 0} Sylomawel) Auej
Buloinosal ajeudoidde pue sjaAg] |je 1e ul-Ang salinbay

sabuagjleyn

Aoualjisal ayewlo apnjoul 0} AjlunuoddQ

Hoday Juswssassy WolsAg Jeak-g| oY) se yons sassaooud Alojeinbal yim uoneibaiug
dINOM - suonejnbal aininy o} Bupuiyy piemio

Juswanoldwi SNoNURUOD J10) $S8204d [BeW.IOS

yoeoldde aAnoeal SNSIoA aA10B0.d

d¥l ol Apoauip pasy — buiuueld jendes pue juswabeuew }9Ssy

Sysll 8)elodlod ojul Apjoalip pas) ued sysl DM ‘ssed04d NNYT Yiim uonelbaul

:sjijouag

‘Ajenb Jsyem o) sysu sazijlioud pue sessasse jey) welboud Buiall e 8)ealo 0) yoeoidde
Areuljdiosip-ninw e sasn jey) ue|d A1ajes Jajep) B 0] ue|d Jalse AJljenp Jajep) auojepue)s e wodj YIS

AjunuoddQ



Hoday

UB|d JoISEN JUBWISSOSSY

Ajenp Jerepn

walsAg

ue|d A1ajes Jajepn

¢49Y1abol 113 N3 pue YvS ‘'dSM ‘dINDM op moH

JBA

XeJI[B] \m.vmu 6



uoneziuebiQ yijesH pOA 8YL :woi4

JO1BA
XEJIEH \“nvmu

ol

(s 2inpen)
uonelpow waisks Jofew
10} PRJINbaJ W3 WIS3AU|

apesSdn

sawwesfosd Funsoddns dojanag & 2NPolN
sainpatosd uawaSeuew 2iedaig 23NEeIN

uoREIUNWWO) g Juawadeuepy

dSAh 34 f 3INpeN
JO 55IUBNNIRHR Y ALRA i
- -
| SaUnseal 1
92 L+]
| Jeaue 3yl jo Suueluow FuyIg I I
|l = o oo oo oo oo oo oom o oam e mm oam omm o= o= o =]

Suniojiuopy euonesadg

ue|d apea3dn auswasoadwi

k S2|Npoiy
uE ulEjulELW pue Jusws|dwi ‘doj@aag

Sysi 34 aznnoud pue ssasseal
'SUNSE3 LU [0JIUOD 2IBPIEA PUB 3UILIRIRA LA ST

53514 341 553558 pug

£ 3|npo
S1U3A3 SNOPJIEZEL PUB SPIEZEY ANUap| £ 2INPON

wasks ddns Ja1em aui 3quasag Z3Npo

JUBLISSASSY Walsks

Wiea1 3yl ajgquwasy | 3|npoy \

A%

dSM
au1 Jo mainad Jjpoad
N0 ALIED PUB LB

0Ol 2INPOW

™~

uonesedald

(AouaBirawa)
RUETJRIT]

WPl
FUIMONIR) dSM 241 251A3Y

L 2npoy

Nreqpasi



uoneziuebiQ yijesH pOA 8YL :woi4

sawwesfosd Funsoddns dojanag & 2NPolN I"
——— |
saunpaiosd awsdeuew auedaig g3npew I
uoE2IUNWWOo) 3 Juawadeuepy “
|
|
|
|
dSM 20
Jeyd yaoleasay alsnoyje - Jo s5AURNNIRYE AU A)LRA (fouaBiawa)
P e e e e e m e m - m - == = - uapBU|
A=k - 1 sRINSEaLL 1
021103 3yl Jo Fuloluow Ul
podal Juswissessy Woyshks — 903N - ! , e o ! I
|l = o oo oo oo oo oo oom o oam e mm oam omm o= o= o =]
. |
-OJul spaa4 Suniojiuopy euonesadg |
|
d 3 d _
B o i1 i
uejd apeifdn JusLuaAold W e —— _
ue ujEuEWw pue Juswa|dw 'dojErag /\\ I
SHSU BY) SZNUOUC PUESSASSEa) peeeeeess | | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
'S3ANSEALU 01U 21BPIEA PUB BUILLIRIR0 Fenpon - | 1
A 1
_ | uapniul
) . 5S|4 341 553558 pue a1 J0 malras pouad uzpRul 1
(S 2inFon) - - - N £3|NPCIN nofueypueuey | SUIMONIO) dSM 211 35IABY
UONEI PO WaTsAS Jolew S1UBA3 SNOPIEZEY PUB SPIBZEL AIU3p| A P Id : W I
0} paJinbaJ B WISIAU| ¢ ¢ o e 1
wa1sAs fddns ssiem ayr aquosag  [EEEIUEEIY OL=npon LL3InPOA "
apesSdn |
JUDLISSASSY Walsks NIeqpaad

EVETH T I EL | 2|npay

/N

uonesedald
J9TBAL :
XBJIEH \“Qmu L



uoneziuebiQ yijesH pOA 8YL :woi4

sawwesfosd Funsoddns dojanag & 2NPolN I"
—_—— |
saunpaiosd awsdeuew auedaig g3npew I
uoREIUNWWO) g Juawadeuepy “
|
|
|
|
(AouaBirawa)
[ - uappu|
| SBANSEIL 1
¢ @C luue e _Qm - | Jenuod 3yl jo Suloluow suyag I
: : I
|l = o oo oo oo oo oo oom o oam e mm oam omm o= o= o =]
_ I
“_Cmewmmcm_\/_ jossy Suniojiuopy euonesadg I
|
d 3d d _
ug| Fdn Juswss
ue c_m.F__m_E_ wmwﬂLmEm,Q_ﬂ_ﬁwoﬂ“pw‘M R /\\ I
1Eu ! I

Sysi 34 aznnoud pue ssasseal
'SUNSE3 LU [0JIUOD 2IBPIEA PUB 3UILIRIRA LA ST

dSM

31 Jo Mmainas mponad W2pRUl

53514 341 553558 pug

|
) . |
ugneypow :_m_um_wm_ﬂu“ﬂﬂ S1UBA3 SNOPIEZEY PUB SPIEZEY AJUSP) ERIRER N0 ALIED PUE UE|d " FuImolIe) dsi U SIAGY
40} paumbaJ B WISAAY| ¢. D -
waishs Addns Jatem ay aquasag  EEEIUEENT) OL=npon LL 2INPON
apesSdn e e e e e e m = =

JUBLISSASSY WAISAS Wreqpaag

Weal 3yl 2|quiasy L 2|Npoy \

™~

uonesedald
J9TBAL :
XBJIEH \“Qmu ¢l



uoneziuebiO yyesH PHOAA 8YJ :woJd
sawwesfosd Funsoddns dojEasg sarvon T I“
WV_w_.‘_ uo sainpatosd uawaSeuew 2iedaig 8 3NPo “
paseq Buioinosal a)enbape |
. uoREIUNWWO) g Juawadeuepy
speau |eulajul Buissalppy - _
|
|
|
|
(AouaBirawa)
[ - uappu|

| SBANSEIL 1
1 Jenuod 3yl jo Suloluow suyag I ;

|l = o oo oo oo oo oo oom o oam e mm oam omm o= o= o =]
|
Suniojiuopy euonesadg I
|
|

ue|d apea3dn auswasoadwi

ue uRulEwW pue Juawa|dw ‘doj@sag Sl /\\ "

Sysi 34 aznnoud pue ssasseal
'SUNSE3 LU [0JIUOD 2IBPIEA PUB 3UILIRIRA LA ST

dSM

31 Jo Mmainas mponad W2pRUl

53514 341 553558 pug

|
) . |
ugneypow :_m_um_wm_ﬂu“ﬂﬂ S1UBA3 SNOPIEZEY PUB SPIEZEY AJUSP) ERIRER N0 ALIED PUE UE|d " FuImolIe) dsi U SIAGY
40} paumbaJ B WISAAY| ¢. D -
waishs Addns Jatem ay aquasag  EEEIUEENT) OL=npon LL 2INPON
apesSdn e e e e e e m = =

JUBLISSASSY WAISAS Wreqpaag

Weal 3yl 2|quiasy L 2|Npoy \

™~

uonesedald
J9TBAL :
XBJIEH \“Qmu ¢l



uoneziuebiQ yijesH pOA 8YL :woi4

sawwesfosd Funsoddns dojanag & 2NPolN I"
sainpatosd uawaSeuew 2iedaig g3npew “ ﬁ_m>> u_.o HC@EHWD—UN
| pue ssaooud Jeugep
uoREIUNWWO) g Juawadeuepy :
I Juspioul jewio4
|
|
|
|
(AouaBirawa)
[ - uappu|
| SBANSEIL 1
| Jenuod 3yl jo Suloluow suyag 1 T
|l o e e e e e e e e e === === = ] I
Suniojiuopy euonesadg I
|
d 3d d _
ued apeifdn Auswasoadw
UE WBIUIELW puE JuswWRdw ‘doj@aag Sl /\\ "

S IENET id pue ssasseal
'SUNSE3 LU [0JIUOD 2IBPIEA PUB 3UILIRIRA LA ST

dSM

31 Jo Mmainas mponad W2pRUl

53514 341 553558 pug

|
) . |
uoeIIpow :_m_um_wm_ﬂu“ﬂ_‘h,. S1UBA3 SNOPIEZEY PUB SPIEZEY AJUSP) ERIRER N0 ALIED PUE UE|d " FuImolIe) dsi U SIAGY
40} paumbaJ B WISAAY| ¢. D -
waishs Addns Jatem ay aquasag  EEEIUEENT) OL=npon LL 2INPON
apesSdn e e e e e e m = =

JUBLISSASSY WAISAS Wreqpaag

Wiea1 3yl ajgquwasy | 3|npoy \

™~

uonesedald
J9TBAL :
XBJIEH \“dmu vl



Jajem ajes Joj diysiauped
SPJEPUE)S SaLI9S-9 YMMY

uswabeue XSiY :0001 € ‘Wuswabeuel Ajojes poo4 :000zZ ‘uawabeuely Ajend 11006 — OSI
Ansnpup .

0001L€ OSI6002:000LE0SI SZN/SY ‘1006 OS| 'dOJVH U0 paseq ‘600¢ Ul padnpoju| — eljesisny
G00Z Ul spJepuejs Jajem Bupjuup ojul paonposul —ZN
paseq dDOVH Ajebie| — puejgd| .
OPIMPHOAN  »
dOOVH ‘1006 OSI — plepuels juswabeuely Ajjenp Jeyep) buyuuqg — oueup -«
1ea1b6 J0U }oeqpos) ‘pPaseq |99Xe — JUBWUOIIAUT BlaqlY
‘epeue) .
yiomauwlely sjgeidepe ‘paysiigeiss ||om pue peoig — OHM
:suondQ .
Hoday jusawssassy WasAS DDISN dy) Jo sjuswadinbal sejeiodiodu) .
ssao0.ud |NYT yum sajelbajul/siuswaidwo) .
a|ge|eds ‘9|qIxa)} ‘UsA0ld
SPoON .

yiomauwelq e buijos|es



Bulio)luow pue sjouo9 [euonelad) .

sjure|dwod aoue||dwoo
18WO)SNd -uou Buiuue|d jeyden .
A
o O 10 fHOIStH ue|d yoJeasal |euIs)Xa/|eutaju] .
spi0oal Juely EMMN%% ) SaJnseaw JUsWSSasse pue |0Jjuod ‘sdeb Ajjuap| .

uonnguisiq
juswieal] .

[ood 90IN0S .
e Set eBpajmou Ayenb so7e
PUE SJOS wolshs H 1M SJ1op|oyaye)s [BUIS)XS pue |eussjul Ay Ujim
Ja1e A SAOYS)IOM JUBLUSSOSSE XSy pue pJezeH JO S8l B JONpU0)
|[00d abpajmouy| woysAg Jajep) e dojsasp 0} UelS .
suonejnbal sbuimelp
9%3 p1009Y SOlJ}oW ‘SBWO02)N0 ‘siap|oyayels ‘sauljswl]
pajedionuy
ssaoold ue|d Ajojeg Jajep) |ewdo) e dojeaaqg .
Buue(d pue 5 S10day JuUswsSsassy
JuswaBeuew ; Jo1em Bon0S Wa)sAS pue NY3 Uim Sl 1By} YIOMaWEel) B 109[9S  «
9SS 20usliadxs
1955V Joje18do Wwea] Juswssassy WolsAg/ue|d A18jes Isjep) e dleal) .

sda)lg IXaN

JO1BA

/:____W__\“Jmu ol



ue|d ay} aAocidwi pue wiojul 0} S}B1Igap JUSPIOUL IO} SMO||Y

uononpal ysii spiemo) ssalboud Jojiuow 03 sessadold dojpasq .

uo1o3JIP YoJBaSal WIOUI [|IN o

Buiuue|d |eydeo pue juswabeuew }osSe WJojul 0} SYSII pazijioLd apIAold
spoday Juawssassy Wa)SAS €20 dY) JaAIeQg -

Jajep) auQ — |0od abpamouy Wa)sAs Jojem e ajeal) .

M pue NY3T yum ajelbagul im yoiym yoeoudde uejd A1ojes Js1ep) B SpIemo) BUIAO) «

$9S8$900.d |eulBlUl BWOS pue yoleasal
PaWIOJUI YoIym ‘ueld Jaisey Aljenp Js1ep) ay) ybnoayy sauop sem Buiuueld Ayjenb Jsjem |eoLIo)SIH .

Aewwing

D & N



2S¥-£8¥ (206)
eo’l1ajemxelliey@iApuam

labeuely Ajjenp Jajep)
‘Bu3 'd "a'ud ‘yosoyay Apuapp

IR
XEJI[E]

—_—

e

| J
r 8l



(J(J/Halifax

ITEM # 1-1

Page 1 of 15
l l \/\’ ater Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board
SUBMITTED BY: Susheel Sushel Arora
Arora 55816 0400
Susheel Arora, M.A.Sc., P.Eng. Director, Operations
Kenda l\DAigitli”y s.igned by Kenda
MaCKenZie D:lce:ezgzzl1e.11.18
14:17:29 -04'00'
Kenda MacKenzie, P.Eng. Director, Regulatory Services
Digitally signed by Cathie
APPROVED: Lot O 25 1 s
08:31:45 -04'00
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D, General Manager
SUBJECT: Operational Performance Information Report
INFORMATION REPORT
ORIGIN:
Regular update.

This report provides a high level overview of operational performance for the utility. The safety statistics
results are first, followed by indicators and statistics for water and wastewater.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 2 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

SAFETY STATISTICS — July 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2021 (unless stated otherwise)

Number of Lost Time Accidents * 4
Number of motor vehicle accidents per 1,000,000 km driven 0
Number of workplace inspections conducted * 59
Percentage of safety talks conducted * 37%
Number of near misses reported * 35
Number of employees on accommodation or gradual return to work 6
Number of WCB claims 9
Number of work refusals 0
Number of incidents with written compliance orders * 0
Number of employees trained or recertified before due date * 374
Total number of courses taken by employees for training/recertification * 782

* Fiscal Year to Date



ITEM # 1-1

Page 3 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
AVERAGE DAILY WATER PRODUCTION
Total System Input Daily Average
29,000,000
28,000,000
27,000,000
26,000,000
% 25,000,000
2
-9
E
24,000,000
23,000,000
22,000,000
21,000,000
lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct MNow Dec
Mote: The latest graph point is a rolling
average for the current week (Sun-5Sat) il (17 ] e 10 e 3] 5
Regional Water Main Break/Leak Data Water Accountability

Year Total Breaks/Leaks g:{;ezplihgzzt;‘efgzgﬁf Loss?s per Service Con'ne(.:tion/Day
(International Water Association Standard)

2020/21 179
2019/20 191 Period Ending September 30, 2021
2018/19 226
2017/18 206 .
e 216 199 Real Losses: 198 litres

Total 1018 CBS Target: 160
Yr. Avg. 203.6




ITEM # 1-1
Page 4 of 15

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Drinking Water: Bacterial Results
Percentage of Samples Absent of Total Coliform
TR OE E R E R E R 2 E R B R R R RE E E R OE E
288888888 B8E88E588E8888888¢8S8
100% & £
a 3
29%
98%
97%
h s o o = (=] = [ = = = (] = (=] = —_ o — - — — — — — —
s = § 8 & g EZ ¥w oz 5 § 8 E 2 E F ¥ B
S2A223 2§55 28328533F5S
——— Corporate Balance Scorecard Target 99 3% Absent
Water Quality Master Plan Objectives
2021-2022 Q2
All Sites:
. - TS eBsc
L. Total | % Sites Achieving 90th
Objective . . Awarded
Sites Target Percentile Points
<15 pg/L
Disinfection 64 95% --- 15
Total Trihalomethanes 25 76% - 0
Haloacetic Acids 21 100% - 20
Particle Removal 5 93% - 13
Corrosion Control 105 --- 4.28 20
Summary Total 68
Score:  68/100



ITEM # 1-1

Page 5 of 15

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

In this report each facility is assessed using monthly or quarterly averages, depending on the averaging period
specified in its Approval to Operate.

‘Wastewater Treatment Facility Compliance Summary
Rolling Averages - August, September and October 2021
Wastennter CBOD; TSS (c'f)‘lfﬁtl; , ol Ammonia  |Phosphorous|  TRC Dg;yogl:]d
Treatment (me/L) (me/L) 100mL) (mg/L) (mg/L) (mg/L) (mg/L) Toxicity Trend
Facility E:ﬁ Avg. lljrift Avg. 11:1‘:1]1? Avg. E‘jﬁ Avg. 11:1‘:1]1? Avg. S:_E Avg. 11:1‘:1]1? Avg. E‘jﬁ Avg.
* Halifax 50 56 40 39 5000 70,783 6-9 6.8 - - - - Acutely lethal Continued
Dartmouth 50 | 50 | 40 | 13 [s000| 54 | 69 | 66 - - - - tozeaey | Continued
Herring Cove 50 | 29 | 40 | 15 [s000| 32 | 69 | 67 - - - - Nojzeaey | Continued
Easten Passage | 25 | 8 | 25 [ 11 ] 200 | 59 | 69 | 72 - - - - Nojzeae | Continued
Mill Cove 25 | 1| 25 | 13 [ 200 17| 69| 65 - - - - Nojzeaey | Continued
Springfield 20 7 20 21 200 10 6-9 6.5 - - - - Continued
Frame 20 5 20 1 200 10 6-9 6.2 - - - - - Continued
Middle Musq. 20 7 20 6 200 10 6-9 73 - - - - - Continued
Uplands 20 8 20 7 200 10 6-9 6.5 - - - - - Continued
Acrotech s |2 s | 1 2o 0] e |27 [N ] 01| o1 o0 - 65 | 71 | M continued
North Preston 10 4 10 3 200 7 6-9 6.7 3 0.1 15 13 - - - Improved
Lockview 20 5 20 4 200 14 1659 69 | 80S 1.1 | 12S| 03 - - - Continued
Steeves (Wellington)| 20 5 20 1 200 10 1659 7.1 |144S| 01 | 1.0S| 01 - - - Continued
BLT 15 | s |20 | 2 fooo | fes [es | Y [ 1 | 0Y [ 1 Joozr| 010 - Notaeel | Continued
Avg. of all Facilities 14 10 5074 6.8 0.5 0.5 0.10 7.1
NOTES & ACRONYMS: LEGEND
CBOD:s - Carbonaceous 5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand NSE Compliant

TSS - Total Suspended Solids

BDL - Below Detection Limit

W /S - Winter / Summer compliance limits
NSE requires monthly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter at Dartmouth, Eastern Passage, Halifax, Herring Cove, Mill Cove
NSE requires quarterly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter at Aerotech, Lockview, Mid. Musq., Frame, BLT, Uplands, Springfield Lake
NSE requires annual averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter at North Preston and Steeves

Continued - All parameters remain essentially unchanged since the last report

Improved - One or more parameter(s) became compliant since the last report
Declined - One or more parameters(s) became non-compliant since the last report
* Halifax - The plant is working at 50% capacity treating all flows due to construction.

SEASONAL RULES:

BLT NH3: shall not exceed 3 mg/L between May 1 and October 30; otherwise, shall not exceed 5 mg/L
BLT TP: shallnot exceed 1 mg/L between May 1 and October 30; otherwise, shall not exceed 3 mg/L

NSE Non-Compliant
* TRC - Total Residual Chlorine - Maxxam can only measure 0.10 mg/L residual; results of 0.1 mg/L are compliant

Acrotech NH3: shall not exceed 1.2 mg/L between May 1 and October 30; otherwise, shall not exceed 5.7 mg/L
Lockview NH3: shall not exceed 8 mg/L between May 1 and October 30
Lockview TP: shall not exceed 1.2 mg/L between May 1 and October 30

Wellington NH3: shall not exceed 14.4 mg/L between May 1 and October 30

Wellington TP: shall not exceed 1.0 mg/Lbetween May 1 and October 30



ITEM # 1-1

Page 6 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
No. of CSOs and SSOs - September 2021
107 Total Overflows
40 80
35 70
30 60
z £
% 25 50 é
@ =
5 20 40 g
% 15 30 s
Zc' &
10 20
5 H 10
0 _j T T T T - T T T - T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 0
1 23 456 78 91011121314151617 181920 21 22 23 24252627 28 29 30
m Overflows = Rainfall (mm)
NOTES & ACRONYMS: CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow

e Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTF.
e There were five overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows:

1. September 1: The CSOs at Sackville St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris. The SSO at Fish
Hatchery PS was due to planned maintenance at Mill Cove WWTFE. NSECC was notified.

2. September 5: The CSO at Sackville St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.

3. September 8: The CSO at Sackville St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 7 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
No. of CSOs and SSOs - October 2021
60 Total Overflows
40 80
35 70
30 60
z E
% 25 50 é
@ =
5 20 - 40 %
K 15 - 30 ‘=
;2' &
10 - 20
5 - 10
0 _LLI_JJ T T T ._J T T T T T I I T T T T - T T T T T T T T T I I T H T T T 0
1 23 4567 8 910111213141516171819202122232425262728293031
m Overflows = Rainfall (mm)
NOTES & ACRONYMS: CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow

e Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTF.
e There were twenty overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows:
1. October 1: The CSOs at Sackville St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris.

2. October 3: The CSO at Sackville St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris. The CSO at Lyle St CSO
was due to an automated Dartmouth WWTF influent gate closure caused by equipment failure.

3. October 4: The CSOs at Sackville St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris. The CSO at Lyle St
CSO was due to an automated Dartmouth WWTF influent gate closure caused by equipment failure.

4. October 5: The CSOs at Sackville St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris. The CSO at Maitland
St PS & CSO was due to an automated Dartmouth WWTF influent gate closure caused by equipment
failure.

5. October 8: The CSOs at Sackville St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris.

6. October 9: The CSOs at Grove St CSO, Wallace St CSO and Ferguson Rd CSO were due to planned
maintenance at Jamieson Rd PS & CSO. NSECC was notified.

7. October 18: The CSO at Pier A PS & CSO was due to maintenance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 8 of 15

Halifax Water Board

November 25, 2021

No. of CS50s and SSOs - Trend Chart
November 2019 to October 2021

1202 PO
1Z0g 1dag
lzog 2ny
1z0T Anr

120T 924
Lzog uer

0TOT 22(]
0TOT AON
0TOT PO

0Z0¢ 1dag
0zOT Sny
0zoT Anr
0ZOT aunr

0Z0T &N
0TOT Jdy
0TOT B
0TOT 901
0TOT el

610 29(]

610T AON

SMO[1I9A0) JO #

Mill Cove WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

L1l

NSE Compliance Limit

2 a g 2 2 e &

g sauepdmo)) SN $A UONENUIN0) IBRIIAY A[UOTY %

il

0

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

Jun-21

mTSS mE.coli

May-21

Apr-21

Mar-21

Feb-21

u CBOD

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 9 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
AeroTech WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
160
E 10
=2
3
g
£ 120
=%
g
o
= NSE Compliance Limit
@ 100
.
z
8
g w0
=
g
o
% 60
=
g
-
-
= 4
=
=
-
S g —
0 : - : : : :
Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q32020 Q42020 Q12021 Q22021 Q32021
s CBOD mTSS mECoh mNH3 oTP
Lower numbers represent better performance.
Springfield Lake WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
10 1712 %
B 848 % 162%
s 252 %
3 140
3 266 %
=
=
=
£ 120
S 178 %
7
Fd NSE Compliance Limit
g loo
g
k=]
£
g 80
g
]
& 6
i
g
=
=
= 40
z
=
b4
20
0 . . . : . : .
Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q32020 Q42020 Q1 2021 Q22021 Q32021

mCBOD mTSS mE.Coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 10 of 15

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Middle Musquodoboit WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
160
E 10
=
g
=
= 120
=%
£
-}
v NSE Compliance Limit
= 100
-
=
E 80
~
E
=
g
£ 60
(]
-
-1
5
40
z
=
=
=
S 2
-
&
Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q42020 Q12021 Q22021 Q3 2021
ECBOD ®TSS mE. Coli
Lower numbers represent better performance.
Lockview-MacPherson WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
160
E 10
=
g
= 354 %
= 120
=%
£
-}
v NSE Compliance Limit
= 100
-
Ed
E 80
~
E
=
g
£ 60
(]
&
-1
5
40
z
=
=
=
= 20 T
=
P
0 . .
Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q42020 Q12021 Q22021 Q3 2021
ECBOD mTSS mE.Coli mNH3 = TP

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 11 of 15

mCBOD mTSS mE.Coli

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Frame WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160
E 10
=
g
=
= 120
=3
£
S

NSE Compliance Limit

= 100
“
z
_§ 80
kel
-]
=
g
£ 6
(]
&
80
£

40
z
2
-
=
s 20
=
&

0 T T T T T T T
Q4 2019 Q1 2020 Q22020 (23 2020 Q4 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021

Lower numbers represent better performance.

North Preston WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160

140

285 %
120

NSE Compliance Limit
100

30

60

40

20

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit

Q2 2021

Q42019 Q12020

Q2 2020 Q32020 Q4 2020 Q12021

s CBOD mTSS mE coli = NH3 = Phosphors

Q32021

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 12 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Steeves (Wellington) WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160
E 0
e |
g
=
S 10
-9
]
S :
2 100 NSE Compliance Limit
z.
z
-]
S B0
]
B
g
E 60
o
&
14
&

40
z
2
|
=
2 0
-
RS

0 |
Q4 2019 Q1 2020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q12021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021
ECBOD ®TSS mE. coli = NH3 = Phosphorus
Lower numbers represent better performance.
Lakeside-Timberlea WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160
E w0
=
8
2
= 120
g
[
= NSE Compliance Limit
w
Z 10
=
g
w80
E
=2
b4
s
o s
@
o
s
-
s ®
=
=
=
= o
=

i . | ! . i
Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q42020 Q12021 Q22021 Q3 2021
u(CBOD mTSS mE.coli = NH3 m TP m TRC

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 13 of 15

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Uplands WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160
E 140
=
7]
=
=]
= 120
g
]
= NSE Compliance Limit
2 100
-4
=
2
80
g
g
“ 60
-T4)
g
E
= 40
=
g
=
e 20

0 : : - - : : :
Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q32020 Q42020 Q12021 Q22021 Q32021

mCBOD mTSS mE.Col

Lower numbers represent better performance.

Halifax WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
160

= l40
£

-

o

2

2 120
=

g

o NSE Compliance Limit
= 100
=

o

z

g

i

=

g

o

g

[ 60
@

=14

iz

g

=

o

=

=

2 2 i ] . . : :
=

0 T T T T T

Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
mCBOD mTSS mE.coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 14 of 15
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit

160

140

120

100

g

2

=

=]

0

Dartmouth WWTF

Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

NSE Compliance Limit

|

Feb-21

1]

Mar-21

Apr-21

May-21 Jun-21

mCBOD mTSS mE. coh

Jul-21

|

Aung-21

Sep-21

Lower numbers represent better performance.

% Monthly Average Concentration vs NSE Compliance Limit

160

=
=

[
=

=
=

o0
=

o
=4

e
=

[
=

Herring Cove WWTF

Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

NSE Compliance Limit

filh

Feb-21

Mar-21

Apr-21

May-21 Tun-21

mCBOD =mTSS mE.coh

Jul-21

Aug-21

Sep-21

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 15 of 15

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Eastern Passage WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160
o a0
£
-
L
2 120
=]
H

NSEC li Limit
s 100 ompliance Lim
=
7]
<
s 80
g
k-]
Z
§ 60
g
[
&
b
g 40
2
-
£
= 20
£
=
=
(] T T T T T T T
Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
uCBOD mTss mE. coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 2-1

Halifax Water Board

November 25, 2021
Halifax Water Compliance Statement

Quarterly Certification

For the period of July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021

We hereby certify that the Halifax Regional Water Commission is current in making all
statutory remittances for payroll taxes, Harmonized Sales Tax and other remittances as
required under the laws of the Government of Canada and its Provinces (the significant
remittances are noted in the appendix) and that all significant legal claims have been disclosed.

te gilg_itallly signed by Cathie Digitally signed by Louis

- en oole de Montbrun

Lot 053227 0400 o To— baw i

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
General Manager Director, Corporate Services/CFO and

Corporate Treasurer

Digitally signed by Heidi

Schedler
2 i Date: 2021.11.18
14:58:48 -04'00"

Heidi Schedler
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Dated:

November 18, 2021




ITEM # 2-1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

Halifax Water Compliance Statement
Quarterly Certification
Appendix I

Significant statutory remittances for payroll taxes, Harmonized Sales Tax and other
remittances as required under the laws of the Government of Canada and its Provinces for the

Halifax Regional Water Commission.

Statutory Payroll Remittances
> Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) - Statutory employee payroll deductions
and employer related contributions for:

o Income Tax
o Canada Pension Plan (CPP)
o Employment Insurance (EI)

> Workers’ Compensation Board of Nova Scotia (WCB) — Employer
remittance based on employee payroll

Other Payroll Remittances
> Northern Trust - Employee payroll deductions and employer contributions to

Halifax Water and HRM defined benefit pension plans

> Industrial Alliance — employer and employee contributions to defined
contribution pension plan

> Medavie Blue Cross & SSQ — employee payroll deductions and employer
related contributions for Health & dental, LTD, and Life benefit coverage, and
payroll deductions for AD&D

> Canadian Union of Public Employees — Employee payroll deductions of

union dues
o CUPE Local 227
o CUPE Local 1431

HST and Other Remittances
> Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) - Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) is filed

online and a refund issued as HST paid is greater than HST collected

> Workers’ Compensation Board of Nova Scotia (WCB) — Remittance for
sub-contractors



ITEM # 2-1

HRWC BOARD
November 25, 2021
Quarterly Remittance Certification
Appendix 11
Period: July to Sept 2021
Vendor Vendor # Items Remitted Total remitted Exceptions
Statutory Payroll Remittances
CRA 174 Tax, CPP, EI, WCB $3,459,119.86
Other Payroll
Northern Trust 1215  HW Pension Plan $ 1,550,596.13
Northern Trust 1216 ~ HRM Pension Plan $ 239,450.47
Manulife Financial 1171 Bedford Pension Plan $ 1,804.56
Industrial Alliance 2971  DCPP $ 3,840.04
Medavie Blue Cross 340, 3101 Health, Dental, Life, LTD $ 492,521.90
SSQ Insurance 429  AD&D $ 5,114.40
CUPE 160 Union Dues 1431 $ 19,574.39
CUPE 161 Union Dues 227 $ 34,112.08
Other payroll not noted

United Way, Credit Union, Garnishments (WCB, CRA, Family Court, Sherriff's Office),
Water for People, Salvation Army, Racially Visible Caucus

HST and Other
CRA N/A HST (refunds) $ (1,197,277.42)
Receiver General 210 WCB subcontractors $ 414.40

Exceptions, errors and/or late remittances




iJf(J/ Halifax ITEM # 3-1

l l \’\“a te I Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair, and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board as Trustees of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Employees’ Pension Plan

Digitally signed by Louis

de Montbrun
SUBMITTED BY: X8 To— bawzziivie

20:07:45 -04'00'

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA,
Director, Corporate Services / CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: Lotlon O ks 11

08:30:33 -04'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: November 9, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
Financial Report Third Quarter, 2021

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

Financial reporting for the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
(hereinafter called the “Plan”).

BACKGROUND

The Board is required to review the periodic (quarterly) financial results of the Plan throughout
the year.

DISCUSSION

The attached statement of changes in net assets available for benefits (Appendix A) outlines the
annual budget for the Plan and actual financial performance for the Third Quarter (January 1 to
September 30, 2021). Favourable or unfavourable variances reported compare actual results to
pro-rated budget amounts, for the nine (9) month period ending September 30, 2021. Yearend
audited results for 2019 and 2020 are shown for comparative purposes.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM # 3-1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

As shown on the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, net assets available for
benefits have increased by $11.6 million for the nine (9) month period ending September 30, 2021.
The pro-rated budget called for an increase in net assets available of $7.4 million resulting in a
favourable variance of approximately $4.2 million.

The revenue budgeted for the year was $8.6 million. Revenue for the period totaled $10.8 million,
which when compared to the pro-rated budget of $6.4 million results in a favourable variance of
$4.4 million.

Performance of the HRM Master Trust directly drives the revenue figures reported and change
tends to be more volatile compared to contributions and expenses of the Plan. This variance is
attributed directly to the actual increase in the fair value of the investment assets being higher than
expected. The increase in the fair value for the period totaled $8.5 million compared to the prorated
budget of $3.8 million, a difference of $4.7 million or 123%. Investment income for the period
performed below expectations, showing an unfavorable variance of $0.3 million or 12%.

Contributions of $5.1 million are on budget for the period.
Expenses of $4.3 million for the period are higher than the pro-rated budget of $4.1 million
resulting in an unfavourable variance of approximately $0.2 million or 3%. The main contributor

to this variance is termination payments which are higher than the pro-rated budget estimate.

Benefit payments are lower than the pro-rated budget by $0.1 million due to fewer retirements
than expected.

SERVICE STANDARDS

Tracking of Regulatory Filing Requirements, Administrative Reporting Requirements and Service
Standards for actuarial calculation requests is ongoing. The reports for Regulatory Filing
Requirements and Administrative Reporting Requirements are attached as Appendix B and
Appendix C respectively, and document administrative compliance within the various levels of
reporting for the period.

Service Standard results for the Third Quarter (July 1st to September 30, 2021) have been attached
as Appendix D. The primary purpose of the service standard report is to report on the
administrative compliance with the Pension Benefits Act of Nova Scotia (the “Act”) respecting
the timing of statements or notifications required under the Act, such as:

Retirement statement to member;
Notification of options to retiring member;
Death benefits statement; and

Statement on termination

Page 2 of 3



ITEM # 3-1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

A secondary purpose of the report is to provide performance reporting respecting the Plan’s
actuaries, for required deliverables based on pre-determined standards. These standards are
internal in nature, and mutually agreed upon by the actuary and Halifax Water.

Third Quarter results reported in Appendix D show, for the 1 request submitted for retirement
estimates (with options), the retirement package was provided to the member within the prescribed
timelines under the Act, 60 days prior to the Member’s intended retirement date. There were 2
terminations during the period, with each terminated employee provided a termination package
(with options) within the prescribed timelines under the Act, within 60 days after their termination
date.

Performance of the actuary, also reported in Appendix D, shows out of 3 requests in total, the
actuary met the pre-determined standard in 2 instances, with average response times for retirement
and termination calculation estimates of 4 days and 9 days respectively. The response time of the
actuaries is continuously monitored to ensure required service standards are maintained.

ATTACHMENTS

APPENDIX A — Financial Report:
Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, for the nine (9) month
period ended September 30, 2021

APPENDIX B — Regulatory Filing Requirements — Q3 2021

APPENDIX C — Administrative Reporting Requirements — Q3 2021

APPENDIX D — Service Standards Report — Q3 2021

Digitally signed b!
Rebort P . Heather Heather Brten
eport Frepared by: - Britten e oato”

Heather Britten, Quality Assurance Officer 902-490-1895

Page 3 of 3



Item 3-1

Halifax Water Board

November 25, 2021
Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan Appendix A
Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits
For the nine (9) month period ended September 30, 2021
Benchmark 75%
September 30, 2021
Variance Actual Actual
Prorated Actual versus Prorated Budget (Audited) (Audited)
2021 Budget Favourable (Unfavourable) 2020 2019
Budget Actual 75% $ %
Revenue
Net investment income:
Total investment income $3,700,000 $2,440,650 $2,775,000 ($334,350) (12%) $3,763,614 $3,644,079
Investment manager fees ($220,000) ($170,699) ($165,000) ($5,699) 3% ($194,968) ($202,574)
Increase (decrease) in the fair value of investment assets $5,100,000 $8,548,577 $3,825,000 $4,723,577 123% $8,630,589 $10,642,209
$8,580,000 $10,818,527 $6,435,000 $4,383,527 68% $12,199,235 $14,083,715
Contributions
Participants:
Current service (including Additional Voluntary Contribution's) $3,417,000 $2,571,067 $2,662,750 $8,317 0% $3,310,113 $3,463,328
Sponsors:
Current service $3,332,000 $2,503,995 $2,499,000 $4,995 0% $3,230,131 $2,972,138
$6,749,000 $5,075,063 $5,061,750 $13,313 0% $6,540,244 $6,435,466
Expenses
Benefit payments:
Benefit payments $4,866,000 $3,526,371 $3,649,500 $123,129 3% $4,552,474 $4,226,855
Termination payments $500,000 $653,507 $375,000 ($278,507) (74%) $677,237 $960,187
Administrative:
Actuarial & consulting fees $55,000 $7,990 $41,250 $33,260 81% $42,143 $118,659
Audit & accounting fees $9,000 $0 $6,750 $6,750 100% $8,648 $8,530
Bank custodian fees $30,000 $21,476 $22,500 $1,024 5% $30,479 $28,636
Insurance $9,000 $9,636 $6,750 ($2,886) (43%) $9,636 $8,760
Miscellaneous $20,000 $15,996 $15,000 ($996) (7%) $16,724 $20,610
Professional fees $20,000 $31,254 $15,000 ($16,254) (108%) $23,151 $23,261
Registration fees $3,000 $0 $2,250 $2,250 100% $2,645 $2,500
Training (Trustees/ Administration/ Pension Committee) $2,000 $0 $1,500 $1,500 100% $0
$5,514,000 $4,266,230 $4,135,500 ($130,730) (3%) $5,363,136 $5,397,997
Increase in net assets available for benefits $9,815,000 $11,627,360 $7,361,250 $4,266,110 58% $13,376,343 $15,121,184
Net assets available for benefits, beginning of period $154,956,156 $154,956,156 $141,579,813  $126,458,630
Increase in net assets available for benefits $9,815,000 $11,627,360 $13,376,343 $15,121,184
Net assets available for benefits, end of period $164,771,156 $166,583,516 $154,956,156  $141,579,813

For the purposes of this statement, expenses are reported on a cash basis. Comparative years are reported on an accrual basis as that is how

they are reported on the financial statements.



‘Apoq Aloje|nbai e 0} sjuswalinbas Buiiodas 0] 198[gns Jou 8104818y} palalsifal Jou ale sjuswaalby [BUOIION "/ 102 ‘| Arenuer Joj alep aAll08Ye Ue Yim / 10z Buunp pajuswa|dw a1om sjuswaalby [BUOIION
sieah (g) 9aiyl A1ons wnwiuiw e Je pasinbal aie suolenjeA [euenpy

'/ 102 ‘9 1890100 luspusiunadng ay} Aq paaiadal Aouaby enuanay epeue)
alam ue|d D dY} jo uonelsiBas ayy o} Buiejal sjuswnoop ||y ueld Od B/U pieog ay} Aq panoidde Juswipuawe ayj Jaye skep 09 suoIsuad Jo Juspusjuredng
‘6102 ‘| Arenuep jo uopjenfe [euenioy ayi Aq paleloip 6102 /2 leaquierdeg Kouaby enuanay epeue)

se aBueyo ales UoNNGLIUOD 8y} O] Juensind Sem Juswpuswe
UL '6102 ‘£z Jequialdag Juspusiuiadng ay) o} papwans

{6102 ‘0z aunp pseog ayi Aq panoidde g | # Juswpuawy ueld 9ad 6102 ‘/g Jequaides pseog ay} Aq panoidde juswpuswe ay} Jaye sAep 09 SUOISUd( J0 Juspuauiadng sjuswpuswy ueld 9
6102 ‘/2 1oquieides Koueby enuansy epeue)
‘6102 ‘| Arenuep Jo se pajonpuod Sem UOIEN[EA [eLEN}oY 6102 ‘L2 loquieydeg yiog Jequieydes SUOISUd( J0 Juspuauiadng Luonen[eA [eueny g
ueld 0d 120g ‘G} aunp
ue|d 9a 1202 ‘0€ sunp yiog aunp SUOISUd( J0 Juspuauliadng (41V) suinjey uonewlou| [enuuy ¥

reak yoea yiog aunp oy Jjoud Apoq Aloye|nbas ayi o}

paniwgns si yodal siy) "ueid ay} jo sjreiap usuiuad |je Buiielep

uoday [eloueuld e sapiaocid aouel||y [euisnpu| ‘JornemoH "ueld
uoisuad siy} 40} patedaid J0u ale SjUBWSIL]S [BIOUBUL) PAlIPNY ue|d 0d 1202 ‘G} aunp

‘Apoq Aloje|nbas ay 0}
papsemio} Ajpuenbasgns pue |20z ‘Ui L aunp uo pieog MH aul
Aq panoidde pue paje|dwod aiam Sjuswalels [eloueUl pajpNy ue|ld gd 1202 ‘0 aunp pus Ieak [Bosl} s,ue|d U} Jo}e syluow 9 SUOISUa JO Juapuajuadng  sjuswale)s [eloueUl4 palipny Ueld Uoisuad €

‘yodai Auauenb ueld uoisuad INYH
W01} PAUIE]CO UOIBWIOM| “JBaA YoBS SUIN}dyY Xe| awodu| €]

8|1y pue aJedeid 0} UBIPOISNO Y} SE 1SN UIBYLON saiinbal 4O ue|d gd 1202 ‘I yorepn 1SLE Yyosep Aouaby anuanay epeue) (g1) uinlay xe| awoou| ue|d uoisuad 2

“UB|d DQ SY} 0} ‘B0URBI|lY [BUISNPU| ‘931SNIL 8U) yim Aposuip pajly  ueld OQ 1202 ‘62 Arenuep

‘ue|d g ay} 4o} ISnJ] UIBYUON ‘@a1sni] 8yl Yum Ajoaaip paji4 ueld 9a 1202 ‘62 Arenuep JeaA [eosyy yoea jo Buluuibaqg ay) joye skep 09 suoisudd o Juspusiuedng  sUOHNQUIUOY JO AJeWWNS - € WI0S [enuuy |

[SUEIT Y} paji Ise| aleq auljpeaq buiji4 Apog Aiojenbay uoday

1202 ‘0€ Joquiaidag je se
1202 - sjuawaainbay Buiji4 Aiojenbay

9 XION3ddV ue|d uoisuad ,seafojdw3 uoissiwwo) Jajep) [euoibay xepeH

1202 ‘G2 J9qWanoN
pieog Jajep xejljeH

I-€ Wway



‘Apoq Alojenbai e 0} sjuswalinbai Buiuodas 0] 198[gns Jou a10jai18y) palalsifal Jou ale sjuswaalby [BUOION "/ 102 ‘| Arenuer Jo} alep aAll08ye ue Yim / 10z Buunp pajuswa|dw alom sjuswaalby [BuOllON

reak yoes g JoquIaAoN

sauidxa poad Adjjod 8y “jels uonellsiuiwpe Ag Ajfenuue pamaual pue pamainay ueld 9a 1202 ‘22 1990100 Ajlenuuy oouelnsu| Anjiqer] Areonpl4 9
'sjuswalels Ue|d gd ey} yim uonounfuod uj Ajjenuue panssi sjuswalels Juawaalby |euonoN 1202 ‘ez aunp
‘Burpodal awil-|eal ‘auljuo 0} SS8I0E SABY OS[e SIaquIa) “Sluawalels ue|ld 0d 1202 ‘€z aunp
ueld (gqQ) meuag paueg ay} yum uonounfuod ul Ajjenuue panssi sjuswalels
‘y10€ aunp Aq Ajlenuue panssi sjuawalels ueld gd 1202 ‘gz aunp yiog aunp SIaquiap\ O} SJUBWIAIEIS UOoISUdd [enuuy G
1202 ‘Gz yoJepy uo panoidde pue pamainal 1se|
Sem pue Ajjenuue pamainal sl (d8dIS) S8INpadoid %§ Sa101|0d JUSWISAAU] JO JusWalelS
‘uoleluaWINO0p Bullesw sapwwo) ue|d uoisuad WYH Apauenb ay) yim uonounfuod
| ‘s1010811Q J0 pJe0og MH 98U} J0} Jels uonesisiujwpe Aq Apapenb pasedaid poday
(1202 aunp - Arenuer) Jauenp puodas ueld ga 1202 ‘g Jequeides Apapenp d%dIS yum aoueldwo)
¥ MAINSY 9OUBWIONSd JUBWISAAU|
‘paJinbai Jou sjusWale)s [BloUBUI4 Juawaalby [euonioN B/
‘Alenuue Jorenbai ayl 01 (4|y) uiniey
UOIIBWIOU| [ENUUY BY} YIim pajly SI Wodas Jey) pue aouel||y [euisnpu) Agq pasedaid
s Jodai [elouBUl W “ 1202 ‘1€ 1890100 - | Atenuep pouad ey} 4oy Buiaq Juaoal jsow sy}
yum ue|d (DQ@) uonnquiuo) pauyaq ayi 104 pasedaid mou si Jodai [eioueuly dipouad v ue|d DA 1202 ‘G2 1equianoN
(1202 1oquieideg - Arenuer) Jopend payL ueld 94 1202 ‘GZ JoquIanoN Apapend SJUSWAJE]S [BIOUBUI4 UB[J UOISUS] €
‘ue|d SIy} 0} 9PBW SUOINGIUOD OU 8le 8lay | Juawaalby [euonoN B/
"120g JoMenp piiyL 40} odal
0] suondaoxa ou ‘pus yuow Jo sAep Og UIyIm aouel||y [BLISNPU| 0] 8NP SaouBliwaY ue|d Od 1202 ‘2 JoquianoN
"120g J8ueny pliyL Jo}
podal 0} suoiIdaOXd OU {pUd YIuoW JO SABP O UIYIM ISNJ] UIBYLON O} 8np Seoueliway ue|ld g4 1202 ‘6 JoquianoN Ajyuoy 99)SNJ] 8y} 0} suonNQUIU0) g
"1e0e 1202 ‘| JequianoN Ayyuopy lloiAed ;siuoisuad |

Jauend pJaiyL ay} Joy wodal 0} suodaoxs ou fyuow Yoes Jo 1s| oyl pred aie siauoisusad

sjuswwo)

paw.iopiad
/P3ll i1se| 8led

@ouaiInday /aulpeaq bBuiji4

1202 - Sjuawalinbay Bunioday annens

uoday

1202 ‘0€ Joquiaidag je se
lwpy

O XIAN3ddV

1202 ‘GZ JoqWanoN
pieog 181ep\ XeyjeH
I-€ w3}y

ue|d uoisuad ,saafkojdwig uoissiwwo) Jalep) [euoibay xeyjeH



€ %/9 1 5 Arenjoy 1oy [ej0 |

skeq ssauisng G| (SV.LY [oU]) pJepuels UoN -

SoA 02 L 4 6 °%0G 1 2 skeq ssauisng | | pJepuels -
suolje|noje) alewis3y uoneulws |
skeq ssauisng G| Hjouag yiea(q Juswaliey-aid
skeq ssauisng G| Jeale7 yieaq uswaiey-1sod
ske@ sseuisng GL|  suole|ndje) umopealg abelue|
SoA Lr / 1 ¥ %00+ 0 i sheq ssauisng | | sejewl}s3 Juswaiiey

vad uum| shkegaoinias| sheq soinieg paeidwo)| sAeq aoinias piepuelg|piepuels ised # paejdwo) piepuels uonoesuel |
aoueldwo)| abeisany [eloL abelany # [e10] | abesany ulyum % #]elol
#eIS MH Arenjoy

(K202 ‘0 Joquieldas je se) ¢ Jajend

a xipuaddy
1202 ‘G2 19qWanoN
pieog Jaje\ XejeH

I-€ way

1202 - Moday spiepuels adIAIaS

ue|d uoisuad ,seakojdwg uoissiwwoy Jajep) [euoibay xepeH




(I’(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4-1

l 1 \’\’a ter Halifax Water Board

November 25, 2021

TO: Becky Kent, B.A., Chair, and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board as Administrators for Halifax Water’s Supplemental
Pension Benefit Plans

Digitally signed by Louis

de Montbrun
SUBMITTED BY: M Date: 2021.11.19

11:19:55 -04'00'

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA,
Director, Corporate Services / CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: W a’b@ 8;::026021 1119

09:22:43 -04'00°
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: November 9, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Water Supplemental Pension Plan Report
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

On April 28, 2016, the Halifax Water Board (the “Board”) approved the creation of a
Supplementary Pension Benefit Framework in line with Halifax Regional Municipality’s Defined

Contribution Savings plan (Item #2Cb) for non-union staff members, to become effective January
1,2017.

BACKGROUND

The Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan (the “DB Plan”) is a
registered, defined benefit plan providing pension benefits on pensionable earnings capped at
$140,950, which represents the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) maximum annual pensionable
earnings as of January 1, 2015. This cap will remain in place for a period of 8 years starting in
2015, and will increase 1% thereafter.

Pursuant to the framework approved by the Board as noted above, the Halifax Water Employees’

Defined Contribution Plan (the “DC Plan”) and a Notional Retirement Compensation Arrangement
(the “NRCA”) were established, effective January 1, 2017.

Page 1 of 2



ITEM # 4-1

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021

1. DC Plan:
A registered, defined contribution plan providing pension benefits on members’
pensionable earnings between the DB Plan cap and CRA maximum, annual pensionable
earnings threshold. Members contribute at a rate of 9% of pensionable earnings, which is
matched by Halifax Water.

2. NRCA:

A non-registered agreement with individual members which provides pension benefits on
members’ earnings over the CRA maximum, annual pensionable earnings threshold. The
NRCA is a non-contributory arrangement between Halifax Water and individual members.
Halifax Water contributes 9% of a members eligible earnings annually, holding these funds
in trust for members until their retirement, termination or death. Interest applied to
members’ accounts is based on the annual Canadian Socio-Economic Information
Management System (CANSIM) rate released by Statistics Canada.

DISCUSSION

The Financial Report from Industrial Alliance (see Appendix A attached) reports the revenues and
disbursements for the DC Plan during the January 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021 period. The balance
at the beginning of the period was $33.2 thousand. Revenues for the period consisted of new
deposits of $5.7 thousand, and investment revenue of $3.2 thousand. Disbursements totaled $8.2
thousand, leaving a balance at the end of the period of $33.9 thousand.

As of December 31, 2020, the liability with respect to NRCA member accounts was $48.4

thousand, with contributions of $15.5 thousand in 2020, and interest applied totaling $0.3
thousand. For further details on the NRCA, see Appendix B attached.

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A Industrial Alliance Financial Group, Financial Report for the Halifax Water
Employees’ Defined Contribution Plan — January 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021

Appendix B Notional Retirement Compensation Arrangement Dashboard at December 31, 2020

Digitally signed by

Heather Heather Britten
Report Prepared by:  Britten Date: 2021.11.19

09:13:07 -04'00"

Heather Britten, Quality Assurance Officer 902-490-1895

Page 2 of 2



IAAT

Financial Group

Period from January 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the period

Revenues
New deposits
Investment revenues

Total revenues

Disbursements
Deaths, withdrawals, other
Fees
Taxes

Total disbursements

Balance at the end of the period

Book value

$ 33,225.12

$5,710.50
$ 3,192.62

$ 8,903.12

$7,787.50
$ 357.58
$41.46

$ 8,186.54

$ 33,941.70

ltem 4-I

Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Appendix A

Contract 42730-001
Summary of transactions

Market value

$ 33,225.12

$5,710.50
$ 3,192.62

$ 8,903.12

$7,787.50
$ 35758
$ 41.46

$ 8,186.54

$ 33,941.70

Section 1 Page 1



Halifax Water

Notional Retirement Compensation Arrangement

Item 4-I
Halifax Water Board
November 25, 2021
Appendix B

Annual Summary

Opening
Year Balance Contributions | Interest Earned | Closing Balance
2017 $0.00 $10,070.37 $7.79 $10,078.16
2018 $10,078.16 $10,149.62 $121.76 $20,349.53
2019 $20,349.53 $11,878.05 $310.44 $32,538.03
2020 $32,538.03 $15,508.59 $338.48 $48,385.10




	Item 4.1
	Item 4.2
	Item 4.3
	Item 5-Capital Results October 2021-APPROVED
	Item 6-Moving Toward a Water Safety Plan-APPROVED
	Item 1-I-Operational Performance Information Report - Nov-APPROVED
	Item 2-I-APPENDIX I-II-Quarterly Remittance Certification-APPROVED
	Item 3-I - HRWC Employees' Pension Plan Financial Report , Q3 2021-APPROVED
	Item 4-I - HW Employees' DC Plan October 31, 2021 Financial Report-APPROVED

